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Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audiorecorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use
of social media by anyone attending. This does not apply to
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Suzanne Hulks

*PLEASE NOTE DATE
18 July 2016

Dear Councillor
You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE to be held on Monday, 25th July, 2016 at 7.30 pm in the Council
Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE

Yours faithfully

Director (Governance)

AGENDA
PART 1
1.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN
The Council at their meeting on 23 May 2016 appointed Councillor G. Michaelides
as Chairman of the Committee for the 2016/17 municipal year.

2.

SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS
To note any substitution of Committee members made in accordance with Council
Procedure Rules 19-22.

3.

APOLOGIES

4.

MINUTES
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2016
(previously circulated).

5.

ACTIONS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6)
Report of the Director (Governance) which lists the actions from previous meetings

and their current status.
6.

NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 16
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA

7.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS
To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this agenda.

8.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS
Up to fifteen minutes will be available for questions from members of the public on
issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

9.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Pages 7 - 30)
Report of the Director (Governance) brings to Members’ attention the current top
risks facing the Council, as determined by Managers and entered to the TEN Risk
Manager System.

10.

AUDIT RESULTS REPORT - ISA (UK AND IRELAND) 260 FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (Pages 31 - 54)
Report of Ernst & Young summarises the findings from the 2015/16 audit which is
substantially complete and which includes messages arising from their audit of the
Council’s financial statements and the results of the work they have undertaken to
assess their arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the
use of resources.

11.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2015-2016 (Pages 55 - 156)
Report of the Director (Finance and Operations) presenting the Statement of
Accounts for approval.

12.

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 2015/16 ANNUAL ASSURANCE
STATEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 157 - 188)
Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service recommends that Members note the
Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report; note the results of
the self-assessment as required by both the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
and the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme; accept the SIAS Audit
Charter; and seek assurance from management that the scope and resources for
internal audit were subject to no inappropriate limitations in 2015/16.

13.

PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS - MANAGEMENT
CONFIRMATION (Pages 189 - 192)
Report of the Director (Finance and Operations) presents management
confirmation to the Committee as required in terms of the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards that there has been no inappropriate scope or resource limitations
on internal audit activity.

14.

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL - INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS
REPORT (Pages 193 - 208)
Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service asks Members to note the Internal
Audit Progress Report and approve amendments to the Audit Plan.

15.

AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS - MONITORING UPDATE (Pages 209 - 210)
Report of the Director (Governance) presents an update on previous audit
actions/recommendations and progress made in the implementation of these.

16.

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
2015/16 (Pages 211 - 234)
Report of the Chief Executive presents the Draft Annual Governance Statement for
the financial year 2015/16 which has been compiled in accordance with the best
practice set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE Guidance Framework “Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government”

17.

SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, IS OF
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION

18.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The Committee is asked to resolve:
That under Section 100(A) (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 18 (if any) on the
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt
information as defined in Section 100A (3) and Part I of Schedule 12A of the
said Act as amended.
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.

19.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF
THE CHAIR

Circulation:

Councillors

G Michaelides (Chairman)
M Levitt
S Markiewicz

H Quenet
S Roberts

Executive Board
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Richard
Burbidge, Governance Service Unit on 01707 357349, fax 01707 357257 or email –
r.burbidge@welhat.gov.uk
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Agenda Item 5
Part I
Item No: 5
Main author: Richard Burbidge
Executive Member: Councillor Roger Trigg
Not Ward Specific

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 25 JULY 2016
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (GOVERNANCE)
ACTIONS STATUS REPORT
1

Executive Summary

1.1

In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this
report lists the actions from the meeting on 21 March 2016, those responsible
for completing each action and their current status.

2

Recommendation(s)

2.1

That Members note the status of actions which were identified at the meeting
of this Committee on 25 July 2016.

Minute
28

Status/
Responsible Date Completed

Action
Risk Management
It was agreed that the Principal Governance
Officer would feed the Committees comments in
respect of each risk where shown back to the
Risk and Resilience Manager.

29(2)

Principal
Governance
Officer

The comments
were fed back to
the Risk and
Resilience
Manager whose
responses were
circulated to the
Committee
Members. A
further Risk
Management
report appears
later on the
agenda for this
meeting.

Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) Internal
Audit Progress Report:
It was agreed that the recommendations in SIAS
reports be monitored by the Principal Governance
Officer and a progress report on cleared actions
be submitted to the Committee.
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Principal
A progress
Governance monitoring report
Officer
appears later on
the agenda for
this meeting.
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Agenda Item 9
Part I
Item No: 0
Main author: Andy Cremer
Executive Member: Roger Trigg

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 19 JULY 2016
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (GOVERNANCE)
RISK MANAGEMENT
1

Executive Summary

1.1

This report brings to Members’ attention the current top risks facing the Council,
as determined by Managers and entered to the TEN Risk Manager System. The
risks are presented in two main areas:


Strategic risks – showing controls and mitigation plan status. All strategic
risks are shown irrespective of risk score as these are the principle risks
identified in respect of the Council’s promises. They may be applicable to
a large number of service areas and be corporately managed.



Operational risks – the “red” risks (i.e. those scoring above 16), which
have been identified within service areas, together with those risks
scoring 15, which may move into the “red” category in time.

These risks have been reviewed in May 2016 and reflect the assessments in
place for the half year April to October 2016. Members should note that the
Executive Member names shown reflect those in place at the time the reports
were generated, and that these may be subject to subsequent changes.
While summary information is presented here, full risk details are available within
TEN.
2

Financial Implication(s)

2.1

There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event
may have its own financial consequences.

3

Recommendation(s)

3.1

Members are asked to:

4



Review the attached current Strategic Risk Register and top operational
risks, particularly:



Note the controls that are assigned and that they are relevant to the risk in
question.



Ensure that mitigation plans are in place where necessary and that the
current status is correct.



Note comments in respect of each risk where shown.

Background
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4.1

Each strategic risk has ownership by a Director and an Executive Member.
Operationally, each Manager and Head of Service is responsible for maintaining
a register of risks for their service, which could affect the achievement of its
stated aims and objectives.

4.2

Both strategic and operational risks are re-assessed on a half yearly basis, with
any associated mitigation plans or controls being updated on a regular, but as
necessary basis. Similarly, expired risks and new risks should be deleted or
added respectively on an ongoing basis. Strategic and top operational risks are
considered as part of the Performance Clinic process and Directors can discuss
the management of their risks at these sessions. A ‘virtual’ Performance Clinic
was held in May 2016.

4.3

Policy Implication(s)

4.4

Risk management is a key component of the Council’s governance
arrangements and links with the overall management of its performance.

5

Risk Assessment

5.1

This report contributes to the overall maintenance of our risk management
arrangements to ensure they are current. Risk management also forms an
element of the strategic risk of Governance, shown on the attached risk register.

6

Explanation

6.1

The Strategic Risk Register is attached at appendix A and the top operational
risks are attached at appendix B. Appendix B also includes those risks scored as
15 (i.e. 1 point below the threshold for “red” risks).

Name of author

Andy Cremer, 01707 357169

Title

Risk and Resilience Manager

Date

June 2016

- 2 -8
Page

Appendix A: Strategic Risks

Service
Team

Description of Strategic Risk

Controls

Mitigation
Plans

Owner

Previous Previous
Current
Score
Score
Score Half-Year Half-Year
1
2

Appropriately Skilled
and Experienced Staff
Change Management
Awareness of Change
Michel Saminaden
Change Management Failure to change and Client Roles
- Chief Executive
adapt culturally as an organisation and/or
Communication
John Dean failure to take account of the changing
Overview and Scrutiny
Leader of the
CM
environment. Failure to adapt to the
Function
Council and
changing culture of the government
Use links with Cabinet
Chairman of the
Consequences: - reputation - intervention - and local MP to
Local Strategic
legal and financial implications - political
influence and shape
Partnership
implications
the future
Use of Consultants
Working groups
There has been immense change in the Council’s operations and services over the past 5 years, driven by the need to generate efficiencies as
a result of massive cuts in our grants from the Government. New government initiatives, such as the new RTB, New Homes Bonus, the new
planning regime and the creation of the LEP have brought about the need to do things differently and ‘think outside the box’. The council is
currently undergoing a major and fundamental change in its management arrangements as a result of the ‘shared management’ initiative.
Any
There is now a joint Chief Executive of the Council and Housing Trust and new governance and senior management processes are being
Comments
implemented over the summer of 2016. It is critical that we continue deploying all of our skills in managing these changes at both
management and political levels if we are to obtain optimum value for money and efficiency. We will need to keep a continuous and close
watch on all external developments and adapt to the changing requirements. In doing this, we will work closely with partners and use all of our
contacts to keep ourselves fully informed, including the Offices of the local MP.

9
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COM

Communication
Communication Failure to communicate the
Council's priorities to its communities and
failure to actively manage the Council's
reputation. Failure to manage the Council's
messages. Failure to mainstream
communications and build ownership and

Communication plans
are agreed for all
significant
projects/high priority
issues
Communications
Strategy is embedded

Communications
Strategy
Life Magazine community
newsletter

Tony Kingsbury Executive Member
for Policy &
Culture Pam Kettle
- Director Finance &
Operations

9

12
12

9

12

consensus across the organisation. Failure
to consider communications implications
and involve the Communications Team.
Consequences; Loss of trust, loss of
reputation, unable to manage key council
messages and news
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Any
Comments

COR

and reviewed with
HoST
Communications Team
seeks to attend DMTs
Media Trained Staff
and Members
Monitoring system for
positive and negative
news coverage
Review and
monitoring of
Communications
Strategy by Executive
Board
Skilled and
Experienced
Communications Team
Undertaking
perception and
satisfaction based
surveys
Undertaking
Perception Based
Surveys

No further updates in April 2016.
Risk remains at Amber.
Corporate Resilience
Corporate Resilience Failure to meet the
requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act
2004, including the material failure or
inadequacy of plans Failure to respond
appropriately to a civil emergency or
business continuity incident, including the
duty of care to the community and statutory
duty to respond with other agencies The

Business Continuity
Incident Management
Team
Constitution
Crisis Support Team
DR plan
Duplicate facilities
Emergency Plan
Hertfordshire

BCM Peer Review
Contractor BCM
Awareness Raising
Document
Crisis Support
Team
Exercising
RAYNET
Volunteer Team

Bob Baldock Director Governance Roger
Trigg - Executive
Member for
Governance &
Public Health

8

12

12

effects of an incident on the day to day
business of the Council and our ability to
maintain "business as usual" Consequences:
Financial costs of backlog management,
compensation and litigation. Damage to
Council reputation, including criticism at any
subsequent inquiry, media interest and
public criticism. Possible effects on human
welfare.

Resilience
Pandemic Flu Group
Resilience Team
Training and
Exercising Programme

skills and
competencies
WHC Business
Continuity Plan

This risk was increased during the period of building works and decanting of services at Campus East, but has been reduced following
Any
successful completion of this project. All plans are up to date, the council continues to participate fully in the affairs of Hertfordshire Resilience
Comments
and training and exercising activities are on track.
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ENG

Community
Engagement
Engagement
Programme
Engagement Failure to involve
Feedback from service
stakeholder/residents in setting Council
based consultation
priorities. Consequences: Disengagement of
Management of LSP
communities Poor collaborative outcomes
Engagement Process
Inability to prioritise services and resources
Service based
customer surveys

Annual Community
Engagement
Report
Borough Panel
Consultation
'My Council' survey

Pam Kettle Director - Finance
& Operations Tony
Kingsbury Executive Member
for Policy &
Culture

12

12

12

The Borough Panel continues to be used for service and corporate consultation.
There will be no My Council Survey in 2016 as the £10k budget for this has been taken as a revenue budget saving.
Any
Comments A summary of the annual report for 2014-15 was issued with the autumn/winter edition of LIFE magazine to all households in the borough.
Risk remains unchanged at Amber.

EQA

Equalities and Diversity
Failure to meet the obligations around
Equalities and Diversity, including a breach
of the Equalities Act 2010 and the council's
own Equalities and Diversity Scheme and
Equality Improvement Plan. This may be in
relation to employment matters, employees,

Carrying out EIAs for
all policy and service
changes
Codes of Conduct and
regular mandatory
training for officers
and members on

Bob Baldock Director Governance Tony
Kingsbury Executive Member
for Policy &
Culture

8

8

12

service delivery, the community and
customers. Consequences: Litigation (and
associated financial impacts) and
reputational damage.

equality, diversity and
safeguarding
Equality and Diversity
Steering Group
Equality Improvement
Plan and Dedicated
Resources
Review of EIAs at
Equality and Diversity
Steering Group
Robust monitoring

Training on carrying out Equality Impact Assessments is underway. A new policy has been agreed.
Any
The council’s Single Equality Scheme has been revised.
Comments
The annual Delivery Plan for Equality and Diversity has been approved by Social Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
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FIN

Annual Governance
Statement
Asset Management
Finance
Plan
Finance Failure to have sufficient reserves Budget Challenge
to deal with unexpected budget pressures Process
resulting from increasing demand on our
Budget preparation
services, worse than predicted Government process
Funding level, volatility and reliance on
Budgetary control by
locally generated business rates and council managers
tax and the ongoing pensions position (as Capital Programme
informed by actuarial audit). Consequences: Codes of Conduct and
The Authority runs out of money, external regular mandatory
criticism, Government intervention, loss of training for officers
service to tax payers. Loss of income from and members on
fees and charges. Inability to cope with
equality, diversity and
increasing demands on services.
safeguarding
Constitution
Delivery of the
economic

Pam Kettle Director - Finance
& Operations Alan
Franey - Deputy
Leader of the
Council and
Executive
Member,
Resources

15

15

15
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development strategy
External and internal
audit
Finance Procedure
Rules
Financial Information
System (Agresso)
HRA Business Plan
Medium Term
Financial Plan
Monthly collection
fund monitoring
Pension fund
considered as part of
the annual budget
process
Performance
monitoring of
collection rates
Recognition of
economic downturn
within future budget
processes
Systems reconciliation
Three year actuarial
valuation of pension
fund
Treasury Management
Policy
Use and Control of
Reserves and Balances
Any
Budget for 2016/17 has been agreed with sufficient reserves, and there are plans to address the growing funding gap. In year monitoring
Comments suggests year end balances (31 March 2016) will be higher than expected at the time of the original budget.
Governance
Governance Group
Roger Trigg GOV
Governance Failure to maintain effective
Anti Fraud and
Executive Member
governance arrangements, including: Corruption Strategy
for Governance &

12

12

12

Standards and Ethics - Anti-fraud and
corruption arrangements - Whistleblowing Information governance (FoI, Data
Protection) - Risk management Compliance with the requirements of the
Localism Act - Transparency Consequences:
Litigation, loss of reputation, financial
impacts, external auditor criticism
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Constitution
Contract Procedure
Rules
Dedicated Data
Protection Officer
Dedicated FoI Officer
Employee Code of
Conduct
Finance Procedure
Rules
Local Code
Governance
Member Code of
Conduct
Overview and Scrutiny
Function
Standards Committee
Transparency Code
Whistleblowing Policy

Any
Processes are monitored through the Governance Group and policies updated regularly.
Comments
Health and Safety
Collective Safety
Health and Safety Failure to maintain an
Responsibility of
adequate and effective safety management Executive Board
system within the Council, including
Communication with
Condition Survey
structures, processes, control measures and Employees
Findings
allocations of responsibilities and ensuring External Inspection
Grey Fleet
competence of employees, contractors &
and Auditing by
Potentially Violent
H&S
service providers and compliance with
Consultants
Customer Policy
safety laws and regulations. Consequences: Induction and
Stress Policy
serious injury, work-related ill health or
Ongoing Training
Workplace
fatalities leading to lost productivity,
Periodic Inspection of
Inspections
absence, litigation, external investigation by Premises, Plant and
enforcing authorities, and possibly
Equipment
prosecution up to and including the
Risk and Resilience
Corporate Manslaughter and Corporate
Officer

Public Health Bob
Baldock - Director
- Governance

It is hoped this will mitigate the identified risks.

Roger Trigg Executive Member
for Governance &
Public Health Bob
Baldock - Director
- Governance

8

8

8

Homicide Act.

Risk Assessments &
Associated Control
Measures
Safety Director Role
Safety Policy
Document

Any
Policy reviews are on track and we are carrying out considerable work on the safety management systems as it relates to the management of
Comments contractors.
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Alternative methods to
update local and
remote databases
Alan Franey DR plan
Deputy Leader of
ICT Failure
Duplicate facilities
Virtual Hardware the Council and
ICT Failure Critical failure of ICT services,
ICT - Temporary PSTN Virtualisation
Executive
for example due to virus attack, lack of
ICT
connection
Process
Member,
network capacity, hacking, hardware failure,
Infrastructure review WHC Business
Resources Pam
etc. Consequences: Loss of ICT dependent
to stabilise our virtual Continuity Plan
Kettle - Director services.
environment
Finance &
IT Strategy
Operations
Put back BRE lease
termination date
The Council has been subject to a large amount of attempted virus attacks which have caused disruption in other organisations. Action has
been taken to isolate incidents where a virus has got through, or blocked virus attempts as much as possible reaching the network altogether.
This includes blocking emails with the word “invoice” in the title.
Any
Mitigation will continue to be communication across the Council when it becomes apparent that we are receiving invoices with a virus attached
Comments
to try and isolate any cases as much as possible.
Also investigating other software options for further security “privilege guard”.

LP

Local Plan
Failure to have an approved strategy and
plans in place to deliver sustainable growth
for the Borough, balancing the demands for
new development with protection of the
environment, which where necessary, have
been through a process of public

Extensive evidence
will underpin the
development of our
Local Plan and inform
our proposals
Input from CHPP
Project plan for the

Bob Baldock Director Governance
Bernard Sarson Executive Member
for Business &
Partnerships

8

8

8

12

12

12

involvement and have been independently
endorsed by government. Consequences:
The local economy achieves less than its full
potential; delivery of New Homes Bonus,
future Council Tax and Business Rate
receipts is adversely affected; investment
proposals do not come to fruition; failure to
provide sufficient affordable housing; local
infrastructure projects may not be
delivered; contribution towards funding new
and improved local facilities does not
happen; unplanned 'hostile' developments
occur. Opportunities to bring in external
funding to assist the delivery of sustainable
growth are lost; Reputational damage.
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Any
Comments

Local Plan is in place
Public scrutiny,
including a public
examination led by an
independent Planning
Inspector
S106/Community
Infrastructure Levy is
in place

The Proposed Submission Local Plan is scheduled for presentation to CHPP in June 2016 and Cabinet in July 2016. Public consultation will take
place throughout the summer and representations will be analysed in the autumn to decide whether to make any changes. The Submission
Local Plan is scheduled for presentation to CHPP, Cabinet and Council in Jan/Feb 2016 and will then be submitted. The Government has
threatened to intervene where local authorities have not submitted a plan by spring 2017, so we will avoid this situation. Subject to PINS
resources the Plan will be examined in summer 2017 and subject to being found sound should be adopted before the end of that year.
Any failure to this timetable runs the risk of the Government intervening in the plan-making process or planning decisions being made that do
not accord with the borough’s aspirations.

MPA

Management of Physical Assets
Management of Physical Assets Failure to
adequately manage the physical assets of
the Council, including its housing and nonhousing properties, open spaces and other
land and including increased property
holding in Hatfield town centre .
Consequences: Loss of usable property
resources. (Lost income and additional cost)
Risk to Health and Safety to occupiers and
visitors. Accelerate the
deterioration/dilapidation of building assets.

Asset Management
Plan
Capital Programme
Decent Homes
Strategy
Rewrite/Update
Finesse Leisure
the HRA Business
Partnership
Plan Financials
Agreement
HRA Business Plan
IPF Property Condition
Survey (Premises)
2002

Pam Kettle Director - Finance
& Operations Alan
Franey - Deputy
Leader of the
Council and
Executive
Member,
Resources

9

9

9

Negative impact on reputation of the
Neighbourhood
Council. Potential for investment and needs Shopping Centres
priority mismatches.
Policy
Any
No comments were made.
Comments
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PART

Partnerships
Partnerships Failure to achieve and
evidence the capacity available by working
in partnership. Consequences: Inability to
find capacity for sustainable improvement.
Inability to align with good practice
requirements. Inability to demonstrate our
improvements to those who scrutinise us.
Reputation damage.

Annual Assessment of
the Effectiveness of
Our Partnerships
Effective management
of our partnership
with the Community
Housing Trust
Alliance meetings
Effective management
and annual
of partnership with the
conference
Community Housing
Partnership
Trust
reporting (e.g.
Effective Management
CHT and Finesse)
of the Finesse Leisure
to council
Partnership
meetings
Effective management
Sustainable
of Welwyn Hatfield
Community
Alliance (Local
Strategy
Strategic Partnership)
Performance Reward
Grant Management
Process
Use of other
partnership
agreements as needed

Bernard Sarson Executive Member
for Business &
Partnerships Pam
Kettle - Director Finance &
Operations

8

8

8

The Alliance Structure is well embedded and provides a suitable platform for working in partnership with other key statutory agencies.
The Council is part of the joint work in Hatfield 2030+
Any
Comments
Key partnerships, such as the Housing Trust, Finesse Leisure, Serco and Steria continue to be monitored via the governance structures that are
in place.

PERM
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Delivery of the
performance
Performance Management
management
Performance Management Failure to
framework
maintain a robust performance
Delivery of the
management culture at every level of the
quarterly performance
organisation, which is proportionate to our
clinics
needs. Consequences: - Inability to optimise
Performance and risk
our service potential as an organisation exception reports to
Inability to achieve the local impact we
Cabinet
want to see in our communities - Inability to
Performance Appraisal
demonstrate good value for money and
Scheme for Employees
high quality services - Inability to
Performance indicator
demonstrate where we are improving our
reports to Committees
services - Inability to identify and tackle
Use of the TEN risk
instances of under-performance
and performance
management system
Corporate Business Plan was last updated in April 2015.

Annual service
team plans
Annual team plans
Corporate Business
Plan and action
plan
Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Tony Kingsbury Executive Member
for Policy &
Culture Pam Kettle
- Director Finance &
Operations

12

12

12

8

8

8

Four performance clinic meetings have been held over 2015-16.
Any
Core PIs have been reported to OSC meetings over 2015-16.
Comments
New service plans have been created for 2016-17 across all services.
Risk remains unchanged at Amber.

PROC

Procurement
Procurement Failure to procure effectively
and efficiently, including failures of contract
management arrangements and client side
monitoring procedures Consequences: Over
pay for goods/services. Poor quality
goods/services. Failure to achieve desired
outcomes.

Annual Governance
Statement
Constitution
Contract Procedure
Rules
Embedding
procurement with
HoST
External and internal
audit

Bernard Sarson Executive Member
New Procurement
for Business &
Implementation
Partnerships Bob
Plan
Baldock - Director
- Governance

Finance Procedure
Rules
Finesse Leisure
Partnership
Agreement
Internal/External Audit
Procurement function
Procurement
Handbook
Procurement strategy
Procurement Training
Sustainable
Procurement Strategy
Any
Comments

Page 19
PROJ

Contract Management returns in the process of being completed and collated to ensure that contracts are managed effectively.
Expenditure analysis to take place in summer to ensure compliance with the contract procedure rules
Contract Procedure
Rules
Contractual remedies
Deliivery of the
Project Management
performance
Failure to properly manage projects
management
including a potential lack of capacity or
framework
skills, pressure to meet deadlines and
Delivery of the
targets and resolving unforeseen complex
quarterly performance
issues. Consequences: Project drift and a
clinics
failure to meet targets on time, cost or
Formation of project
quality. Financial effects on the authority,
teams
potential litigation, reputational damage and
Overview and Scrutiny
stress to employees involved. Consequential
Function
effects on service delivery and assets.
Procurement function
Risk Assessments &
Associated Control
Measures

Any
No comments were made.
Comments

John Dean Leader of the
Council and
Chairman of the
Local Strategic
Partnership Michel
Saminaden - Chief
Executive

12

12

12

SAF

Safeguarding
Failure to meet obligations in respect of
children and vulnerable adults, including our
Safeguarding Policy and working in
partnership with other agencies, including
the Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children
Board and the Hertfordshire Safeguarding
Adults Board. This risk also covers our
arrangements under the government's
PREVENT strategy. Consequences: Abuse
may remain undetected or unreported,
resulting in harm to a child or vulnerable
adult. Possible litigation and reputational
damage.

Designated
Safeguarding Officers
Group
Mandatory
Safeguarding training
Representation and
Learning through
Herts Safeguarding
Boards
Safeguarding Policy
Senior Management
Leadership on this
Issue

Tony Kingsbury Executive Member
for Policy &
Culture Bob
Baldock - Director
- Governance

8

8

8

6

6

The council has recently been audited in this area and the draft report has stated that there is substantial assurance
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The council’s policy is being reviewed.
Any
Comments
Designated Safeguarding Officers have had additional training in specific areas, such as radicalisation.

STF

Staff
This risk covers a failure to: . Manage staff
morale and motivation in challenging times .
Adequately manage employee performance
through the setting of SMART objectives
and targets . Implement People Strategy,
succession and workforce development
plan. . Recruit, retain and develop talented
employees. . Take initiatives to manage
employee wellbeing Consequences
Consequences: Overall capacity may be
reduced, and low morale may result in
reduced goodwill and productivity. This
could result in a failure to achieve targets
and objectives and affect service delivery.
There may also be a necessity to use

Guidant Managed
Service Contract
Health and Wellbeing
Sessions
HR - Training Needs
Analysis
HR Policies and
Staff - Introduce
Procedures
workflow and self
'Jobs Go Public'
service
application tracking
system
Learning and
Development Plan
Monitoring appraisal
scheme
Occupational Health

Bob Baldock Director Governance Roger
Trigg - Executive
Member for
Governance &
Public Health

6

agency staff, resulting in increased
expenditure

Contract
Optima
People Strategy

Any
Risk unchanged. This is being closely monitored in light of the management restructure. HR works closely with managers to take pro-active
Comments action to mitigate the identified risks.
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Appendix B: Top operational Risks
Strategy and Development

Service
Team

PL 6

Page 23
Any
Comments

PL 8

Description of Operational Risk
Inadequate professional resource
Inability to provide acceptable level of service
due to insufficient staff or staff with insufficient
knowledge and experience. Consequence(s):
Poor provision of service to the customer.
Inability to adequately provide service. This may
lead to greater instances of complaint. Potential
for inability to meet government targets with
regard to service delivery. Reputational and
potential financial risk.

Risk Owner

Controls

Colin Haigh - Head of
Planning Sue Tiley Planning Policy &
Implementation Manager
Planning Mark Harvey - Manager
Recruitment
Building Control Manager
Policy
Lisa Hughes Development
Management Service
Manager

Previous Previous
Mitigation Current
Score
Score
Plan
Score Half-Year Half-Year
1
2

16

16

16

The Planning Service has relatively stable staff numbers at present, but planners remain difficult to recruit and prone to movement within Herts
authorities and to higher salaries in London, Cambs and the private sector. St Albans have recently introduced a 10% market supplement.
The Head of Planning is responding by creating career-grade posts so that staff can more easily progress from assistants to officers to seniors,
plus other measures to make this Council a desirable place to work.
IT Failure or Inappropriate/Inadequate IT
Systems
Loss of or corruption of monitoring information,
consultation databases, records and files. IT
systems which are not capable of performing to
the necessary complexity and scope.
Consequence: Inability to provide acceptable
level of service according to both customer
expectation and Government requirements. This
may lead to financial and reputational penalty.
Inability to complete planning policy formulation
or monitoring processes, inability to determine

Colin Haigh - Head of
Planning Sue Tiley Planning Policy &
Implementation Manager
Lisa Hughes Development
Management Service
Manager Mark Harvey Manager Building Control
Manager

ICT - Backup
and Recovery
Arrangements
ICT - Disaster
Recovery Plan
ICT - Firewall
ICT - Virus
Detection

16

16

16

planning applications, inability to take
enforcement action, inability to deal with building
control applications, etc.
The new IT system was installed in July 2015 and work continues to transfer records from the old system. It is a much more user-friendly
Any
system for the public, councillors and staff, but it remains a major operational risk to the Planning Service if it were to crash.
Comments

SH 3

Strategic Housing - Non Delivery on section
106 sites.
Risk - Private developers no longer building on
s106 sites. Consq - Failure to deliver the
affordable Housing programme and meet the
coporate promises.

Sian Chambers - Head of
Housing & Community
Services Jeremy Morton Principal Housing
Development Manager

Strategic
Housing Planning
Toolkit viability
appraisials

16

16

12

Any
No comments were made.
Comments
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Finance and Operations

Service
Team

Description of Operational Risk
Environment Services - Recycling
Finances/Markets
Materials sent for recycling have a
value. The value of the material will rise
and fall based on world wide
commodity markets. In a low value
commodity market there is the
potential for the Council not to receive
current values for material sent for
recycling. However, it has to be
reminded that value of material can go
up as well as down.

ES 9

Any

No comments were made.

Owner

Controls

Durk Reyner - Head
of Environment
Services Kirsten
Environmental Services
Roberts - Community - Fixed Price Contracts
and Environment
Services Manager

Previous Previous
Current
Score
Score
Mitigation Plans
Score Half-Year Half-Year
1
2

16

12

16

Comments
Finance - Ensure
financial procedures
are being followed
Finance - Financial
Finance - Loss to the Council as a
Finance - financial
Procedures
result of fraudulent activity via
procedures to
Jane Cika - Finance Finance - knowledge
internal or external sources
ensure independent
Manager Tim Neill - sharing of fraudulent
Monetary loss as a result of fraudulent
checks to changes
Head of Resources attempts by outside
activity through external sources via
and new bank
Jane Yeo - Finance bodies
FS 19
electronic payments, computer hacking,
details requests.
Systems & Controls Finance - Quarterly
attempts to deceive staff or by staff
Finance Manager Pam Kettle independent electronic
themselves resulting in loss of council
intelligence sharing
- Director (Finance & audit, testing
funds and lack of confidence in financial
of fraudulent
Operations)
robustness & PCI
systems, poor audit opinion and
attempts with SIAS,
compliance.
reptutational damage.
SAFS and other
Finance - secure IT
Herts groups.
systems
Finance - Separation of
duties
Fraudsters are becoming more sophisticated in their attempt to defraud the Council of money. One example being an email sent to the
Any
Finance Director that looked like it had come from the Chief Executive. While financial procedures should identify fraud attempts before they
Comments are successful the growing sophistication means there is a risk of one getting through. Ongoing mitigation is the continual shared intelligence
gathering with SIAS, SAFS and other Herts authorities.

15

Page 25

FS 20

Finance - Restructure process
results in inadequate financial
services to the Housing Trust and
Council
Failure to provide adequate financial
services to the Housing Trust and the
Council during the period of change
and the merging of services leading to
lack of financial control and poor
decision making resulting inability to
achieve Council and Housing Trust
objectives over the medium to longer
term.

Jane Cika - Finance
Manager Pam Kettle
- Director (Finance &
Operations) Tim Neill
- Head of Resources
Kevin Hurd Accounting Services
Manager

Finance - attendance
at corporate boards
and working groups to
ascertain requirements
of Finance
Finance - clear
planning for handover
of knowledge.
Finance - Ensure
agreement with
Housing Trust allows
council to obtain
information required

Finance - clear
planning for
handover of
knowledge
Finance Identification of
project lead for
restructure and
maintenance of a
project risk log
Finance Involvement of
Human Resources in

15

5

5
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for its accounting,
the planning and
reporting and statutory completion of the
obligations
project.
Finance - Ensure that Finance - Regular
Finance are
communication and
represented on the
engagement of all
working group and
staff involved
that financial due
through the
diligence work is
restructure process.
carried out and
Finance - Use of
reviewed.
external resources
Finance - establish
as required tofill any
ongoing systems and gaps.
controls to support the Finance - Ensure
other mentioned risk that procedures are
controls.
kept available, up to
Finance - Financial
date and applied.
protocols between
Finance - Staff
housing trust finance training
team and council
finance team
Finance - Identification
of project lead for
restructure and
maintenance of a
project risk log.
Finance - ongoing
team meetings,
supervision and two
way communication
Finance - On-going
training of finance staff
Finance - recruitment
process to appoint
staff competent in
their roles
Finance - Regular

communication and
engagement of all staff
involved
Finance - staff
appraisals
The restructure and merger of the finance teams over the coming months will cause a risk of disruption of financial service to the Council and
Any
the Housing Trust while staff adapt to changing roles. This at a time when demand for financial services is high and it is critical both
Comments organisations continue to receive good financial information for decision making and all regular finance functions are maintained. We may
need to consider bringing in additional external resource as a form of mitigation to cover the change period.

Governance
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Service
Team

HC 12

Description of Operational Risk

Owner

Controls

Hackney Carriages
- Complaints and
Investigation
James Vaughan - Policy
Hackney Carriages - Occupational stress
Hackney
Hackney Carriages
Occupational stress arising from hackney
Carriage Officer - family support
carriage work. Consequences: Sickness absence,
Nick Long - Head Hackney Carriages
reduction in service delivery, potential for claim
of Public Health - Line
against the council.
& Protection
management
support
Hackney Carriages
- support network

Mitigation
Plans
Hackney
Carriages consideration of
office space
Hackney
Carriages Revised customer
service and
complaints
strategy
Hackney
Carriages
Recording of
telephone calls

Previous Previous
Current
Score
Score
Score Half-Year Half-Year
1
2

20

20

15

15

Any
No comments were made
Comments
HC 7

Hackney Carriages - Verbal abuse and
James Vaughan - Hackney Carriages Hackney
aggression towards hackney carriage staff Hackney
- CCTV
Carriages -

Carriage Officer Hackney Carriages
- Personal
Protective
Equipment
Hackney Carriages
- Potentially
Violent Customer
Database
Hackney Carriages
- video badges

Incident logs
Hackney
Carriages Regular checks to
ensure CCTV is
working
Hackney
Carriages
Recording of
telephone calls

Any
No comments were made
Comments
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HC 9

Hackney Carriages
James Vaughan - - cars registered to
Hackney
the office
Hackney Carriages - Deliberate damage to
Carriage Officer Hackney Carriages
hackney carriage staff personal property
Nick Long - Head - CCTV at home
For example cars, homes, animals
of Public Health address
& Protection
Hackney Carriages
- Training

Any
No comments were made
Comments
Food Safety Competency
Nick Long - Head
Changes to the Food Law Code of Practice
Public Health
of Public Health
require two staff to receive additional training to
& Protection
meet new baseline standards

16

16

15

15

15

15

Any
No comments were made
Comments

PH 11

Public Health - Failure to recruit and
maintain competent staff
Failure to recruit and maintain competent staff
leading to inadequate numbers of competent
staff being available at given time.
Consequence(s): Failure to provide acceptable
levels EH service, increased pressure on

Environmental
Nick Long - Head Health - Robust
of Public Health Interview and
& Protection
Selection
Techniques

15

remaining staff, potential government
intervention using default powers, inability to
deal with key cases leading to long term latent
environmental damage.
Any
No comments were made
Comments
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PH 14

Appropriate Work
Allocation Among
Public Health - Inability to Conduct
Staff in Post
Investigations, Serve and Enforce Legal
Budget
Notices or Remedy Dangerous
Car Loan Scheme
Situations/WID
Computerised
Inability to conduct necessary statutory
Notice Generation
investigations and inspections including limitted
Contractual
use of equipment, access to reference works
Arrangements for
and the timely release of information. Inability Nick Long - Head Staff to Provide a
to serve and enforce statutory notices leading to of Public Health Car for Work
ongoing risk situation and public health, safety & Protection
Digital evidence
or environmental hazard. Potential default of a
copying facility
statutory duty. Ongoing dangerous situation
Multiple
persisting risk to public. Consequence(s):
Authorisations for
Default of statutory duty or code of practice,
Some Notices
failure to inform, warn or protect the public,
Sound
ongoing risk situation where a public health,
Deputisation
safety or environmental hazard is not controlled,
Arrangements for
Head of Service
Training

15

15

15

20

20

20

Any
No comments were made
Comments

PH 24

Public Health - Out of hours noise
monitoring for breach of notice
This risk relates to a situation where the council Nick Long - Head
has fulfilled its statutory duty to serve a noise
of Public Health
abatement notice however the monitoring to
& Protection
see if the notice is complied with needs to take
place on nights where there is no out of hours

service in place. The main consequences of this
are protracting a legal case, damage to
reputation, negative press coverage, poor
customer service and continuing exposure to
nuisance for members of the public. There is a
smaller risk of ombudsman challenge
Any
No comments were made
Comments

PH 29
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Public Health - failure to deliver an
'Operation Reprise' shift
Inability to carry out an Operation Reprise shift
due to lack of resources, either from the
Environmental Health Team of Herts Police.
Consequences: reputational damage due to
failure to act in response to complaints.

Any
No comments were made
Comments

Operation Reprise
- MoU with Herts
Police
Operation Reprise
Nick Long - Head - Back up
Use of street
of Public Health arrangements in
warden team
& Protection
place
Operation Reprise:
Rota drawn up
well in advance
and confirmed

15

15

15
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In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued ‘‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and
audited bodies 2015-16’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website
(www.psaa.co.uk)
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited
bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is
to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The ‘Terms of Appointment from 1 April 2015’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must
comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute,
and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. This report is intended solely
for the use of the Members of the audited body. We, as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner,
1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do
all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact
our professional institute.
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Executive summary

1.

Executive summary

The National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice (the Code) requires us to report to those charged
with governance – the Audit Committee – on the work we have carried out to discharge our statutory
audit responsibilities together with any governance issues identified. This report summarises the
findings from the 2015/16 audit which is substantially complete. It includes messages arising from our
audit of your financial statements and the results of the work we have undertaken to assess your
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.
Below are the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.

Status of
the audit

We have substantially completed our audit of the financial statements of
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2016.
Subject to satisfactory completion of the outstanding items included in
Appendix A we will issue an audit opinion in the form which appears in
Appendix D by the end of July 2016.
We are awaiting a letter of assurance from the auditor of the
Hertfordshire Pension Fund regarding the arrangements in place for the
provision of information from the actuary for the defined benefit liability
amount and disclosures included in Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s
accounts. We have discussed with the Council’s Director (Finance and
Operations) the position on the triennial valuation as at 31 March 2016
and are satisfied that there are no significant implications for the
2015/16 Statement of Accounts.
We have, subject to the issues outlined above, performed the procedures
outlined in our Audit Plan and anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion on
the Council’s financial statements.
We expect to conclude that you have put in place proper arrangements to
secure value for money in your use of resources.

Audit
differences

There are no unadjusted audit differences.
Our audit identified some amendments required to disclosures which our
team have highlighted to management for amendment. These have been
corrected during the course of our work.

Scope and
materiality

In our audit plan presented at the 21 March 2016 Audit Committee
meeting, we communicated that our audit procedures would be
performed using a materiality of £1.8 million. We have reassessed this
based on the actual results for the 2015/16 financial year and have
increased this amount to £2 million. The reason for the increase in
planning materiality was the higher gross expenditure in 2015/16
comparing to the Council’s 2014/15 outturn.
The threshold for reporting audit differences which impact the financial
statements has also increased from £88,000 to £100,000. The basis of
our assessment is 2% of gross operating expenditure which is consistent
with the basis that was applied in 2014/15.
We carried out our work in accordance with our Audit Plan with the
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Executive summary

following amendments to our assessment of significant risks:
·

In our audit plan we identified a significant risk for revenue
recognition. For local government audits this covers both revenue
income and expenditure. We have undertaken sufficient work to
rebut the presumption that this risk applies and have therefore
limited our procedures in this area.

Significant audit We identified the following audit risks during the planning phase of our
audit, and reported these to you in our audit plan:
risks
·
·

Risk of revenue expenditure recognition.
Risk of management override.

The ‘addressing audit risks’ section of this report sets out how we have
gained audit assurance over those issues and others identified during the
audit.

Other reporting
issues

We have no other matters we wish to report.

Control
observations

We have adopted a fully substantive approach and have therefore not
tested the operation of controls.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the staff of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council for their
cooperation and assistance during the course of our work.

Neil Harris
Executive Director
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
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Responsibilities and purpose of our work

2.

Responsibilities and purpose of our work

The Council’s responsibilities
The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its Statement of Accounts, accompanied by
the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the AGS, the Council reports publicly on the extent to
which it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the
effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year, and on any planned changes in the coming
period.
The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Purpose of our work
Our audit was designed to:
·
·
·
·

Express an opinion on the 2015/16 financial statements and the consistency of other
information published with them;
Report on an exception basis on the Annual Governance Statement;
Consider and report any matters that prevent us being satisfied that the Council had put in
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources (the value for money conclusion); and
Discharge our statutory duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice.

In addition, this report contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis and any views on
significant deficiencies in internal control or the Council’s accounting policies and key judgments.
Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office
on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent of our review and the nature of our report
are specified by the National Audit Office.
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Financial statements audit

3.

Financial statements audit

Addressing audit risks
We identified the following audit risks during the planning phase of our audit, and reported these to
you in our Audit Plan. Here, we set out how we have gained audit assurance over those issues.
A significant audit risk in the context of the audit of the financial statements is an inherent risk with
both a higher likelihood of occurrence and a higher magnitude of effect should it occur and which
requires special audit consideration. For significant risks, we obtain an understanding of the entity’s
controls relevant to each risk and assess the design and implementation of the relevant controls.
Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper recognition of
revenue. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10, issued by the
Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider the risk that material
misstatements may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition. As explained in the
‘Executive summary’ we had initially included this risk in our Audit Plan for 2015/16. However we
have subsequently carried out sufficient work to re-but the presumption that this risk exists for the
audit by assessing:
►

the control environment at Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council relevant to
opportunities and incentives to commit revenue recognition fraud

►

the statutory framework in place to regulate local government finance

►

the nature of the financial regime established in local government

►

the nature of the financial transactions undertaken by Welwyn Hatfield Borough
Council , and whether these present both the opportunity and incentive to engage in
material revenue manipulation.

Significant Risks
(including fraud risks)

Audit procedures performed

Assurance gained and
issues arising

Risk
of
override

·

Our testing of journal entries is in
progress.

management

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland)
240, management is in a unique
position to perpetrate fraud because
of its ability to manipulate accounting
records directly or indirectly and
prepare
fraudulent
financial
statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating
effectively. We identify and respond to
this fraud risk on every audit
engagement.

Tested the appropriateness of journal
entries recorded in the general ledger
and other adjustments made in the
preparation
of
the
financial
statements

·

Reviewed accounting estimates for
evidence of management bias;

·

Evaluated the business rationale for
any significant unusual transactions;
and

·

Reviewed capital expenditure on
property, plant and equipment to
ensure it meets the relevant
accounting requirements to be
capitalised.
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The most significant accounting
estimates in the financial statements
relates to the net pension liability and
property valuations. We found no
indication of management bias in
these estimates.
We have not identified any significant
unusual transactions from our testing.
The Finance team at the Council
discussed with us ahead of the audit
issues arising during the accounts
preparation including bringing to our
attention significant transactions..
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Other matters
As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we are
required to communicate to you significant findings from the audit and other matters that are
significant to you oversight of the Council’s financial reporting process, including the following:
·

Qualitative aspects of your accounting practices; estimates and disclosures;

·

Matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be communicated to those charged
with governance. For example, issues about fraud, compliance with laws and regulations,
external confirmations and related party transactions;

·

Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit; and

·

Other audit matters of governance interest

The Council’s Narrative Report section 7.5 draws attention to the fact that there has been a triennial
valuation of the pension fund in March 2016 and that the impact of this will be known in September
2016. We have requested more information from the Director (Finance and Operations) in order to
assess whether there is a potential impact on the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts. .

Control themes and observations
It is the responsibility of the Council to develop and implement systems of internal financial control
and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor their adequacy and effectiveness in practice. Our
responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Council has put adequate arrangements in
place to satisfy itself that the systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in
practice.
We have adopted a fully substantive approach and have therefore not tested the operation of
controls.
We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm that it is not misleading or
inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the Council.

Request for written representations
We have requested a management representation letter to gain management’s confirmation in
relation to a number of matters, as outlined in Appendix E.

Whole of Government Accounts
Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office
on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent of our review and the nature of our report
are specified by the National Audit Office.
We have to certify that the Council’s figures are below the threshold requiring detailed review, we are
satisfied that this is the case, and we will therefore report accordingly.
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4.

Value for money

We are required to consider whether the
Council has put in place ‘proper
arrangements’
to
secure
economy,
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of
resources. This is known as our value for
money conclusion.
Proper arrangements are defined by
statutory guidance issued by the National
Audit Office. They comprise
your
arrangements to:
►
►
►

Take informed decisions;
Deploy resources in a sustainable
manner; and
Work with partners and other third
parties.

We identified the following significant risks in relation to these arrangements:
·

the savings target over the life of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/17 to 2018/19
agreed by the Council in January 2016 was £3.8 million which is above our materiality figure.

We have performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan. We did not identify any significant
weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements
We therefore expect to conclude that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for
money in your use of resources.
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Significant risks
The table below presents the findings of our work in response to the risk areas in out audit plan.
VFM risk identified within our
audit plan

Impacts arrangements
for:

Key findings

In recent years the Council has
responded well to the financial
pressures arising from the recent
economic downturn, and reductions
in the level of central government
funding to local government. These
factors will continue to impact the
Council’s budget and Medium Term
Financial Strategy during the current
and forthcoming financial years. The
savings target over the life of the
current Medium Term Financial
Strategy (2016/17-2018/19) has
increased to £3.8m. The budget for
2016/17
includes
£1.1m
of
efficiencies that have been identified
towards the £3.8m target.

·

We reviewed the Council’s
Medium
Term
Financial
Strategy 2016/17 to 2018/19
and the Budget Setting paper
for 2016/17. The Council has
well established arrangements
for
undertaking
these
processes which incorporate
key assumptions and sensitivity
review. The Council has a
proven track record of achieving
savings and coming in within its
budget. The General Fund
balance at £7.9 million is well in
excess
of
the
Council’s
minimum level of £1.6 million,
and there are earmarked
reserves of £2.2 million. The
Council is already developing
plans for tackling the savings
requirement of £3.8 million
cumulative savings required
over the period ending 2018/19.
On the basis of the work
undertaken we have concluded
that the Council does have
arrangements in place for
deploying
resouces
in
a
sustainable manner.

Deploying resources
in
a
sustainable
manner.
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Appendix A – Outstanding matters
The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures are outstanding at the date of
the release of this report.
Item

Actions to resolve

Responsibility

Management
representation letter

Receipt of signed letter of representation

Management and Audit
Committee

Accounts

Update of the accounts for disclosure
amendments identified during the audit
Approval of accounts by Audit Committee
Accounts re-certified by Director (Finance
and Operations)

EY, management and
Audit Committee

events

Completion of the subsequent events
procedures to the date of signing the audit
report

EY and management

Liability

Receipt and evaluation of assurance from the
Pension fund administrator’s auditor

EY and Hertfordshire
Pension Fund auditor

Whole of Government
Accounts

Preparation of submission by management,
and review of the submission by EY

EY and management

Final completion of
audit procedures and
Engagement
Partner
review

Management and EY to work together to
complete any outstanding work. In particular
this will include final reviews of audit
documentation and work papers by the Audit
Manager and Executive Director. Key areas
outstanding at the time of drafting this report
are:
Procedures for testing housing benefit
►
expenditure: agreement of system
parameters used, and whether the
correct version of the subsidy suite has
been used, analytical review of the
subsidy return

EY and management

Subsequent
review
Pension
Valuation

►

Journals testing

►

Confirmation by counter
investment balances

►

Completion of work on valuation of
Council assets

►

Completion of work on recharges and
segment reporting

►

Completion of work on financial
instruments and contingent liabilities
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Appendix B – Independence
We confirm there are no changes in our assessment of independence since our confirmation in our
Audit Plan dated 21 March 2016. In our Plan we reported that we had been requested to undertake
work on the Council’s 2014/15 housing pooling return and report accordingly to the Department for
Communities and Local Government (DCLG). This work was undertaken in December 2015.
Amendments are required to the Council’s return but there have been difficulties with the DCLG
Logasnet system which have prevented the return from being amended. We have therefore been
unable to complete this non-audit work. The fee in the engagement letter for this work was £3,000
plus VAT although we have incurred some additional time which means the final fee is likely to be
higher. However this will not materially affect the ratio of non-audit to audit fees which at 5% we
consider do not affect our independence.
We complied with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors and the requirements
of the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)’s Terms of Appointment. In our professional
judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff
has not been compromised within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements.
We confirm that we are not aware of any relationships that may affect the independence and
objectivity of the firm that we are required by auditing and ethical standards to report to you.
We consider that our independence in this context is a matter that should be reviewed by both you
and ourselves. It is therefore important that you consider the facts of which you are aware and come
to a view. If you wish to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be pleased to do
so at the forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee on 25 July 2016.
We confirm that we have met the reporting requirements to the Audit Committee, as ‘those charged
with governance’ under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 260 – Communication
with those charged with governance. Our communication plan to meet these requirements was set
out in our Audit Plan of 21 March 2016.
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Appendix C – Auditor fees
The table below sets out the scale fee and our final proposed audit fees.
Description

Total Audit Fee – Code work

Proposed final
Fee
2015/16
£
62,235

Scale Fee
2015/16
£
62,235

Variation
comments

-

Our actual fee is in line with the scale fee set by the PSAA at this point in time, subject to satisfactory
clearance of the outstanding work.
We confirm we have undertaken non-audit work outside of the PSAA’s requirements, this is the work
on the Council’s 2014/15 housing pooling of capital receipts return. Our report is yet to be issued to
the DCLG and we have not therefore invoiced our fee. The fee per the engagement letter was £3,000
plus VAT. We have identified some issues with the return which means that the outturn fee will be
slightly higher.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WELWYN
HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
Opinion on the Authority’s financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council for
the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
The financial statements comprise the:
·
·
·
·
·

Authority Movement in Reserves Statement,
Authority Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
Authority Balance Sheet,
Authority Cash Flow Statement,
Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement and Collection Fund
and the related notes 1 to 34.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.
This report is made solely to the members of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, as a
body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and
for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities
of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments
Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Financial Officer
Responsibilities set out on page 82, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the
preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16, and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Authority’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Chief
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Financial Officer; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts
2015/16 to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
· give a true and fair view of the financial position of Welwyn Hatfield Borough
Council as at 31 March 2016 and of its expenditure and income for the year
then ended; and
· have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.
Opinion on other matters
In our opinion, the information given in the Statement of Accounts 2015/16 for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.
Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:
· in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent
with other information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the
Council;
· we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014;
· we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
· we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account
is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014;
· we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014; or
· we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
We have nothing to report in these respects.
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Conclusion on Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
Authority’s responsibilities
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of
Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (NAO) requires us to report to you
our conclusion relating to proper arrangements.
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from
concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to
consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice,
having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller
and Auditor General (C&AG) in November 2015, as to whether the Council had
proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that
necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves
whether the Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March
2016.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our
risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a
view on whether, in all significant respects, the Council had put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.
Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in
November 2015, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit
Office.

Neil Harris
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor
Luton
Date
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Appendix E – Management representation letter
25 July 2016
Mr N Harris
Executive Director
Ernst & Young
400 Capability Green
Luton
LU1 3LU
This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial
statements of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31
March 2016. We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the
information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form
an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Council financial position of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council as of 31 March 2016
and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with CIPFA
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2015/16.
We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), which involves an examination
of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you
considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor
necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other
irregularities, should any exist.
Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for
the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:
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A. Financial Statements and Financial Records
1.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with [the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.

2.

We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our responsibility
for the fair presentation of the financial statements. We believe the financial
statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance (or results of operations) and cash flows of the Council in
accordance with [the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16. We have approved the financial
statements.

3.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements.

4.

As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a
system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate
financial statements in accordance with [the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

5.

There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit and
pertaining to the latest period presented.
B. Fraud

1.

We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.

2.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

3.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving management
or other employees who have a significant role in the Council’s internal controls
over financial reporting. In addition, we have no knowledge of any fraud or
suspected fraud involving other employees in which the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial statements. We have no knowledge of any
allegations of financial improprieties, including fraud or suspected fraud,
(regardless of the source or form and including without limitation, any allegations
by “whistleblowers”) which could result in a misstatement of the financial
statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of the Council.

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations
1.

We have disclosed to you all identified or suspected non-compliance with laws
and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the
financial statements.
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D. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions
1.

We have provided you with:
·

Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and
other matters;

·

Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of
the audit; and

·

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined
it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.

3.

We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council and
Cabinet (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not
yet been prepared) held through the year to the most recent meeting on the
following date:
Council 11 July 2016
Cabinet 12 July 2016

4.

We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification
of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related
parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which we are
aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and
services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and
transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related
balances due to or from such parties at the year end. These transactions have
been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.

5.

We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

6.

We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or
other requirements of all outstanding debt.

E. Liabilities and Contingencies
1.

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees,
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements.

2.

We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims,
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3.

We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation
and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note 34 to the
financial statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.
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F. Subsequent Events
1.

Other than as described in Note 6 to the financial statements, there have been
no events subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in
the financial statements or notes thereto.

Yours sincerely,

_______________________
Director (Finance and Operations)
_______________________
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Appendix F – Required communications with the audit
committee
There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committee of UK clients. These
are detailed here:
Required communication

Reference

Planning and audit approach

Audit Plan

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, including any
limitations.
Audit Results Report

Significant findings from the audit
►

Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices
including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial
statement disclosures

►

Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

►

Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with
management

►

Written representations that we are seeking

►

Expected modifications to the audit report

►

Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting
process

Going concern

Audit Results Report

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, including:
►

Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

►

Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements

►

The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Misstatements

Audit Results Report

►

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion

►

The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods

►

A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected

►

In writing, corrected misstatements that are significant

Fraud
►

Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

►

Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that
indicates that a fraud may exist

►

A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

We have made enquiries of
management. We have not
becaome aware of any fraud or
illegal acts during our audit.

Related parties
Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s
related parties including, when applicable:
►

Non-disclosure by management

►

Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions

►

Disagreement over disclosures

►

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

►

Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity
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Required communication

Reference

External confirmations

Audit Results Report. We were
unable to obtain direct confirmations
from the Council’s bankers of bank
balances. We undertook alternaitve
procedures in order to obtain the
evidence we require.

►

Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations

►

Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other
procedures

Consideration of laws and regulations
►

Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is
material and believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to
compliance with legislation on tipping off

►

Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial
statements and that the audit committee may be aware of

Independence
Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s
objectivity and independence

We have not identified any material
instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations.

Audit Plan and Audit Results
Report

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s
consideration of independence and objectivity such as:
►

The principal threats

►

Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

►

An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

►

Information about the general policies and process within the firm to
maintain objectivity and independence

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit

Audit Results Report

Fee Information
►

Breakdown of fee information at the agreement of the initial audit plan

Audit Plan

►

Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

Audit Results Report
Annual Audit Letter if
considered necessary
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Agenda Item 11
Part I
Item No: 0
Main author: Jane Çika
Executive Member: Duncan Bell
All Wards
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 25TH JULY 2016
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (FINANCE & OPERATIONS)
2015/16 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
1

Executive Summary

1.1

The Statement of Accounts for the financial year 2015/16 is presented for
approval by this committee following conclusion of the external audit.

1.2

There were no significant changes to the accounting policies for the 2015/16
accounts.

1.3

The contents of the accounts are largely determined by statutory requirements
and mandatory professional standards as set out within The Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting (The Code) and the Service Reporting Code of
Practice (SeRCOP) published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA).

1.4

Overall the production of the accounts and final audit work has gone well and
been delivered eleven days earlier than prior year. There are no uncorrected
misstatements that remain in the audited accounts.

1.5

There were a number of amendments to disclosures which will be included in the
final accounts.

1.6

It is acknowledged that the Council is one of the first authorities in the country to
conclude its audit process and present the final Statement of Accounts to the
Audit committee for approval during July.

1.7

Members should note that the 2015/16 accounts are presented with an
unqualified opinion. There were no material changes to the accounts.

1.8

A copy of the letter of representation, which includes areas where the auditors
have relied on management’s judgement, is given at Appendix A.

2

Recommendation(s)

2.1

That the Committee approve the audited Statement of Accounts for 2015/16 and
the accounting policies within it, Appendix B, and the Chairman of this committee
signs the Statement as approval.

2.2

That the Committee approves the letter of representation at Appendix A and the
Chairman signs the letter.
Implications

3

Financial Implication(s)
- 155
Page

3.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

4

Link to Corporate Priorities

4.1

I confirm that the subject of this report is linked to a statutory requirement, under
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

5

Legal Implication(s)

5.1

The Director (Finance & Operations) has the powers within the Council’s financial
procedure rules to amend and update the accounting policies; the role of the
Audit Committee is to consider and approve the Council’s Statement of
Accounts.

5.2

There is a statutory requirement to publish the approved and audited Statement
of Accounts by 30 September each year.

6

Climate Change Implication(s)

6.1

None

7

Risk Management Implications

7.1

There is a risk that the Statement of Accounts fails to meet regulatory and
professional standards or timetables. The potential impacts include qualification
of the Statement of Accounts and/or balances on accounts may be uncertain.
Members should note that effective controls have been put in place (e.g. staff
training) to minimise the likelihood of occurrence.

8

Equality and Diversity

8.1

There are no specific equalities issues. The Statement is made widely available
and accessible

Name of author
Title
Date

Jane Çika
Finance Manager
14th July 2016

Background papers
CIPFA – Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
(Guidance Notes for Practitioners 2015/16 Accounts)
CIPFA – Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16
CIPFA SERCOP 2015/16 - Service Reporting Code of Practice
List of Appendices
Appendix A – Letter of Representation
Appendix B - Statement of Accounts 2015/16

- 256
Page

Pam Kettle
Director (Finance and Operations)
Reply To: address as below
Direct Tel: 01707 357275
Fax: 01707 357330
Email: p.kettle@welhat.gov.uk

Mr. Neil Harris
Director
Ernst & Young LLP
400 Capability Green
Luton
Bedfordshire
LU1 3LU

July 2016

Dear Neil
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL –
AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION
This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 March 2016. We recognise
that obtaining representations from us concerning the information contained in this letter is a
significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the Council financial position of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council as of 31 March
2016 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.
We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to express an opinion
thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland), which involves an examination of the accounting system, internal control and
related data to the extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to
identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities,
should any exist.
Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our knowledge and
belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately
informing ourselves:
A. Financial Statements and Financial Records
1.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the preparation
of the financial statements in accordance with [the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.

2.

We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our responsibility for the fair
presentation of the financial statements. We believe the financial statements referred to above
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (or results of operations)
and cash flows of the Council in accordance with [the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16. We have approved the financial
statements.
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3.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are
appropriately described in the financial statements.

4.

As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a system of internal
controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with
the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2015/16 that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

5.

There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit and pertaining to the
latest period presented.

B.

Fraud

1.

We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.

2.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

3.

We have no knowledge of any fraud involving management or other employees who have a
significant role in the Council internal controls over financial reporting. However, Officers are
currently investigating certain payments to a third party in respect of work purportedly carried out
for the Council. The total value is less than £25,000. In addition, we have no knowledge of any
fraud or suspected fraud involving other employees in which the fraud could have a material
effect on the financial statements. We have no knowledge of any allegations of financial
improprieties, including fraud or suspected fraud, (regardless of the source or form and including
without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”) which could result in a misstatement of the
financial statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of the Council.

C.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

1.

We have disclosed to you all identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

D.

Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1.

We have provided you with:


Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;



Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and



Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

2.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

3.

We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council and Cabinet (or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared) held
through the year to the most recent meeting on the following date:
Council 11 July 2016
Cabinet 12 July 2016
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4.

We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of related
parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and all related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans,
transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary
transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related
balances due to or from such parties at the year end. These transactions have been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.

5.

We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including
those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

6.

We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of contractual
agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

E.

Liabilities and Contingencies

1.

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or
oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

2.

We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or not they
have been discussed with legal counsel.

3.

We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation and claims,
both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements all
guarantees that we have given to third parties.

F.

Subsequent Events

1.

Other than as described in Note 6 to the financial statements, there have been no events
subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or
notes thereto.

Yours sincerely

___________________________
Director (Finance and Operations)

___________________________
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Statement of Accounts 2015/16

Narrative Report

Narrative Report
of the Director (Finance & Operations)
Financial Year ended 31st March 2016
Dear Reader,
I am pleased to present the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Statement of Accounts for the financial
year 2015/16, and I hope you will find them of interest.
Given that the Council continues to operate in challenging financial times, it is pleasing to report that
the Council’s financial standing remains strong, with sound financial management practices and
controls.
We continue to produce our accounts earlier each year in preparation for the new statutory deadline
that will be in place for the 2017/18 financial year. By doing this the Council is able to report to all its
stakeholders at the earliest opportunity and then focus on the financial challenges and strategies for
future years.
My narrative report this year is expanded to include some additional information. It continues to
include the financial statements with an overall explanation of the Council’s financial position both
during 2015/16 and into 2016/17 and information about the operation of the Council and the major
influences affecting the accounts. In addition it covers information on service and financial
performance over the financial year ending 31st March 2016, risks and community engagement. All
this information is given with the aim of providing all stakeholders and interested parties assurance as
to the Council’s sound financial standing and that public money been properly accounted for.
The narrative report is presented under the following headings:
1. About Welwyn Hatfield
2. About Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
3. Our Vision
4. Our Priorities
5. How your Council is performing
6. Financial Overview of 2015/16
7. A Summary of the Council’s Financial Performance in 2015/16
8. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/17 to 2018/19
9. Explanation of the Financial Statements
10. Corporate and Strategic Risks
11. Community Engagement and Feedback
12. Further Information

2

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Narrative Report

1. About Welwyn Hatfield
•

The borough is located in central
Hertfordshire covering an area of
approximately 130 square kilometres.

•

It contains the two new towns of Hatfield
and Welwyn Garden City (WGC) plus
eight other large villages and settlements.
Around 75 per cent of its population live
in the two main towns.

The borough offers good employment
opportunities with 1.07 jobs available
for every working age resident.

•

The estimated population is just
over 114,000.

•

•

There is a significant student population
with the University of Hertfordshire in
Hatfield and two college campuses,
Oaklands College in WGC and the Royal
Veterinary College in North Mymms.

Health and quality of life is
generally good, with life expectancy
recorded at well above the national
averages for males and females.

•

It is well connected to other towns
and cities, including London, by road
and rail.

2. About Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council
• We are one of ten borough and
district councils in Hertfordshire.

•

• We provide a wide range of local
services for people in the borough.

Our housing stock and some other
community services are managed by
Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing
Trust.

• We also work with commercial
partners who provide local services
on our behalf.

• We are represented by 48 councillors
in 16 wards, directly elected to serve
four year terms of office.
• We directly employ over 200 full
time equivalent employees.
• We work with and support partners
such as the police, parish and town
councils and the Welwyn Hatfield
Alliance to provide local services.

3
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3. Our Vision
Our vision sets out what we aim to
achieve. It is:
To make Welwyn Hatfield a great place to
live, work and

study with a vibrant,

growing economy.

4. Our Priorities
Our vision is achieved by working with our
partners, businesses and residents
towards our five key priorities. These are:
1. Maintain a safe and healthy community
-

Work with partners to keep people safe

- Allow for sustainable growth that
protects our environment and
heritage
4.
Help build a strong
economy

local

- Help improve and maintain the health
and wellbeing of residents

- Promote the borough as an
attractive place in which to invest

- Provide for a wide variety of leisure
covering arts, culture, fitness and sport

- Revitalise our town centres and
other shopping areas

2. Protect and enhance the environment

5. Engage with our communities
and provide value for money

- Keep our streets clean and work with
residents to reduce litter

- Deliver value for money

- Improve recycling rates and reduce the
amount of waste going to landfill
-

Maintain and improve our green spaces

-

Deliver effective parking services

- Provide
service

outstanding

customer

- Ensure fair and open access for
our diverse community

3. Meet the borough’s housing needs

- Effectively communicate what we
do

- Plan for the housing needs of our
communities

Each year we develop and publish
an action plan with targets that we
use to measure our performance
against these priorities.

- Increase the supply of new, affordable
homes
- Effectively manage the borough’s
housing stock
4
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Maintain a safe and
healthy community
• Upgraded 15 CCTV cameras and installed

5. How your
council is
performing

new equipment at King George V
Playing Fields and Stanborough Park.
• Organised Play Day at Stanborough Park
for 8,500 people to enjoy free activities
for all the family.
• Delivered new disabled facilities at
Gosling Sports Park, Hatfield Swim Centre
and Stanborough Park to further promote
disability sport.

We have developed five key priorities to
reflect local needs and this is what we
measure our performance against. We aim
to deliver good quality, low cost services
and here are just some
of our achievements for 2015/16.

• Completed over 60 food inspections,

More details about the Council’s performance
and plans can be found on our website:
www.welhat.gov.uk/performance

14 revisits and issued 29 hygiene
improvement notices.

Protect and enhance the
environment
• Investigated 500 cases of flytipping, resulting in 100 enforcement
actions.
• Planted or replaced around 300
urban street trees.
• Redeveloped 2 play areas in Welwyn
Garden City and Hatfield.
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Meet the borough’s housing needs
• Delivered more than 50
Homes via the Council’s
affordable Housing
Programme, including 17
new homes on former
garage sites
•50 local letting agents
joined our landlord
accreditation scheme, PAL,

ensuring their 1,384
rental properties are
competently managed
and well maintained.
• Received nearly 6,000
responses to our
consultation on the
Local Plan, a blue print
for growth on the
borough.

Engage with our
communities and
provide value for
money

Help build a strong
local economy
• A record 8,500 votes were cast in
the Welwyn Garden City
Awards, encouraging residents to
shop locally.

• Developed a balanced budget for the
year ahead, delivering a further
£1.1m of savings, while continuing
to protect
services and freeze council tax.

• Provided food hygiene training
sessions to 175 food handlers in
local businesses.

• Completed a new-look reception area
for both the council and Housing
Trust, including self-service PC’s to
make it easier for customers visiting
us.

• Completed 8 shop makeovers
and refits in Hatfield town centre.
• Delivered 16 free events for the
community in both town centres.

• Distributed 3 issues of Life magazine
to all 47,000 households in the
borough
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6. Financial Review of 2015/16
The Budget and Council Tax for 2015/16 was set by full Council in February 2015 in the context of the
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015/16 to 2017/18 and the overall Business Plan 2015-2018.
The budget set out the detailed financial plans for the authority in its Revenue and Capital budgets for the
2015/16 year.
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council has frozen its Council Tax since 2010/11, and this means residents
have had six financial years with no increase in the Band D equivalent or £196.61. Over the six financial
years to and including 2015/16, the delivery of this council tax freeze has been supported through a Council
Tax Freeze Grant.
As the Government continues to reduce funding to Local Government, the Council set its budget in order
to respond to these financial challenges and each year these challenges get harder to achieve. The focus
of the Council in order to achieve these savings has remained on driving out inefficiency whilst also
embracing new processes and allowing investment in front line services and, in 2015/16 we have
successfully implemented our savings and also contributed to our reserves due to additional income and
under spending of £1.65m.
In 2015/16 the Council had a General Fund Budget of £15.51m. The Council Tax requirement for the
borough was £7.66m, with a parish precept of £1.50m, giving a total Council Tax requirement of £9.16m.
The remaining income comes from government grant and Non-domestic Rates. The budget included
general fund savings of £1.65m but growth was required of £1.71m, due to redirected budgets reflecting
the amended priorities set in the Sustainable Community Strategy and changing demands on services.
The final general fund outturn was £13.53m and we had also received during the year Non-Domestic rates
of £0.84m greater than we had anticipated.
In addition the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget was £52.86m with a planned use of balances of
£1.99m. The final HRA outturn position was underspent by £3.61m, which increased balances by £1.63m.
At 31st March 2016 the Council has £1,000m of Non-Current Assets on its balance sheet, of which £900m
relates to the HRA Council Dwellings. The net value of these assets increased by £150m over the year of
which £20m was due to capital expenditure and the remainder due to valuation increases.
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7.

A Summary of the Council’s Financial Performance in 2015/16

7.1

Revenue Outturn

The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s spending and financing in line with accounting and
statutory requirements. The financial position of the Council is very robust and has sound financial
management.
The outturn for 2015/16 is a contribution to reserves of £1.65m, which compares to an original budgeted
drawdown from reserves of £0.01m, and so represents a favourable variance of £1.66m overall.
The below table/chart shows the services budgeted and outturn net expenditure.

Service

Original Budget

Actual

Variance

£000

£000

£000

Head of Law and Admin

1,709

1,433

275

Head of Public Health and Protection

1,533

1,487

47

Director (Governance)

3,242

2,920

322

470

(15)

486

Head of Environment

6,147

5,523

624

Director (Finance and Operations)

6,617

5,508

1,109

Head of Planning

2,451

2,360

91

Head of Policy and Culture

2,947

3,375

(605)

Head of Housing and Community

2,290

3,393

(927)

Director (Strategy and Development)

7,688

9,128

(1,450)

826

153

673

Net Operating Expenditure

18,373

17,709

673

Capital Financing and Net Interest Costs

(2,859)

(4,183)

1,324

Total Net Expenditure

15,514

13,526

1,988

Grant Income

(1,843)

(1,917)

74

Formula Grant

(2,167)

(2,167)

0

Localised NDR

(2,282)

(3,631)

1,349

Council Tax

(9,164)

(9,164)

0

Surplus on the Collection Fund

(1,363)

(855)

(508)

Total Funding

(16,819)

(17,734)

915

Net Outturn

(1,305)

(4,208)

2,903

Parish Precepts

1,502

1,502

0

Net Contribution (from)/to Earmarked Reserves

(186)

1,056

(1,242)

11

(1,650)

1,661

Head of Resources

Chief Executive

Funded by:

Net (Increase)/Decrease in General Fund Balance
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The final outturn variance is a contribution to general fund reserves of £1.65m and exceeds the forecast
drawdown of reserves by the same amount. Additional income was generated and less expenditure
required than budgeted for the year. The significant variances during the financial year include:
-

£0.80m additional income net of expenditure including, estates and garages rents, parking income,
and additional refuse subsidy from Hertfordshire County Council

-

£0.38m employee expenditure savings, including transfers of salaries to capital projects

-

£0.30m savings on supplies and services expenditure

-

£0.26m corporate projects expenditure committed and planned to be spent in 2016/17

In addition, there is a £1.1m contribution to earmarked reserves during the year due to £0.8m additional
business rates grant funding under section 31 of the Local Government Finance Act 2003, and £0.3m less
funding required to fund one off growth items. Of the planned savings of £1.65m, £1.47m was achieved
and of the £1.71m growth, £1.04m was spent.

7.2

Housing Revenue Account Outturn

The Council is legally obliged to hold separate accounts for the running of its housing stock. The balance
at the end of 2015/16 was £13.90m.
A comparison of actual spending during the year and the original budget is summarised below.
The Housing Revenue Account outturn was £1.62m contribution to balances, compared to a budgeted
drawdown of £1.98m.
Original Budget
£000
Income
Expenditure
HRA Share of Corporate Democratic Core
Net Cost of Services
Less Statutory Items Expenditure
Net (Increase)/Decrease in HRA Balance

Actual
£000

Variance
£000

(52,860)

(52,626)

(234)

8,457

13,056

(4,599)

486

486

0

(43,917)

(39,084)

(4,833)

45,902

37,458

8,444

1,985

(1,626)

3,611

The main reasons for the contribution to balances are as follows:- £1.37m reduced expenditure on supervision and management costs and special services costs in
the Housing Revenue Account service
-

£1.11m reduced contribution to capital programme due to lower funding required in 2015/16 capital
budgets rolled into 2016/17.

-

£0.85m reduced expenditure on repairs and maintenance costs of the housing stock

-

£0.24m reduced bad debt provision required than budgeted, leading to a favourable variance to
budget

-

£0.14m additional interest income due to higher than anticipated cash balances
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7.3

Capital Outturn

The total capital expenditure in the 2015/16 financial year was £23.50m, compared with a budget of
£32.34m (after budgets rolled forward), resulting in a favourable underspend of £8.84m.

Service

Original Budget

Actual

£000

£000

Variance
£000

Law and Admin

0

0

0

Public Health and Protection

0

19

(19)

Governance (Directorate)

0

19

(19)

3,866

4,851

(985)

295

628

(333)

4,161

5,479

(1,318)

350

85

265

2,035

112

1,923

Housing and Community

25,793

17,806

7,987

Strategy & Development Directorate

28,178

18,003

10,175

0

0

0

32,339

23,501

8,838

Capital Grants

398

743

(345)

Internal Borrowing

946

2,421

(1,475)

6,950

5,533

1,417

Affordable Housing Reserves

12,824

6,047

6,777

Major Repairs Reserve

12,167

11,178

989

Total Funding Received

33,285

25,922

7,363

(946)

(2,421)

1,475

Resources
Environment
Finance & Operations Directorate
Planning
Policy and Culture

Chief Executive
Capital Expenditure Outturn
Funded by:-

Capital Receipts

Transfer from/(to) Capital Reserves and Borrowing

The main projects delivered during the year include: 

£1.64m of expenditure on the Campus East Offices plus £0.362M Council Chamber. This project
has converted two courtyards in the Council’s office accommodation into extended office space to
accommodate the Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust, and a Council Chamber in the same
premises to allow for future revenue savings.



£1.71m of expenditure on the Hatfield Town Centre regeneration projects, including regenerating
the arcade and white lion square and flats above the square.



£6.04m of expenditure on the Affordable Housing Programme. This programme is to maintain the
number of housing stock at a level that enables the council to meet its requirements to provide
affordable housing.



£11.18m of capital expenditure on the Housing stock including renovations, aids and adaptations,
and utility replacement schemes.
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7.4

Balance Sheet

The Council has maintained a very strong balance sheet, with £1,022.44m of Non-Current Assets as at
31st March 2016 and current assets of £54.88m, current liabilities of £30.24m, and long term liabilities of
£299.18m, including HRA self-financing borrowing of £265.40m and pension liabilities of £43.05m.
Furthermore, the Council has usable reserves of £60.20m.
As at 31 March 2016

As at 31 March 2015

£000

£000

Non-current Assets
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Net Assets

1,022,434

863,842

54,886

61,172

(30,244)

(33,697)

(299,176)

(318,896)

747,900

572,421

60,207

55,833

687,693

516,587

Represented by
Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves

The key movements during the year relate to valuation increases on the HRA Council Dwelling assets.
There was an increase in the estimated value of our Housing stock as at 1st April 2015 by £159m.
Since the transition to HRA self-financing, implemented on 1st April 2012, the HRA has now reduced its
Public Works Loan Board debt from £305m to £265m as at 31st March 2016.
The Pension deficit has reduced by £6.37m during the financial year.

7.5

Pensions Liability

This year the pension fund deficit has reduced from £49.42m to £43.05m during the year. The decreased
deficit is mainly due to £7.00m in actuarial gains arising in the change in financial assumptions, mostly
related to the increased discount rate. In addition the authority has made contributions to the fund of
£0.89m towards the ongoing liability.
The pension liability has a significant effect on the net worth of the Council; however, our annual
contributions to the fund and the statutory arrangements for funding the deficit over time means that the
financial position of the authority remains healthy.
The Triennial pension valuation took place in March 2016. The impact of this will be known by September
2016, and will be reviewed in light of the budget setting processes ahead of the 2017/18 financial year.

7.8

Borrowing and Capital Financing

The Authority currently has £265m borrowing outstanding relating to the Self Financing Transfer of HRA
Housing Stock debt that transferred on 1st April 2012. There is scope for borrowing up to the limit of £305m.
There has been no borrowing entered into or redeemed early during 2015/16.
The Capital Programme for 2016/17 to 2020/21 has been agreed by Council on the 7th March 2016. This
outlined the capital expenditure planned of £29.97m for 2016/17 and £83.35m for the following four years.

7.9

Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets.

Changes include adjustments an additional provision of £0.16m for NNDR appeals, based on the appeals
lodged with the Valuation Office as at 31 March 2016.
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7.10 Significant changes in accounting policies
The accounts for 2015/16 are presented in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) which specifies the principles and practices of accounting
required to give a ‘true and fair’ view of the financial position and the transactions of a local authority.
The Code sets out the proper accounting practices required by section 21(2) of the Local Government Act
2003. These proper practices apply to the Statement of Accounts prepared in accordance with the statutory
framework established for England by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.
The 2015/16 Code incorporates a number of accounting standard amendments. IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement – the definition of fair value has been revised to ‘fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date’. Surplus asset and investment property is now required to be valued at ‘best’ use
taking into account the condition and location of the assets and any restriction on the sale of the asset.
This has been applied prospectively from 1st April 2015 to all surplus and investment assets.
There were a small number of other amendments in the annual improvements of the International Financial
Reporting Standards Cycle 2011-13. These have not had a material impact on these accounts.

7.11 Economic Climate
Since 2010 the Council has identified approximately £11m of efficiency savings to meet budget gaps
caused by the reduction in funding received from Central Government. There are a number of changes
pending to local government funding that will impact the Councils finances over time.
These include:
 New Homes Bonus. Consultation has occurred and we are anticipating a decision regarding the
changes to that funding stream during the 2016/17 financial year. This income in 2015/16 equated
to £1.73m.
 Government has proposed that by 2020 local government will retain 100% of business rates
revenue to fund local services. At this time there are three main elements being considered in the
scope of the review. The outcome of the review could have a significant impact to the funding of
the Council.

7.12 Events after the Reporting Date
Following the majority vote to end the UK’s membership of the European Union (EU) in the EU Referendum
held on 23 June 2016 there is a heightened level of volatility in the financial markets and increased
macroeconomic uncertainty in the UK. All three major rating agencies (S&P, Fitch and Moody’s) took
action on the UK Sovereign credit rating. The Council manages its investments following a clear Treasury
Strategy. Section 14 of the notes to the accounts which deals with Financial Instruments clearly highlights
how well the authority is protected against currency fluctuations in the short to medium term. There is
likely to be an impact on our investment property valuations if confidence in the wider UK property market
falls; and the valuation of defined benefit pension obligations may also be affected. It is too early to
estimate the quantum of any impact on the financial statements, and there is likely to be significant ongoing
uncertainty for a number of months while the UK renegotiates its relationships with the EU and other
nations. For the purposes of these financial statements, the Referendum is considered a non-adjusting
event. There have been no other events occurring after the reporting date that would have a material
impact on these financial statements.
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7.13 Collection Fund Rates for Council Tax and National-Non Domestic Rates
The collection rates achieved during 2015/16 were higher than budgeted as summarised below:Collection Rate 2015/16

Budget

Actual

Council Tax

97.70%

98.08%

NNDR

99.10%

99.29%

7.14 Non-Current Asset Revaluation
The Council appointed Carter Jonas LLP to carry out a desk top valuation of a proportion of the General
Fund assets in 2015/16.
The District Valuer was appointed to carry out a full valuation of the Housing Revenue Account’s housing
stock as at 1st April 2016, including an assessment of significant components.
The impact of these valuations is reported within the notes to these accounts.

8. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/17 – 2018/19
The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for 2016/17 to 2018/19 was agreed by full Council in
February 2016. This strategy sets out how the Council plans to transition from the government funding it
has been receiving to the reduced the levels expected as a result of the Finance Settlement.
The MTFS sets out the Council’s strategy for maintaining financial stability and a commitment to provide
the best possible value for money for the community.
The council is in a strong financial position with revenue reserves of £8.3m at the end of 2015/16, £1.1m
higher than expected when the MTFS was agreed in February 2016, and a HRA Balance of £13.9m.
This is a direct result of robust financial management. However, in line with other local authorities, the
Council is facing a continued period of severe financial constraints over the medium term as the
reductions of central government grant persist.
The Council is required to find a further £3.3m of savings on the general fund by 2018/19 in order to live
within its means and maintain a reasonable cushion in reserves. This is a significant challenge and whilst
the focus remains on safeguarding services it will not be possible to find efficiencies of this magnitude
and guarantee no impact upon frontline services. The budget for 2016/17 includes the identification of
£1.1million of efficiencies towards the target of £3.3million.
The current healthy general fund reserve balance provides an opportunity for some longer term planning
and delivery of significant transformational projects to help deliver the savings target. Initial estimates
suggest an ongoing £1.5m of savings can be found from the projects already identified. Working in this
planned way should reduce the need for hasty cuts to services in order to balance the budget over the
medium term.
Despite the challenging environment, the Council seeks to maintain a low Council Tax by reducing costs,
sharing good practice, simplifying delivery processes and shrinking the Council’s administration cost.
However, it is possible that the proposed changes in the local government finance system could have a
detrimental impact on the ability of the Council to maintain council tax at the current level.
The government’s announced rent reduction programme and other housing related government policy
proposals do create challenges for the sustainability of the HRA over the medium term. A savings
programme is being developed to offset the direct reduction in rents but further changes will be required
to meet the current debt repayment schedule.
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There remain a number of uncertainties and risks to the Council’s finances in the medium term, the
details of which are contained within this strategy. The Council will continue to experience pressure on
services arising from demographic and government policy changes and continued high expectations of
service delivery. We will keep our MTFS under review and make changes accordingly to reflect the
rapidly changing local government environment.

9. Explanation of the Financial Statements
Movement in Reserves statement
The movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council is shown in this statement. This is
analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation)
and other reserves. The 'surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost
of providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the
General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account for Council Tax setting and dwellings rent setting
purposes. The 'Net increase/decrease before transfers to earmarked reserves' line shows the statutory
General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to or
from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The Council raises
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting
cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves statement.

Balance Sheet
The value at the end of the reporting period (i.e. 31st March) of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
authority are shown on the balance sheet. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are
matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories.
o

Usable reserves - those reserves that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the
need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example
the capital receipts reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).

o

Unusable reserves - those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category
of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the revaluation
reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold;
and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
“Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”.

Cash flow statement
This statement shows the movement in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by
classifying cash flows as operating, investing or financing activities.
The net cash flow arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations
of the authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided
by the authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for
resources which are intended to contribute to the authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising
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from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e.
borrowing) to the Council.

Notes to the core financial statements
The notes provide support to the core financial statements, inform the reader and give sufficient information
to present a good understanding of the Council’s activities

Statement of accounting policies
These set out the principles, rules, conventions and practices applied that specify how the effects of
transactions and other events are reflected in the accounts.

Supplementary financial statements:
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Income and Expenditure statement
The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing housing
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded
from rents and government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with
regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost.
The increase or decrease in the year on the basis on which rents are raised is shown in the Movement on
the Housing Revenue Account Statement.

The Collection Fund
The Collection Fund (England) is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing
authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government
of council tax and non-domestic rates.

Notes to the supplementary financial statements
The notes provide support to the core financial statements; inform the reader and give sufficient information
to present a good understanding of the Council’s activities. The notes are part of the detail that helps to
ensure the statements show a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position.
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10.

Corporate and Strategic Risks

The council continues to operate in a challenging environment. We are a complex organisation,
delivering on a range of priorities for our communities against a backdrop of tighter finances and the
need to continuously improve efficiency and customer focus. We work to deliver our priorities in
partnership with many organisations across the public, private and third sectors.
Within this context the management of risk, including opportunity risk, is essential to ensure the
achievement of our objectives. The effective management of risk is a statutory requirement and is also a
central component of the council’s governance.
A planned approach to the identification, analysis and mitigation of risk helps to plan for the right balance
between innovation and change, and the avoidance of unexpected risk events.
A risk management strategy is in place for the Council’s risks are managed under two main areas of
strategic and operational risks. The current top risks from the council’s risk register include those outlined
below:Risk Description
Effective communication with the community.

Delivering services in the event of a disruption,
or responding to an emergency affecting the
borough.
Engaging with stakeholders and residents to
set council priorities.

Council finances may come under further
pressure from increased demands on services,
reduced government funding and potentially
insufficient reserves.
Maintaining robust governance arrangements,
including
anti-fraud
and
corruption,
whistleblowing, standards and ethics and risk
management.

Having a Local Plan that sets out an approved
strategy to deliver sustainable growth, and
which balances the demand for development
with protection of the environment.
Effectively managing the performance of the
council’s activities.

Council projects need to be managed in terms
of deadlines, budgets, resources and the
resolution of complex unforeseen issues.

Mitigations
Communications plans are in place, and we have
a skilled communications team. Customer surveys
and consultations are regularly carried out.
Business continuity, disaster recovery and
emergency plans are in place and reviewed
regularly. Staff are trained for their roles and the
council has a dedicated resilience function.
There is a programme of community engagement
activities and customer surveys, including our
Borough Panel and the Local Strategic
Partnership.
We exercise sound budgetary control at all levels
and have a robust set of policies, procedures,
regulations and internal controls to ensure
effective management is exercised.
The Constitution and associated polices,
procedures and codes of conduct define our
governance framework. We have robust overview,
scrutiny and standards arrangements and
dedicated officers in respect of Freedom of
information and data Protection.
The Local Plan is underpinned by extensive
evidence and there are arrangements for public
scrutiny and a public examination by an
independent Planning Inspector.
Performance management permeates all levels of
the organisation. Quarterly performance clinics
are held to enable proper scrutiny of performance
and these are reported to Cabinet. All employees
have their own performance managed through an
appraisal process.
Procurement is in accordance with our own
Contract Procedure Rules. Projects are delivered
using appropriately skilled and experienced teams,
and good governance is exercised.
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11.

Community Engagement and Feedback

The council welcomes the views of local residents, businesses, user groups, and other stakeholders about
the Council’s performance. There are also a number of qualitative performance indicators that assist in
explaining how the council’s services are perceived by its users.
Further information about the Council’s performance can be found on our website at the following link:http://www.welhat.gov.uk/performance

12.

Further Information

If you would like to receive further information about these accounts, please do not hesitate to
contact me at accountancy@welhat.gov.uk or 01707 357000

Pam Kettle CPFA
Director (Finance & Operations)
25th July 2016
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Movement in Reserves Statement
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure
or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The 'surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the council's services, more
details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General
Fund Balance and the Housing Revenue Account for council tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The 'net increase /decrease before transfers to earmarked
reserves' line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves
undertaken by the council.
Movem ent in reserves during 2015/16

Note
Balance at 1 April 2015
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Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of
services (accounting basis)
Other comprehensive income and
expenditure
Total com prehensive incom e and
expenditure
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations
Net increase/ decrease before
transfers to earm arked reserves
Transfers to/ from earmarked reserves

7

8

General

Earm arked

Housing

Housing

Capital

Capital

Total

Unusable

Total

Fund

GF

Revenue

Major Repairs

Grants

Receipts

Usable

Reserves

Council

Balance

Reserves

Account

Reserve

Unapplied

Reserve

Reserves

Reserves

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

6,319

1,138

12,275

3,694

845

31,562

55,833

516,587

572,421

(5,623)

-

32,559

-

-

-

26,936

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

148,543

148,543

(5,623)

-

32,559

-

-

-

26,936

148,543

175,479

8,329

-

(30,933)

(225)

(138)

405

(22,562)

22,562

2,706

-

1,626

(225)

(138)

405

4,374

171,105

175,479

(225)

(138)

405

4,374

171,105

175,479

-

-

26,936

-

(1,055)

1,055

Increase/(decrease) in 2015/16

1,651

1,055

1,626

-

Balance at 31 March 2016

7,970

2,193

13,901

3,469

707

31,967

60,207

687,692

747,900

707

31,967

36,143

729,832

765,975

-

24,064

(42,139)

(18,075)

31,967

60,207

687,693

747,900

Purpose analysis
Capital
Revenue
Balance at 31 March 2016

-

-

-

3,469

7,970

2,193

13,901

-

7,970

2,193

13,901

3,469

707
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Movem ent in reserves during 2014/15

General

Note
Balance at 1 April 2015
Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of
services (accounting basis)
Other comprehensive income and
expenditure
Total com prehensive incom e and
expenditure
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations
Net increase/ decrease before
transfers to earm arked reserves
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Transfers to/ from earmarked reserves
Increase/(decrease) in 2014/15
Balance at 31 March 2015

7

8

Earm arked

Housing

Housing

Capital

Capital

Fund

GF

Revenue

Balance

Reserves

Account

Total

Unusable

Major Repairs

Grants

Reserve

Unapplied

Receipts

Usable

Reserves

Reserve

Reserves

Total
Council
Reserves

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

5,490

1,007

11,270

2,457

1,059

25,550

46,833

445,042

491,877

(2,944)

-

35,153

-

-

-

32,209

-

32,209

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,334

48,334

(2,944)

-

35,153

-

-

-

32,209

48,334

80,543

3,904

-

(34,148)

1,237

(214)

6,012

(23,209)

23,209

-

960

-

1,005

1,237

(214)

6,012

9,000

71,543

80,543

(131)

131

-

-

829

131

1,005

1,237

(214)

6,012

9,000

71,543

80,543

6,319

1,138

12,275

3,694

845

31,562

55,833

516,585

572,420

845

31,562

36,101

564,400

600,503

-

19,732

(47,813)

(28,082)

31,562

55,833

516,587

572,421

Purpose analysis
Capital
Revenue
Balance at 31 March 2015

-

-

-

3,694

6,319

1,138

12,275

-

6,319

1,138

12,275

3,694

845
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure
in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost.
2015/16
Gross
Expenditure
Note
Central services to the public
Cultural and Related Services
Environmental and Regulatory Services
Planning Services
Highways and transport services
Housing general fund services
Housing HRA services
Adult social care
Corporate and democratic core
Non distributed costs
Cost of services
Other operating expenditure

Net
Expenditure

Net
Expenditure

9,097

£000
(1,277)
(2,628)
(2,002)

£000
1,118
4,308
7,096

£000
1,227
3,714
7,020

5,527
1,961
44,904
13,080
389
2,414
(101)
86,603

(5,819)
(1,898)
(40,728)
(52,651)
(81)
(20)
(107,103)

(292)
64
4,177
(39,571)
308
2,394
(101)
(20,499)

0
(77)
2,050
(42,244)
852
2,163
142
(25,154)

5,135

3,188

£000
2,395
6,936

9

Gross
Income

2014/15

Financing and investment income and expenditure

10

6,789

7,978

Taxation and non-specific grant income and
expenditure
(Surplus) or deficit on provision of services

11

(18,361)

(18,221)

(26,936)

(32,209)

19.1

(141,169)

(49,854)

19.5

304

33.2

(7,678)

1,520

Other comprehensive income and expenditure

(148,543)

(48,334)

Total comprehensive income and expenditure

(175,479)

(80,543)

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Property,
plant and equipment assets
(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of available-forsale financial assets
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability

-
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Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
authority. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council.
Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves - those reserves that the
authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory
limitations on their use (for example the capital receipts reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or
repay debt). The second category of reserves is unusable reserves - those that the authority is not able to use to
provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the
revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and
reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line “Adjustments between
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”.
Note
Property, plant and equipment
Heritage Assets
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Long-term investments
Long-term investments: available for sale
Long-term debtors
Long-term assets

12

Short-term investments
Short-term investments: available for sale
Inventories
Short-term debtors
Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets

14.1
14.1

Borrowing repayable with one year
Short-term creditors

14.1
17

13

15

15
16

Current liabilities
Provisions
Long-term borrowing - HRA Loan
Other long-term liabilities
Capital Grants Received in Advance
Long term liabilities

18
14.1
14.1 & 33.3
28

Net assets
General fund balance
Housing revenue account
Usable capital receipts reserve
Capital grants unapplied
Earmarked reserves
Housing major repairs reserve
Usable reserves
Revaluation reserve
Capital adjustments account
Deferred capital receipts

8

Accumulated Compensation Absence and
Employment Reserve
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve

31 March 2016
£000
1,000,758
73
6,729
388
4,250
5,737
4,499
1,022,434

845,738
77
6,345
322
4,250
3,071
4,039
863,842

9,012
14,200
41
8,254
23,379
54,886

20,039
8,022
49
7,585
25,477
61,172

(13,500)
(16,744)

(11,750)
(21,947)

(30,244)

(33,697)

(1,743)
(251,899)
(45,154)
(380)
(299,176)

(1,365)
(265,399)
(51,752)
(380)
(318,896)

747,900

572,421

7,970
13,901
31,967
707
2,193
3,469
60,207
254,223
471,664
3,945
(114)
(303)

Collection fund adjustment account
Pensions reserve
Unusable reserves

19

Total reserves

31 March 2015
£000

6,319
12,275
31,562
845
1,138
3,694
55,833
115,711
445,485
3,204
(112)
-

1,330
(43,051)
687,693

1,721
(49,422)
516,587

747,900

572,421
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Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash
flows as: operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities
is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services provided by the authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which
cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the authority’s future service
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by
providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Note
Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for noncash
movements
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision
of services that are investing and financing activities
Net cash flows from operating activities

2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

26,936

32,209

4,657

11,262

(10,932)

(17,848)

20,661

25,623

Investing activities

21

(8,379)

(14,419)

Financing activities

22

(14,380)

(5,388)

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(2,098)

5,816

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

25,477

19,661

23,379

25,477

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

16
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Notes to the Accounts
1. Accounting Policies
i.
General principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s financial transactions for the 2015/16 financial year and
its position at the year end of 31st March 2016. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit regulations 2015, and this requires the preparation to be in accordance
with Proper Accounting Practices.
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2015/16 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16, supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).
The Code of Practice requires that departures from recommended accounting policies are fully disclosed, and
the reasons for them explained, in local authority accounts.
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historic cost modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.
ii.
Accruals of income and expenditure
All transactions of the Council are accounted for in the year in which they take place, not simply when the cash
payments are made or received. In particular:







Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the Council
provides the relevant goods or services.
Supplies and services are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed, where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried as inventories on the
balance sheet.
Interest receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.
Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will
be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that
might not be collected; and
Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant service revenue account, unless they
properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure.

iii.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutes repayable without penalty on notice
of no more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in three calendar months or less from
the date of acquisition and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in
value.
In the Cash Flow statement cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Authorities cash management.
iv.
Exceptional items
When items of income and expenses are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either on
the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending
on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Authority’s financial performance.
v.
Prior period adjustments, changes in accounting policies and estimates and errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected
by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on
the Authority’s financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances
and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.
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Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances
and comparative amounts for the prior period.
vi.
Charges to revenue for Non Current Assets
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to
record the real cost of holding non-current assets during the year.




Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.
Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by services where there are no accumulated gains
in the revaluation reserve against which losses can be written off.
Amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisation. To neutralise the impact these are reversed out. This is achieved by an adjustment between the
Capital Adjustment Account and the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The Council is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall
borrowing requirement.
vii.

Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable during Employment
Short-term employee benefits (those falling due within 12 months of the year end) such as wages, salaries and
paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non monetary benefits for current employees, are considered as
an expense in the year in which the employee renders the service to the Authority.
An accrual is made against services in the surplus or deficit on the provision of service, for the cost of holiday
entitlement and other forms of leave earned by employees but not taken before the year end, and which may be
carried forward into the next financial year. Accruals are not made for immaterial costs in respect of outstanding
car mileage claims.
Any accrual made is required under statute to be reversed out of the general fund balance by a credit to the
Accumulated Compensation Absences Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council to
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. These costs are charged on an accruals basis to the
appropriate service or, where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the authority can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or
when Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council recognises costs for a restructuring.
Statutory provisions require the General Fund to be charged with the amount agreed to be payable to the
pension fund, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.
Post-employment Benefits
Employees of the Authority may be members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by
Hertfordshire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as employees working for Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. Further details are included in
the notes for the pension scheme.
The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme.
The liabilities of the Hertfordshire pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet
on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality
rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees.
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 3.4% at 31 March 2016
(based on indicative rate of return on yields available on Corporate Bonds based on the constituents of the
iBoxx Corporate AA index). At 31 March 2015 the discount rate was 3.1%.
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The assets of Hertfordshire pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at their
fair value:





quoted securities – current bid price
unquoted securities – professional estimate
unitised securities – current bid price
property – market value

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components:


Service cost comprising:
- current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year –
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the
employees worked
- past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of
Non Distributed Costs
- net interest on the net defined benefit liability, i.e. net interest expense for the Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council - the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from
the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.



Re-measurements comprising:
- the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
- actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have
not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure



Contributions paid to the Hertfordshire Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the
pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means
that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits
on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.
Discretionary Benefits
The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the
year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local
Government Pension Scheme.
viii.
Events after the Reporting Period
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types
of events can be identified:


those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Statement
of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events
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those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts
are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect,
disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
ix.

Financial Instruments and Financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost, these include creditors
and loans. Annual charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account for interest payable are
based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For
most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented on the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal repayable and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account is
the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. Where the financial liability is a short duration payable,
like creditors, with no stated interest rate an effective interest calculation has not been made.
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year of repurchase/settlement.
Financial Assets
The Council’s financial assets are classified into two types:



Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments, but are not quoted in an
active market
Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or
determinable payments.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount
of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council
has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable
and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account is the amount receivable for the
year in the loan agreement. For investments the measurement used is quoted market rates.
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due
under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Income and Expenditure
Account.
Any gains and losses that arise on de-recognition of an asset are credited/debited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Account.
Available-for-Sale Assets
Available-for-sale assets are initially measured and carried at fair value. Income (e.g. dividends) is credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council.
Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following techniques:



instruments with quoted market prices – the market price
other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three levels:




Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the authority can
access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset,
either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.
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Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is recognised
in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets.
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the
Available-for-Sale Reserve.
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment losses).
Instruments entered into before 1 April 2006
The Council entered into a number of financial guarantees that are not required to be accounted for as financial
instruments. These guarantees are reflected in the Statement of Accounts to the extent that provisions might
be required or a contingent liability note is needed.
x.
Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, or by instalments or in arrears, grants and third party contributions are recognised as
due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that the authority will comply with the conditions
attached to the payments, and the grant or contribution will be received.
Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations
regarding the use of the grant which if not met would render the grant returnable to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been met are carried as liabilities in
the Balance Sheet. When conditions are satisfied the item is credited to the appropriate service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account, they are reversed
out of the General Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used
to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account. Where it has been applied,
it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Account are transferred
to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied.
xi.
Interests in companies and other entities
From 1 April 2010 the Council has a wholly owned subsidiary (Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust).
However, when taking into account of materiality, the Housing Trust does not hold material assets for a group
account to be produced. Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust's (WHCHT) accounts are not grouped with
those of the Council for financial reporting purposes.
xii.
Long Term Contracts
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year.
xiii.
Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation. The definition is
not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held
for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at
which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties in an arm’s length transaction. Investment
Properties are not depreciated but are re-valued annually according to market conditions at the year end. Gains
and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.
Rentals received in relation to investment property are credited to the Financing and Investment line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, and result in a gain for the General Fund balance.
Revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on
the General Fund balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts
Reserve (for any sale where cash received is greater than £10,000.)
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xiv.
Joint Operations
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. The activities undertaken by the Authority
in conjunction with other joint operators involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint operators. In
relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Authority as a joint operator recognises:






its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly
its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly
its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation
its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation
its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

i.
Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operational leases.
Where a lease covers both land and buildings the land and building elements are considered separately for
classification.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for
payments are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
specific assets.
The Authority as Lessee
Finance leases
Property plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the balance sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the
lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset.
Lease payments are apportioned between:



A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant and equipment – applied to write down
the lease liability, and
A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the
assets estimated useful life.
The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising
on leased assets. Instead a prudent annual provision is made, if appropriate, from revenue towards the deemed
capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses
are therefore replaced by a revenue provision in the General Fund balance, by way of adjusting transactions
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.
Operating leases
Rentals paid under operational leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as an expense of the service benefiting from the use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are
made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease which generally means that rentals are charged when
they become payable.
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The Authority as Lessor
Finance leases
Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment lease rentals
receivable are apportioned between:
 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease debtor
(together with any premiums received), and
 finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).
Operating Leases
Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is
retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of
the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. if there is a premium paid at the
commencement of the lease.)
ii.
Overheads and support services
The cost of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or services based
on use and in accordance with CIPFA's Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16 (SeRCoP).
The total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are shared
between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:



Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the council’s status as a multifunctional, democratic
organisation
Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and any
depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-operational properties.

These two categories are defined in SeRCoP and accounted for as separate headings in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of net expenditure on continuing services.
iii.
Property Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial
year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accruals basis in the accounts. Expenditure in excess of £10,000 on non-current assets is capitalised – except
in the case of capital grants given to voluntary bodies and community chest payments when the limit is set at
£5,000, provided that the non-current asset yields benefits to the Council and the services it provides, for a
period of more than one year. This excludes expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of non-current
assets that is charged direct to service revenue accounts.
Where an element of staff time has been capitalised and the actual figures were not available an estimated has
been calculated based on the charges to date.
Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset
into working condition for its intended use.
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any consideration paid
is credited to the Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in
the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement
Assets are carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases:


Investment properties: open market value
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Council dwellings: existing use value for social housing basis i.e. 39% of market value
Property: surplus assets are included in the balance sheet at fair value, determined using the amount
that would be paid for the asset in its ‘best use’.
Property: other land and buildings are included in the balance sheet at current value, determined as
the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV)
Vehicles, plant and equipment: depreciated historic cost
Infrastructure assets: depreciated historic cost.
Community assets: depreciated historic cost.
Assets under construction: depreciated historic cost

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five
years. The last full valuation was carried out in March 2014 for General Fund assets, after which we have
started a rolling programme where approximately 20% of assets each year. The last full valuation for housing
revenue account assets was April 2015.
Increases in valuations are matched by credits in the revaluation reserve to recognise unrealised gains.
Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they
arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged to a service revenue account. Where
decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:



Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)
where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.
Fair Value
Investment assets and surplus assets (including assets held for sale) are held at fair value at the reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The transaction is assumed to take place either:



In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

This method should take the asset in its highest or best use.
There is a three level hierarchy for inputs into a fair value calculation:
 Level 1 – quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities e.g. bond prices
 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability e.g. interest rates
or yields for similar assets
 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability e.g. cash flow forecasts
Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that they may be impaired. Where
indications exist and any possible differences are estimated material, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the
shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as for decreases in value explained above.
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service lines in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.
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Non Current Assets Held for Sale
An asset is held for sale where the carrying amount of the asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continued use. The asset is re-valued immediately before reclassification and
then carried at the lower of this amount and the fair value less costs to sell.
The asset must be available for immediate sale, in its present condition. The sale must be highly probable with
management having initiated a plan to sell the asset and locate a buyer. The asset will not be subject to
depreciation. The asset held for sale will be recorded as a current asset rather than as Property Plant and
Equipment.
Disposals
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the balance sheet is written off to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
Receipts from disposals are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any
revaluation gains in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the capital adjustment account. Amounts in excess
of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of receipts relating to some housing disposals (75%
for dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the
government. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the capital receipts reserve, and can then only
be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow – the capital
financing requirement. Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account from the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for all property plant and equipment assets (other than land, certain community assets
and assets under construction) where a finite useful life has been determined. This is with the intention of writing
off their balance sheet values in equal annual instalments over their remaining expected useful lives. This is
commonly referred to as the ‘straight line’ method. Depreciation is charged from the end of the year following
the year of acquisition. Useful lives for asset types are shown in note 12.
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components, the cost of which is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. Where a component is replaced
or restored the carrying amount of the old component is derecognised to avoid double counting; the new
component is reflected in the carrying amount.
Componentisation does not apply to investment properties.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charge on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical
cost being transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to the capital adjustment account.
iv.
Rent to mortgage properties
The council’s equity interest in rent to mortgage property is assessed as current vacant possession value, based
on a beacon principle, less the remaining discount awarded but not taken. The asset is considered to be a long
term debtor and this is matched by a deferred capital receipt.
v.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation
that probably requires settlement by the transfer of economic benefit, where a reliable estimate can be made,
but where the timing of the transfer is uncertain. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that
could eventually result in the making of a settlement or payment of compensation.
The Council maintains a provision for the funding of the self-financed element of insurance claims. This provision
is funded through contributions from the relevant service revenue accounts.
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Provisions for bad or doubtful debts are separately disclosed against debtors on the Balance Sheet and are not
included in the provisions figure. They have been made within the accounts for expected losses of income in
respect of sums due but not received from debtors. Known uncollectible debts have been written off.
Provisions are charged to the appropriate revenue account and when payments for expenditure are incurred to
which the provision relates they are charged direct to the provision. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and if no longer required the provision is reversed.
Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a
note to the accounts.
vi.
Reserves
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement (MIRS). When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate
service revenue account in that year to count against the Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Account. The reserve is then appropriated back to the General Fund Balance in the MIRS so
that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, retirement benefits and
employee benefits. They do not represent usable resources for the Council.
Capital reserves are not available for revenue purposes and certain ones can only be used for specific statutory
purposes.




Capital Adjustment Account represents the balance of the surpluses or deficits arising from the periodic
revaluations of non-current assets and the amounts set aside from revenue or capital receipts to finance
expenditure on non-current assets and certain other capital financing transactions.
Revaluation Reserve contains valuation gains recognised since 1 April 2007.
Major Repairs Reserve is required by statutory provision in relation to the Housing Revenue Account
(HRA).

The Council also has other specific earmarked reserves set out in more detail in the Notes to the Core
Statements. These are set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions. They are earmarked
specifically to meet future items of revenue or capital expenditure.
vii.
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (REFCUS) is expenditure which may be capitalised but
which does not result in the creation of a non current asset controlled by the authority. REFCUS incurred during
the year is written off as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. Examples include
grants to third parties for capital purposes and expenditure on private sector housing renewal. Where the Council
meets the cost of the REFCUS from existing capital resources a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then
reverses out the amounts charged in the Movement in Reserves Statement so there is no impact on the level of
council tax.
viii.
VAT
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.
ix.
Fair value
Investment assets, surplus assets (including assets held for sale) and some financial instruments are held at fair
value at the reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The transaction is assumed to take place either:
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In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

This method should take the asset in its highest or best use.
There is a three level hierarchy for inputs into a fair value calculation:
 Level 1 – quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities e.g. bond prices
 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability e.g. interest rates
or yields for similar assets
 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability e.g. cash flow forecasts
x.
Accounting for collection of Council Tax and NNDR in an agency role
The Council acts as a billing authority, or agent on behalf of major preceptors in relation to Council Tax and
Business Rates (NNDR). In this case the Council is collecting Council Tax and Business Rate Income on
behalf of itself and preceptors (Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) and Hertfordshire Police and Crime
Commissioner in relation to Council Tax and the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG)
and HCC in relation to Business Rates).
The implication for this is that any balance sheet transactions at the year end, in relation to these Agent
relationships, are split between the principal parties and, therefore, the balances contained on the Balance
Sheet for a particular debt are the Council’s own proportion of the debt and associated balances. The
proportions of transactions that relate to the other parties to the relationship are shown as debtors or creditors
due from/to these parties.

2. Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The following amendments to accounting standards will be adopted by the 2016/17 Code of Practice and are
applicable from 1 April 2016.
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle
IFRS 3:Business combinations – accounting for a contingent consideration in a business combination
Clarifies that contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability shall be measured at fair value
at each reporting date.
IFRS 8: Operating Segments - Aggregation of operating segments
Requires an entity to disclose the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria to
operating segments.
IFRS 8: Operating Segments - Reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments' assets to the entity's
assets
Clarifies that an entity shall only provide reconciliations of the total of the reportable segments' assets to the
entity's assets if the segment assets are reported regularly.
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - Short-term receivables and payables
Clarifies that issuing IFRS 13 and amending IFRS 9 and IAS 39 did not remove the ability to measure shortterm receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without discounting if the
effect of not discounting is immaterial.
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluation method—proportionate restatement of accumulated
depreciation
Clarifies that when an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued the gross carrying amount is adjusted
in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount.
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures - Key management personnel
Clarifies that an entity providing key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
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IAS 38 Intangible Assets - Revaluation method—proportionate restatement of accumulated amortisation
Clarifies that when an intangible asset is revalued the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is
consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount.
Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations)
This amends IFRS 11 such that the acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a
business, as defined in IFRS 3, is required to apply all of the principles on business combinations accounting
in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs with the exception of those principles that conflict with the guidance in IFRS 11.
Accordingly, a joint operator that is an acquirer of such an interest has to:







measure most identifiable assets and liabilities at fair value;
expense acquisition-related costs (other than debt or equity issuance costs);
recognise deferred taxes;
recognising any goodwill or bargain purchase gain;
perform impairment tests for the cash generating units to which goodwill has been allocated;
disclose information required relevant for business combinations.

Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets (Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation)
Guidance is introduced into both standards to explain that expected future reductions in selling prices could be
indicative of a higher rate of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in an asset.
Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Disclosure Initiative)






Materiality. The amendments clarify that (1) information should not be obscured by aggregating or by
providing immaterial information, (2) materiality considerations apply to the all parts of the financial
statements, and (3) even when a standard requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations do
apply.
Balance sheet and comprehensive income and expenditure statement. The amendments (1)
introduce a clarification that the list of line items to be presented in these statements can be
disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these statements
and (2) clarify that an entity's share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures should
be presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or not it will subsequently be
reclassified to profit or loss.
Notes. The amendments add additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify that
understandability and comparability should be considered when determining the order of the notes.

The amendments to accounting standards are not anticipated to have a material impact on the Financial
Statements in future years.
Changes to the format of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves
Statement and the introduction of the new Expenditure and Funding Analysis will also be required in the
2016/17 accounts.

3. Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Council has made certain judgements about complex
transactions or those involving uncertain events.
There is a high degree of uncertainty about future funding for Local Government. However, the Council has
determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Authority might be
impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision.

4. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation
uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported
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for the revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes
could differ from those estimates.
The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:
Item

Uncertainties

Property, Plant
and
Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are
dependent on assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in
relation to individual assets.
The current economic climate makes it uncertain
that the Authority will be able to sustain its current
spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing into
doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.

Pensions
Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions
depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase, changes in
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns
on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries
is engaged to provide the Authority with expert advice
about the assumptions to be applied.
Pension fund defined liabilities are provided by the
Hertfordshire County Council actuary, and are based
on significant estimates that are likely to prove to be
materially different, but they represent the best
estimate as at 31 March 2016.

Arrears

At 31 March 2016, the Authority had an outstanding
balance of short term debtors of £8.3m. A review of
significant debt types has lead to an updated
impairment allowance of debts of £2.7m. However, in
the current economic climate it is not certain that
such an allowance would be sufficient.

NNDR Gain on
Pool

At 31 March 2016, the Authority has a creditor for a
levy based on the growth of Business Rates above
baseline of £0.6m. The Authority was in an NNDR
Pool for the 2015/16 financial year and is expected
to make a gain from the pool of £0.4m
Following the introduction on 1 April 2013 of the
Business rates retention scheme Local Authorities
are liable for their proportionate share of successful
appeals against business rates charged in the
period to 31 March 2016. A provision based on best
available information including Valuation Office
(VAO) ratings list of appeals, and an analysis of
successful appeals to date has been recognised for
this liability of £1.3m.

NNDR
Appeals
Provision

Effect if Actual Results Differ from
Assumptions
If the useful life of assets is reduced,
depreciation increases and the carrying
amount of the assets falls.
It is estimated that the annual depreciation
charge would increase by £3m for every
year that useful lives had to be reduced.

The effects on the net pension liability of
changes in individual assumptions can be
measured. For instance, a
0.5% decrease in the discount rate
assumption would result in an increase in
the pension liability of 9% (£12.565m).
During 2015/16 the Authority’s actuaries
advised that the net pension liability had
decreased by £6.371m. This was due to a
number of partially offsetting changes in the
assumptions.

An understatement of doubtful debts would
lead to a future adjustment and impairment
to be reflected. The allowance held is based
on policies adapted to the nature of the debt
and service area. If collection rates were to
deteriorate by 5%, the impairment allowance
for doubtful debts would require an
additional £0.2m to be set aside and the
Authority would need to review its policies
on the calculation of the allowance.
The Authority holds a reserve to mitigate
the risk of any actual result of the gain on
the pool against the assumption.
The Council’s liability in this matter is
limited to 7.5% of its baseline funding level
or £0.2m. The Council holds a reserve to
mitigate this risk.
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Fair
Value
Measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets (i.e. Level 1 inputs),
their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques (e.g. quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets or the discounted cash
flow (DCF) model).
Where possible, the inputs to these valuation
techniques are based on observable data, but
where this is not possible judgement is required in
establishing fair values. These judgements typically
include considerations such as uncertainty and risk.
However, changes in the assumptions used could
affect the fair value of the authority’s assets and
liabilities.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the authority
employs relevant experts to identify the most
appropriate valuation techniques to determine fair
value (for example for investment properties, the
authority’s external valuer).
Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of the
authority’s assets and liabilities is disclosed in notes
13 and 14 below.

The authority uses the Investment method
and the Discounted Cash Flow method to
measure the fair value of its investment
properties, financial assets and financial
liabilities.
The significant unobservable inputs used
in the fair value measurement include
management assumptions regarding rent
growth, vacancy levels (for investment
properties) and discount rates – adjusted
for regional factors (for investment
properties, financial assets and liabilities)
Significant changes in any of the
unobservable inputs would result in a
significantly lower or higher fair value
measurement for the investment properties,
financial assets and liabilities.
If there was a change of 1% in the fair
value of £0.002m in financial assets, a
£0.039m change in financial liabilities and
£0.067m change in the Investment
Property valuation.

5. Material items of income and expense
The Code of Practice requires the disclosure of the nature and amount of any material items of income and
expenditure which are not separately disclosed on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
The following material items of income and expenditure are included in the Cost of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Category
Housing Services

Description
Housing and
Council Tax
benefits

Contract
payments

Environmental
services

Contract
payments

Comment
The Authority paid a total of £40.4 million Housing
Benefit payments in 2015/16 (£38.5 million in
2014/15). This was funded by a grant subsidy from
the Department for Work and Pensions of £39.8
million (£37.8 million in 2014/15).
The Authority paid a total of £13.2 million to Mears for
housing maintenance & disabled facility grants in
2015/16 (£12.6 million in 2014/15)
The Authority paid a total of £4.9 million to Serco for
grounds maintenance, street cleansing, recycling and
refuse collection in 2015/16 (£5.1 million in 2014/15)

6. Events after the Balance Sheet date
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director (Finance & Operations) on 27th May 2016.
Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes.
Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 st March 2016,
the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact
of this information.
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7. Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised
by the authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by
statutory provisions as being available to the authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

2015/16

Usable Reserves
Housing Housing
Capital
Revenue
Major
Grants
Account
Repairs Unapplied
Reserves

General
Fund
Balance
£000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources:
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different
from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory
requirements:
„Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve)

£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£000

£000

£000

-

-

-

1,306

Council tax and NDR (transfers to or from Collection Fund)

391

Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve)

3

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these
items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account):

4,821

3,065

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources

6,521

3,065

(1,054)

(9,482)

10,536

Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals (funded by a
contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve)

2

208

(210)

Payments to the government housing receipts pool (funded by a
transfer from the Capital Receipts Reserve)

3,215

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the
Capital Receipts Reserve

Posting of HRA resources from revenue to the Major Repairs
Reserve

(3,215)

-

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the
Capital Adjustment Account)

(242)

(11,750)

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to
the Capital Adjustment Account)

(86)

(2,021)

1,835

(23,045)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

345

-

-

Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital
expenditure

7,456

(7,051)

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure

(10,953)

(225)

Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure

(27)

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources

(27)

(10,953)

(225)

(138)

(7,051)

8,329

(30,933)

(225)

(138)

405

Total Adjustments

(138)
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2014/15

Usable Reserves
Housing
Housing
Capital
Revenue
Major
Grants
Account
Repairs Unapplied
Reserves

General
Fund
Balance
£000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources:
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different
from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory
requirements:
„Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve)
Council tax and NDR (transfers to or from Collection Fund)

£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£000

£000

£000

-

-

-

1,281
(1,492)

Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve)

(24)

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these
items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account):

9,394

141

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources

9,159

141

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the
Capital Receipts Reserve

(299)

(10,901)

11,200

Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals (funded by a
contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve)

-

190

(190)

Payments to the government housing receipts pool (funded by a
transfer from the Capital Receipts Reserve)

1,468

Posting of HRA resources from revenue to the Major Repairs
Reserve

(1,468)

-

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the
Capital Adjustment Account)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to
the Capital Adjustment Account)
Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

(58)

(9,950)

-

(2,843)

1,111

(23,504)

-

-

Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital
expenditure

(3,530)

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure

9,542

(10,775)

1,237

(6,366)

(10)

(6,366)

(10,785)

1,237

(214)

(3,530)

3,904

(34,148)

1,237

(214)

6,012

(214)

Cash payments in relation to deferred capital receipts
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources
Total Adjustments

Page 100
38
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
Statement of Accounts 2015/16

Notes to the core financial statements
8. Transfers to / from earmarked reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances in earmarked reserves to
provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet
General Fund and HRA expenditure in 2014/15.

Balance
Net
Balance at
Net
Balance at
at 1 April movement 31 March movement 31 March
2014
in year
2015
in year
2016
Reserve

£000

£000

£000

£000

Strategic Reserves
Strategic initiatives

1,097

(255)

842

126

968 For use on one-off specific general fund
projects across the range of services.

Subtotal

1,097

(255)

842

126

968

Ring-fenced
Reserves
Building control

(252)

Resources
Other Reserves
Subtotal
Total

-

£000 Purpose of reserve

21

(231)

-

261

261

842

1,103 To manage volatility in business rates
income

(231) Ring-fenced for building control service

162
(90)

105
386

267
296

86
928

353 Various reserves
1,225

1,007

131

1,138

1,055

2,193

9. Other operating expenditure
2015/16 2014/15
£000
£000
Parish Council Precepts
Payments to the Government's Housing Capital Receipts Pool
(Gains)/losses on disposal of non-current assets
Total

10.

1,611
3,215
309

1,579
1,468
141

5,135

3,188

Financing and investment income and expenditure

Interest payable and similar charges
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability
Interest receivable and similar income
Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and
changes in their fair value
Total

2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

6,751
1,528
(613)
(877)

6,849
1,896
(524)
(243)

6,789

7,978
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11.

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure
2015/16 2014/15
£000
£000

Council tax income
Non domestic rates income
Non domestic rates tariff payable to Central Government
Non domestic rates levy to Central Government
Revenue Support Grant
Business Rates related Grants
Council Tax Freeze Grant
New Homes Bonus Grant
New Burdens Grant
Council Tax Flood Relief Grant
Individual Electoral Registration Grant
Capital grants, contributions and other items
Total

9,498
23,201
(19,746)
(206)
2,167
513
85
1,735
155
51
908

9,179
23,024
(19,377)
(723)
2,995
447
83
1,370
240
7
67
908

18,361

18,221
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12.

Property Plant and Equipment

Movements on Balances in 2015/16

Dwellings

£000

Other
land and
buildings
£000

Vehicles,
plant and
equipment
£000

Infrastructure

£000

Community
assets

£000

Assets
under
construction
£000

Total
property,
plant &
equipment
£000

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2015

87,579

11,686

5,449

1,862

4,429

861,906

Additions

15,730

3,233

433

560

170

1,352

21,478

Disposals

(10,455)

-

-

-

-

(10,535)
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750,901

Reclassifications

(80)
1,639

32

(1,950)

(280)

Write out of depreciation on revaluation

(10,710)

(200)

(10,910)

Revaluation gains/(losses)

159,008

(773)

158,235

At 31 March 2016
Depreciation and impairments
At 1 April 2015
Charge for the year
Disposals
Reclassifications
Write out of depreciation on Revaluation
At 31 March 2016
Balance sheet amount at 31 March 2016
Balance sheet amount at 1 April 2015
Nature of asset holding
Owned
Finance lease

904,474

91,398

12,119

6,041

2,032

3,830

1,019,894

(10,945)
235
10,710
-

(1,593)
(2,072)
5
14
200
(3,445)

(9,215)
(875)
-

(3,712)
(222)
(2)

(1,648)
(6)
-

(12)

(10,090)

(3,936)

(1,654)

(12)

904,474
750,901

87,953
85,986

2,029
2,472

2,105
1,737

378
214

3,818
4,429

1,000,756
845,739

904,475
904,475

85,985
1,968
87,953

2,029
2,029

2,105
2,105

378
378

3,545
273
3,818

998,516
2,242
1,000,758

(16,168)
(14,119)
240
10,910
(19,138)
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Movements on Balances in 2014/15

Dwellings
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Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2014
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Write out of depreciation on revaluation
Revaluation gains/(losses)
At 31 March 2015

Other
land and
buildings

Vehicles,
plant and
equipment

Infrastructure

£000

£000

£000

689,552
13,929
(11,079)

77,504
8,740
(84)

12,049
316
(679)

5,243
206

1,862

(10,013)
68,512
750,901

(322)
1,741
87,579

11,686

5,449

1,862

(175)

(8,916)

(3,559)

(1,642)

(977)
679

(153)

(6)

(9,214)

(3,712)

(1,648)

Depreciation and impairments
At 1 April 2014

£000

Community
assets
£000

Assets
under
construction
£000
2,765
2,399

(735)
4,429

(19)

Charge for the year
Disposals
Reclassifications
Write out of depreciation on Revaluation
At 31 March 2015

(10,247)
234
10,013
-

(1,724)
2
(19)
322
(1,594)

Balance sheet amount at 31 March 2015
Balance sheet amount at 1 April 2014
Nature of asset holding
Owned
Finance lease

750,901
689,552

85,986
77,504

2,472
12,049

1,737
5,243

214
1,862

4,429
2,765

750,901
750,901

83,830
2,156
85,986

2,471
2,472

1,737
1,737

214
214

4,429
4,429

(19)

Total
property,
plant &
equipment
£000
788,975
25,590
(11,842)
(10,335)
69,518
861,906

(14,311)
(13,107)
915
(19)
10,335
(16,187)
845,739
788,975
843,582
2,156
845,739
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Depreciation
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:

Type of asset

Life
(years)
20-60
20-50
30
5-7
20

Council dwellings
Other land and buildings
Car parks
Vehicles, plant and equipment
Footway lighting

Capital commitments
At 31 March 2015, the Authority has entered into a number of contracts for the construction or enhancement of
Property, Plant and Equipment in 2014/15. The outstanding major commitment was budgeted to cost £1.8m and is
for the Campus East Extension. There are no similar commitments at 31 March 2016.

Revaluation
The Authority conducts a five year valuation of HRA assets. The HRA assets were re-valued on the 1 April 2016. In
between these five yearly valuations an annual desktop review is undertaken.
All general fund assets were re-valued on the 1 April 2014. A proportion of the assets has been valued this year and
will in future years as part of a rolling programme whereby all assets will be valued at least once every 5 years.
The Council uses external valuers for asset valuation.
Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set
out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

Valuations of fixed assets carried at current value
The following statement shows the progress of the Council’s programme for the valuation of fixed assets.

Council
Dw ellings

£000
Valued at depreciated
historical cost
Valued at current value in:
2015/16 (1st April 2016)
2014/15 (1st April 2015)
2013/14 (1st April 2014)
2012/13 (1st April 2013)
2011/12 (1st April 2012)

-

904,475
750,901
689,552
673,188
670,234

Other
Vehicles,
Infra- Com m unity
Assets
Land and
Plant and structure
Assets
Under
Buildings Equipm ent
Construction
£000

£000

£000

-

2,029

2,105

87,953
85,986
77,329
78,037
65,828

-

-

£000
378

-

£000
3,818

-

Total

£000
8,330

992,427
836,887
766,881
751,225
736,062
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13.

Investment Property

The authority does not hold any investment property under operating leases.
The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
2015/16

Rental income from investment property

£000

£000

624

333

Direct operating expenses arising from investment
property

(1)

Net gain/(loss)

2014/15

623

(3)
330

There are no restrictions on the Authorities ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the
Authority’s right to the remittance of the income and proceeds of disposal.
The Authority has no contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop investment property or repairs,
maintenance or enhancement.
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year.

2015/16
£000
Balance at start of the year

2014/15
£000

6,345

6,420

Net gains/losses from fair value adjustment

505

135

Disposals

(121)

(210)

Balance at end of the year

6,729

6,345

13.1. Fair Value Hierarchy
Details of the authority’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2016
and 2015 are as follows

Recurring fair value measurements
using:
Commercial
units

Other significant
observable inputs
(Level 2)£000

Fair value as
at 31 March
2016
£000

Fair value as
at 31 March
2015
£000

6,729

6,345

13.2. Transfers between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the year.
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13.3. Valuation Techniques used to Determine Level for Investment Properties
Significant Observable Inputs – Level 2
The fair value for the investment properties (at market rents) has been based on the market approach using current
market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets in the local authority
area. Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable
inputs are significant, leading to the properties being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

13.4. Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties
In estimating the fair value of the authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

13.5. Valuation Techniques
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties.

13.6. Valuation Process for Investment Properties
The fair value of the authority’s investment property is measured annually at each reporting date. All valuations are
carried out externally, in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The authority’s valuer’s work closely with finance
officers, who report directly to the Director (Finance & Operations) on a regular basis regarding all valuation
matters.
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14.

Financial instruments

14.1. Categories of financial instruments
The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the balance sheet:

Financial Assets

Long term
Current
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2016
2015
2016
2015
£000
£000
£000
£000

Loans and receivables:
Principal at amortised cost
Accrued interest

4,185

4,185

9,000

20,000

65

65

12

39

5,689

3,060

14,162

8,006

Available for sale investments:
Principal at amortised cost
Accrued interest
Total investments

48

11

38

16

9,987

7,321

23,212

28,061

647

458

22,733

25,019

17

10

23,397

25,487

Cash (including bank accounts)
Cash equivalents at amortised cost
Accrued interest
Total cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

655

935

5,941

3,758

Total debtors

655

935

5,941

3,758

Financial Liabilities

Long term
Current
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2016
2015
2016
2015
£000
£000
£000
£000

Loans at amortised cost:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

-

227

-

-

Long Term Borrowing - HRA Loan

251,899

265,399

13,500

11,750

Total borrowing

251,899

265,626

13,500

11,750

8,012

11,509

Liabilities at amortised cost:
Trade payables

-

-

Finance lease liabilities

2,103

2,103

-

-

Total creditors

2,103

2,103

8,012

11,509

Investment figures exclude money in immediate access accounts and investments for three months or less as they
are treated as cash equivalents on the balance sheet.
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14.2. Income, expenses, gains and losses
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account in relation to financial
instruments are made up as follows:
Financial
liabilities
Amortised cost

Financial assets

Loans and Available
receivables
for sale
£000
£000
£000

2015/16

Total
£000

Interest expense

6,751

-

-

6,751

Total expense in surplus or
deficit on provision of services

6,751

-

-

6,751

Interest income
Total income in surplus or deficit
on provision of services
Gains/(losses) on revaluation
Impact in other comprehensive
income

-

(613)
(613)

-

Net gain/(loss) for the year

-

6,751

Financial
liabilities
Amortised cost
2014/15
Interest expense
Total expense in surplus or
deficit on provision of services
Interest income
Total income in surplus or deficit
on provision of services
Net gain/(loss) for the year

(613)

(303)
(303)
(303)

(613)
(613)
(303)
(303)
5,835

Financial assets

Loans and Available
receivables
for sale
£000
£000
£000

6,849
6,849

-

-

-

(524)
(524)

-

6,849

(524)

-

Total
£000
6,849
6,849
(524)
(524)
6,325

14.3. Fair value of assets and liabilities
Financial assets classified as available for sale are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For most assets,
including bonds, shares in money market funds and other pooled funds, the fair value is taken from the market price.
The fair values of other instruments have been estimated calculating the net present value of the remaining
contractual cash flows at 31st March using the following methods and assumptions:


Certificates of deposit have been discounted at market interest rates for instruments of similar credit quality
and remaining term to maturity.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables and all non derivative financial liabilities are carried in the
Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair values have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the
remaining contractual cash flows at 31st March using the following methods and assumptions:



Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over the whole
life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans.
The fair values of other long term loans and investments have been discounted at the market rates for similar
instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31st March.
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The fair values of finance lease assets and liabilities have been calculated by discounting the contractual
cash flows at the appropriate AA rated corporate bond yield.
No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument.
The fair value of short term instruments, including trade payables and receivables is assumed to be
approximate to the carrying amount.

Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy:




Level 1 – fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities e.g.
bond prices
Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability e.g. interest rates or yields for similar assets
Level 3 – fair value is determined using unobservable inputs for the asset or liability e.g. non market data
such as cash flow forecasts or estimated credit worthiness.

Fair
Value
Level
Fair value approximate to carrying amount:
Trade payables

n/a

31 March 2016
Balance Fair value
sheet
£000
£000

31 March 2015
Balance Fair value
sheet
£000
£000

16,744

16,744

11,509

11,509

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
Short Term Borrowing (PWLB) - HRA Loan

2

13,500

13,570

11,750

11,750

Long Term Borrowing (PWLB) - HRA Loan
Lease payables

2
3

251,899

264,596

265,399

272,484

2,103

3,910

2,103

3,910

284,246

298,820

290,761

299,653

8,254
4,499

8,254
4,499

3,758
935

3,758
935

1
1
2
2

11,003
4,048
6,265
6,928

11,019
3,740
6,260
6,922

3,000
8,093
-

3,000
8,093
-

2
2
3

23,759
4,060
190
101
69,107

23,762
4,223
203
178
69,060

20,000
4,185
101
40,072

20,000
4,416
178
40,380

Total financial liabilities
Fair value approximate to carrying amount:
Trade receivables
Long term debtors
Financial assets held at fair value:
Money market and cash plus funds
Property funds
Corporate and covered bonds
Certificates of deposit (CDs)
Financial assets held at amortised cost:
Short term deposits
Long term loans to local authorities
Long term loans to housing associations
Lease receivables
Total loans and receivables

n/a
n/a

n/a

Nature and Extent of Risk Arising From Financial Instruments
14.4. Overall procedures for managing risk
The authority manages its treasury risk exposures in compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management in the Public Services, and seeks to minimise the potential adverse impact on its resources that may
arise from its holdings of financial instruments. Treasury activities are conducted by the Director (Finance and
Operations) and her staff in accordance with the authority’s Financial Regulations, Treasury Management Policy and
Practices. In addition, the full Council approves a treasury management strategy each financial year, which includes
its strategy for managing financial risks.
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Summary of content of policy for 2015/16


The prime objective of the strategy is to ensure prudent investment of surplus funds. Priorities are the
security of capital, liquidity of investments and within those objectives, to secure optimum performance.



The Council takes account of credit ratings published by the three main rating agencies (Moodys, Standard
& Poors and Fitch) to establish the credit quality of counterparties. All credit ratings are monitored and a list
of eligible counterparties produced monthly.



Amounts to be committed in excess of 1 year are determined based on cash flow forecasts and the
availability of core cash



Investments will be diversified as much as possible across many institutions in order to reduce the risk of
excessive losses in case of default.

The services of an independent treasury advisor are engaged to assist in the formation of the Council’s strategy and
to ensure awareness of risk associated with its investment and borrowing portfolio. In recent history the Council has
not encountered any breach of contracts regarding investments and has modified its treasury strategies to respond
to increased risk associated with deteriorating economic and market conditions. Whilst the Council therefore believes
its exposure to credit risk through investments is low, continuing pressures on the banking sector and the heightened
risk of default means security of investments remains of primary importance.

14.5. Credit risk: Investments
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and other financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council’s
customers.
Deposits are not made with banks and other financial institutions unless they meet the minimum requirements of the
investment criteria outlined in the Council’s treasury management strategy. All investments are domiciled in the UK.
Credit
Rating

Banks
Unsecured

Banks
Secured

UK Govt

n/a

n/a

£3m
5 years
£3m
5 years
£3m
4 years
£3m*
3 years
£3m
2 years
£3m
13 months
£3m
6 months
£2m
100 days
£1m
6 months

£4m
20 years
£4m
10 years
£4m
5 years
£4m
4 years
£4m
3 years
£4m
2 years
£4m
13 months
£3m
6 months

AAA
AA+
AA
AAA+
A
ABBB+
None
Pooled
funds
**HSBC £4m

n/a

Government
£ Unlimited
50 years
£4m
50 years
£4m
25 years
£4m
15 years
£4m
10 years
£4m
5 years
£4m
5 years
£3m
5 years
£2m
2 years
£3m
25 years

Corporates

Registered
Providers

n/a

n/a

£3m
20 years
£3m
10 years
£3m
5 years
£3m
4 years
£3m
3 years
£3m
2 years
£3m
13 months
£2m
6 months

£3m
20 years
£3m
10 years
£3m
10 years
£3m
10 years
£3m
5 years
£3m
5 years
£3m
5 years
£2m
2 years
£3m
5 years

n/a

£4m per fund
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Recognising that credit ratings are imperfect predictors of default, the Council has regard to other measures including
credit default swap and equity prices when selecting commercial entities for investment. Independent investment
advice is also received on investing with organisations without credit ratings.
The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies cannot
be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will
be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to
meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Council’s deposits, but there was no evidence
at the 31 March 2016 that this was likely to materialise.
The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the Council’s investment portfolio by credit rating:

Credit Rating
AAA
AA+
AA
AAA+
A
ABBB
Unrated local authorities
Unrated building societies
Unrated housing associations
Unrated pooled funds
Total Investm ents

Long Term
31/03/2016
31/03/2015
£000s
£000s
5,001
1,000
1,000
4,000
4,000
185
10,186

5,000

Short Term
31/03/2016
31/03/2015
£000s
£000s
13,077
17,611
11,827
8,408
5,060
11,982
13,006
3,000
5,000
2,000
4,000
6,000
45,886

55,085

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the authority does not expect any losses from nonperformance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits and bonds.

14.6. Credit risk: Receivables
Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal ratings in accordance with
parameters set by the council. The Authority does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £1.111m of
the balance is past its due date for payment. The past due but not impaired amount can be analysed by age as
follows:
31 March
2016
£000
Less than three months

31 March
2015
£000

971

1,088

Three months to one year

61

74

More than one year

79

50

Total

1,111

1,212
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14.7. Liquidity risk
The authority has a comprehensive cash flow management process to ensure that cash is available as needed. If
unexpected movements happen, the authority has ready access to borrowings from the money markets and the
Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments
under financial instruments.
The investment strategy reflects the importance of liquidity in treasury management by making this the second priority
after security of funds. Liquidity risk has also been minimised further by the tightening of investment criteria to respond
to increased credit risk, so that the majority of investments held by the Council are immediately available or available
within one year.
The council actively manages its investments and has regard to the maturity profile of the debt. In addition, the use
of cash flow modelling ensures that cash funds are available to meet daily cash flows.
The maturity analysis of financial instruments is as follows:

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Financial Financial Financial Financial
Assets
Liabilities
Assets
Liabilities
£000
£000
£000
£000
Less than one year

52,485

22,332

34,890

23,259

Over one year

10,642

254,002

5,185

267,729

63,127

276,334

40,075

290,988

Total

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.

14.8. Market risk
Interest rate risk
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.
Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have
the following effects:





borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense will rise
borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall
investments at variable rates – the interest income credited will rise
investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.

Investments classed as “loans and receivables” and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so changes in their
fair value will have no impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable
and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments classed as “available for sale” will be reflected in
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate these risks by setting upper limits on its net exposures to
fixed and variable interest rates.
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According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2016, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other
variables held constant, the financial effect would be:
£000
436

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

436

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

-

179

-

179

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure)

-

18,518

Price risk
The Authority does not generally invest in equity shares but does have an investment with a fair value of £3.74m in
a property fund. The Authority is consequently exposed to losses arising from movements in the price of the fund.
The £3.74m investment is classified as ‘available for sale’, meaning that all movements in price will impact on gains
and losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. A general shift of 5% in the general price
of shares (positive or negative) would thus have resulted in a £0.2m gain or loss being recognised in the Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure for 2015/16.

Foreign exchange risk
The authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and it makes few purchases or
sales in foreign currencies. It therefore has no material exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.
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15.

Debtors

An analysis of debtors is shown below:
Balance at Balance at
31 March
31 March
2016
2015
£000
£000
Government departments
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals
- current debtors
- long term debtors

2,027
1,053

1,040
728

7,636
4,499

6,990
4,039

Provision for impairment of bad debts
Payments in advance

15,215
(2,659)
197

12,797
(1,438)
265

Total

12,753

11,624

Following a review of allowances for impairment of bad debt we have identified a requirement for an allowance on
Housing Benefit overpayments. This has caused an increase in impairment allowances of £890k.

16.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance at 31 Balance at 31
March 2016
March 2015
£000
£000

Bank current accounts and Cash held

12,366

24,477

Short term deposits with building societies
Total cash and cash equivalents

11,013
23,379

1,000
25,477

17.

Creditors

An analysis of creditors is shown below:
Balance at 31 Balance at 31
March 2016
March 2015
£000
Government departments
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals
- current creditors
Total

£000

4,252
3,885

9,018
4,701

8,607

8,228

16,744

21,947

In 2015/16 there is a receipt in advance for Building Control receipts received in advance of work carried out by
£217k.
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18.

Provisions

The total value of specific provisions held at 31 March 2016 is:
Claims
provision
£000

NNDR Provision
for Appeals
£000

Total
£000

Balance at 1 April 2015

239

1,126

1,365

Additional provisions made

325

902

1,227

Amounts used

(95)

Unused amounts reversed

(11)

(743)
-

Balance at 31 March 2016

458

1,285

(838)
(11)
1,743

NNDR Provision for Appeals
Business Rate Payers are entitled to appeal against the rateable value allocated to it by the Valuation Office Agency.
From 1 April 2013 onwards, in the event that the appeal is successful, the Council is responsible for repaying its
share of Business Rate income to the ratepayer. This provision has been made based on the expected outcome of
the appeals outstanding with the VOA as at 31 March 2016.
Claims provision
The Council is self insured up to specific limits for various categories of risk. Any claims beyond these specific limits
are insured externally. The level of provision made is adequate to meet the Council’s estimated known liabilities
under its self insurance arrangements for all outstanding claims.
This provision also has an allowance for legal claims brought against the council.
MMI
Following the demise of Municipal Mutual Insurance Ltd., the MMI Scheme of Arrangement was established in
January 1994 to offer financial provision for claim settlements under policies incepted with MMI. This Council paid
£50,000 into the scheme, under the proviso that should a solvent run-off not be achieved, any payments made on
our behalf can be clawed back, less the £50,000.
The directors of MMI “triggered” MMI’s Scheme of Arrangement on 13th November 2012. The Scheme provides that
following the occurrence of a Trigger Event, a Levy may be imposed on all those Scheme Creditors who have been
paid an amount in respect of Established Scheme Liabilities which exceed £50,000 in aggregate. Payments made
after the imposition of the Levy to Scheme Creditors will be made at a reduced rate
After 13th November 2012 a review was carried out of the assets and liabilities of MMI, to determine whether a Levy
on Scheme Creditors was required. On 2 April 2013 the Scheme Administrator advised various models of projected
outcomes indicated a Levy of between 9.5% and 28% may be required to achieve a solvent run off. It was
subsequently concluded that a Levy of 15% be imposed and a charge of £62,984 was made in February 2014.
The Scheme requires a review of the Levy rate at least once every 12 months and includes provisions for the rate to
be adjusted up or down, as the liability trends evolve. Because of the nature of many of the claims the projections
are subject to substantial uncertainty. An additional levy of £42,118 was due to be paid as at 31 March 2016. As the
levy has now been imposed twice, we have taken the decision to provide for the full remaining liability as at 31 March
2016. There remains a risk that this will not be sufficient or the remaining liabilities will fall within the range projected.
This provision is reviewed annually based on outstanding claims.
As of 31st March 2016 the total amount liable to claw back is £315,890. This issue is likely to run for many years
before final resolution is achieved.

Doubtful debts
Provisions for doubtful debts are separately disclosed against debtors on the balance sheet. Information is included
in Note 15 Debtors.
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19.

Unusable Reserves

Revaluation Reserve
Pension Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
Deferred Capital Receipts reserve
Collection fund Adjustment Account
Accumulated Absence Account and Employment Reserve
Available for Sale Reserve

Balance at 31 Balance at 31
March 2016
March 2015
£000
£000
254,223
115,711
(43,051)
(49,422)
471,664
445,485
3,945
3,204
1,330
1,721
(114)
(112)
(304)
-

Total unusable reserves

687,693

516,587

19.1. Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:




Re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
Disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.
2015/16
2014/15
£000
£000
Balance at 1 April

115,711

67,474

Upward Revaluation of assets
Downward Revaluation of assets and impairment losses
not charged to the surplus deficit on the provision of
service
Difference between fair value depreciation and historic
cost
Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped
Amounts written off to the Capital Adjustment Account

141,870
(701)

53,439
(3,584)

(2,115)

(1,157)

(542)
-

(312)
(149)

Balance at 31 March

254,223

115,711
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19.2. Pension Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts
for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned
by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory
arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension
funds, or eventually pay any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions
Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the
resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have
been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.
The Pension Reserve reflects the amounts recorded in the IAS19 report regarding the position of the pension fund.
Although The Code suggests that the post-employment benefit cost should also be recorded in the pension reserve
the Council have accounted for the costs of termination in the Employment reserve to enable the pension fund
reserve to continue to be consistent with the IAS19 report on pension liabilities

Balance at 1 April
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employers' pensions contributions
Balance at 31 March

2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

(49,422)

(46,621)

7,678

(1,520)

(3,366)

(3,249)

2,059

1,968

(43,051)

(49,422)
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19.3. Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those
assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement
as depreciation; impairment losses and amortisation are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost
basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition,
construction and enhancement.
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties that have yet to be consumed by the
Authority. The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April
2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 7 provides details of the source
of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve
2015/16

2014/15
£000

Balance at 1 April

£000

445,485

420,879

(14,124)

(13,113)

17,066

20,354

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited
or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets
Revaluation gains/losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

(114)

(105)

Provision for the repayment of debt

11,750

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

(1,842)

(5,506)

(10,696)

(11,285)

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

9,950

2,040

295

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve

2,658

1,617

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets
consumed in the year

4,698

1,912

7,051

4,787

11,178

9,538

577

5,469

166

339

Capital financing applied in the year:
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure
Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to
capital financing
Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
charged against the General Fund and HRA balances
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA
balances
Total capital financing applied in year
Movements in the market value of Investment Properties and
Assets Held For Sale debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Loan brought onto balance sheet

(103)
2,107

2,842

20,977

22,975

505

135

21,481
471,664

Balance at 31 March

-

(416)
22,694
445,485
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19.4. Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of Council tax and
NNDR income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from Council tax payers
compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection
Fund.
2015/16 2014/15

£000
Balance at 1 April

1,721

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rating income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from council
tax and non-domestic rating income calculated for the year in accordance
with statutory requirements

(391)

Balance at 31 March

1,330

£000
228
1,493

1,721

19.5. Available for Sale Reserve
The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from
increases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or
determinable payments. The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated gains are:



revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
disposed of and the gains are realised.
2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

Balance at 1 April

-

Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
Balance at 31 March

20.

-

(303)

-

(303)

-

Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

Interest received
Interest paid

2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

547

477

(6,761)

(6,861)
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21.

Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities
2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assets

(21,535)

(25,484)

Purchase of short term and long term investments

(28,306)

(30,331)

(45)

(118)

Other payments for investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment, investment property
and intangible assets

10,328

12,252

Proceeds from short term investments

30,219

22,080

Other receipts from investing activities

960

7,182

Net cash flows from investing activities

22.

(8,379)

Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities

Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding liabilities relating to
finance leases
Billing Authorities - Council Tax and NNDR adjustments
Repayment of long term borrowing
Net cash flows from financing activities

23.

(14,419)

2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

-

(502)

(2,402)

5,065

(11,978)

(9,950)

(14,380)

(5,387)

Amounts Reported For Resource Allocation Decisions

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. However, decisions about resource allocation
are taken by the Authority’s Cabinet on the basis of budget reports analysed across directorates. These reports are
prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular:



no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation Reserve and amortisation is charged to services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)
the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s pensions contributions)
rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year

The income and expenditure of the Authority’s principal directorates recorded in the budget reports for the year is as
follows:
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Segment reporting
Service Information
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Director
Director
Director
Housing
Governance & Finance &
Strategy &
Revenue
Chief
Operations Development Account
Executive
(HRA)
£000
£000
£000
£000

Total

£000

Fees, charges & other service income

(492)

(9,469)

(3,348)

(52,451)

(65,760)

Government Grants and Contributions

(189)

(41,412)

(335)

(200)

(42,136)

(680)

(50,881)

(3,683)

(52,651)

(107,895)

Total Income
Employee expenses

3,022

2,906

5,005

93

11,026

Other operating expenses

1,302

54,422

5,569

19,247

80,541

Support service recharges
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

(575)

(3,105)

(139)

800

(3,019)

4

2,166

2,377

(6,368)

(1,821)

Total Operating Expenses

3,753

56,389

12,812

13,772

86,726

Net Cost of Services

3,073

5,508

9,128

(38,878)

(21,169)

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Net Cost of Services in Analysis

(21,169)

Gain or (Loss) on HRA disposals & Capital Grants

(205)

Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair value
Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

877
(20,498)
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Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 2015/16

Fees, charges & other service income

Service
Analysis

Corporate
Amounts

Total

£000

£000

£000

(65,760)

-

(65,760)

Interest and investment income

-

(613)

(613)

Income from council tax

-

(9,498)

(9,498)

Government Grants and Contributions

(42,136)

(8,863)

(50,999)

(107,895)

(18,974)

(126,869)

Employee expenses

11,026

-

11,026

Other operating expenses

80,541

-

80,541

Support service recharges

(3,019)

-

(3,019)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

(1,821)

-

(1,821)

Interest Payments

-

8,279

8,279

Precepts & Levies

-

1,611

1,611

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool

-

3,215

3,215

Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

-

104

104

86,726

13,209

99,935

(21,169)

(5,765)

(26,934)

Total Income

Total Operating Expenses
Surplus or Deficit on the provision of services

Service Information
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Director
Director
Director
Housing
Governance & Finance &
Strategy &
Revenue
Chief
Operations Development Account
Executive
(HRA)
£000
£000
£000
£000

Total

£000

Fees, charges & other service income

(588)

(8,609)

(3,023)

(49,373)

(61,594)

Government Grants and Contributions

(29)

(39,255)

(545)

(658)

(40,488)

(618)

(47,864)

(3,568)

(50,031)

(102,082)

Total Income
Employee expenses

2,824

2,595

4,680

91

10,190

Other operating expenses

1,248

51,387

5,121

8,738

66,494

Support service recharges

(2,988)

458

10,243

7,178

4

2,807

821

(10,672)

(7,040)

Total Operating Expenses

3,541

53,802

11,079

8,399

76,822

Net Cost of Services

2,925

5,937

7,511

(41,632)

(25,260)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

(536)

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Net Cost of Services in Analysis

(25,260)

Gain or (Loss) on HRA disposals & Capital Grants

(137)

Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair value
Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

243
(25,154)
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Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 2014/15

Fees, charges & other service income

Service
Analysis

Corporate
Amounts

Total

£000

£000

£000

(61,597)

Interest and investment income
Income from council tax
Government Grants and Contributions
Total Income

-

(61,597)

-

(523)

-

(523)

(9,179)

(9,179)

(40,488)

(9,031)

(49,519)

(102,085)

(18,733)

(120,818)

Employee expenses

10,190

-

10,190

Other operating expenses

66,494

-

66,494

Support service recharges

7,178

-

7,178

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

(7,040)

-

(7,040)

Interest Payments

-

8,745

8,745

Precepts & Levies

-

1,579

1,579

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool

-

1,468

1,468

Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

-

Total Operating Expenses

76,822

Surplus or Deficit on the provision of services

(25,260)

(7)
11,785
(6,948)

(7)
88,607
(32,209)
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24.

Trading operations

The Council has carried out the following trading operation:
Chargeable Chargeable
Building Regulations Charging Account

2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

235

222

Expenditure
Employee Expenses
Other Expenditure

75

88

Total Expenditure

310

309

Building Regulation Charges

(86)

(330)

Total Income

(86)

(330)

(Surplus)/deficit for year

224

(21)

Income

Trading operations for Building Control are incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
within Planning services.

25.

Members Allowances

The Authority paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year.
2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

Basic allowance

232

233

Special responsibility allowance

100

98

9

10

341

341

Travelling and subsistence
Total
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26.

Officers remuneration

The Accounts and Audit Regulations contain a legal requirement for the accounts to disclose remuneration of senior employees. In particular, senior employees whose
salary is £50,000 or more per year but less than £150,000 are required to be listed individually by way of job title and this is shown in the following table. The Council has
no employees with a salary greater than £150,000.

Senior officers’ remuneration
Post title

Note

2015/16
Chief Executive
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Director (Finance & Operations)
Director (Governance)
Total

Post title

Salary

Compensation
for loss of office

Chief Executive
Director (Finance & Operations)

Pension
contributions

Total remuneration
including pension
contributions

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

125

-

125

21

146

98
99

-

98
99

17
17

115
116

322

-

322

55

377

Salary

2014/15

Total remuneration
excluding pension
contributions

Compensation Total remuneration
for loss of office excluding pension
contributions

Pension
contributions

Total remuneration
including pension
contributions

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

124

-

124

21

145

93

-

93

16

109

Director (Strategy & Development)

1

8

-

8

1

9

Director (Strategy & Development)

2

74

67

141

19

160

93

-

93

16

109

459

73

532

Director (Governance)
Total

392

67

Note 1: The Director (Strategy & Development) left the Council on 30/04/14; his annualised salary was £91,902.
Note 2: The new Director (Strategy & Development) was appointed 02/06/14; his annualised salary was £89,043. He left the organisation in April
2015.
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Officers’ remuneration
The number of employees – other than senior officers shown in the note above - whose remuneration, excluding
employer’s pension contributions, was £50,000 or more is shown below in bands of £5,000. Remuneration includes
all amounts paid to recipients including those in respect of redundancy and severance pay in the financial year.
Remuneration
band

2015/16

2014/15

Number of employees

£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £79,999
£75,000 - £79,999

5
6
1
5
-

4
3
6
1

17

14

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are
set out in the table below:
(a.)
Exit package cost
band (including
special payments)

(b.)

(c.)

Number of
compulsory
redundancies
2015/16 2014/15

(d.)

Number of other
departures agreed
2015/16

2014/15

(e.)

Total number of
exit packages by
cost band
2015/16 2014/15

Total cost of exit
packages for each
band
2015/16 2014/15
£000

£0 - £20,000

-

£20,001 - £40,000

-

£60,001 - £80,000

-

Total

-

27.

-

3
1

-

-

3

-

1

1

3

1

-

15

£000
-

-

1

-

31

-

1

-

67

3

2

15

98

External audit costs

The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of
grant claims and statutory inspections and for non-audit services provided by the Authority’s external auditors:

Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the
appointed auditor
Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns
Total

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

2015/16
£000
66

2014/15
£000
89

5
71

18
107
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28.

Grant Income

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2015/16 and 2014/15:

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and
Expenditure
Revenue Support Grant
Business Rates related Grants

2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

2,167

2,995

513

447

Council Tax Freeze Grant

85

83

New Homes Bonus Grant

1,735

1,370

New Burdens Grant

155

240

Council Tax Flood Relief Grant

-

Individual Electoral Registration Grant

7

51
4,706

Total

67
5,209

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the services in 2015/16 and 2014/15:
2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

Credited to Services
Homes & Communities Agency (HCA) funding (Chalk mines)
Council Tax & Housing Benefit Admin Grant
Housing benefit subsidy grant
Other Housing General Fund

-

5,154

546

571

38,817

37,831

773

1,803

Housing Revenue Account

3

10

Cultural and Environment

383

206

Central services

241

153

Net other movements

-

Total

33

40,763

45,761

Capital Grants Received in Advance
The Authority has received contributions that have yet to be recognised as income as they have conditions
attached to them that may require the monies or property to be returned to the giver. The balances at the year-end
are as follows:

31 March 2016
£000
Capital Contributions Received in Advance
Developers Contributions

380

Total

380

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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29.

Related Parties

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the
potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosures of these
transactions allow readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to
operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the
Council.
Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council – it is responsible for
providing the statutory framework, within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form
of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. housing
benefits). Grants received from government departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 23 on reporting
for resources allocation decisions. Capital receipts outstanding at 31 March 2016 are shown in Note 28.
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The total of
members’ allowances paid in 2015/16 is shown in Note 25. During 2015/16 grants totalling £145k have been given
to voluntary organisations where councillors have declared an involvement. In all instances, the grants were made
with proper consideration of declarations of interest. The relevant members did not take part in any discussion or
decision relating to the grants. Details of all these transactions are recorded in the Register of Members’ Interest,
open to public inspection at the Council offices during office hours.
The organisations involved are as follows:
2015/16
Organisation

2014/15

Amount
of Grant

Number of
Number of
Amount Number of
Number of
Councillors Senior Officers of Grant Councillors Senior Officers
declaring an declaring an
declaring an declaring an
involvement involvement
involvement involvement
£000
£000

Age Uk (Douglas Tilbe)

-

-

-

25

1

-

Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB)

81

1

-

81

1

-

Council for Voluntary Services (CVS)

10

1

-

10

1

-

Friendship House

13

1

-

13

1

-

Groundwork

2

1

-

Herts & Middlesex Wildlife Trust

-

-

-

2

2

-

Jimmy Macs

-

-

-

15

1

-

King George Football Club

-

-

-

1

1

-

Lemsford Football Club
Panshanger Football Club

-

-

-

-

-

-

1
1

1
1

-

Resolve

5

3

-

5

3

-

Welwyn Hatfield Sport and Physical
Activity Alliance
Welwyn Warriors Lacrosse

-

-

-

1

1

-

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

2

1

-

Women's Refuge

34

3

-

34

3

-

Total

145

10

191

18

B3 Living (a preferred partner for
grant funded housing delivery)

-

Total

0

-

1

1
0

1

Two councillors are observers to the Board of Finesse; the Council made significant payments including management
and related fees totalling £637,430.96 to Finesse in 2015/16. A 25 year contract is held with Finesse to provide
leisure services, (this contract expires on the 18 January 2029).
A loan of £189,844 is held by Jubilee Care Trust with the Council; one councillor is on the board of the trust.
Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Council
During 2015/16 the Council paid a management fee to Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust totalling
£13,029,570 and there is an outstanding liability of £852,657 at year end. The Council has control over the financial
and operational polices of the Housing Trust, as it has been a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council since 1 April
2010. Three councillors are on the board of the trust.
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When taking into account of materiality, the Housing Trust does not hold material assets for a group account to be
produced. Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust's (WHCHT) accounts are not grouped with those of the
Council for financial reporting purposes.
Further information about members and officers involvement can be obtained from Director (Finance and
Operations), Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Hertfordshire, AL8 6AE.

30.

Capital expenditure and financing
2015/16
£000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

292,307

2014/15
£000
295,441

Adjustment to opening balance

-

(829)

Restated opening balance

-

294,612

21,478

25,050

180

122

1,842

5,506

(20,337)

(17,166)

(743)

(5,809)

Loan/ finance lease principal repayments

(11,992)

(10,008)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

282,735

292,307

Capital Investment
Property, plant and equipment assets
Intangible assets
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Sources of finance
Capital receipts
Government grants and other contributions

Explanation of movements in year
Increase/(decrease) in underlying need to borrowing
(unsupported by government financial assistance)

(9,572)

(2,305)

Increase/(decrease) in capital financing requirement

(9,572)

(2,305)

There was an additional £829k of capital financing applied during 2013/14 which was not recognised through the
Capital Financing Requirement. The opening balance for 2014/15 has been restated to reflect this.

31.

Assets held under leases

31.1.

Authority as Lessee

Finance leases
The Council has acquired two properties under finance leases; Weltech Business Centre and Chantry Court.
The assets acquired under these leases are carried as Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet at the
following net amounts:
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31 March
2016
£000
Other land and buildings
Total

31 March
2015
£000

1,968

1,301

1,968

1,301

The Authority is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement of the longterm liability for the interest in the property acquired by the Authority and finance costs that will be payable by the
Authority in future years while the liability remains outstanding. The minimum lease payments are made up of the
following amounts:
31 March
2016
£000
Finance lease liabilities (net present value of
minimum lease payments):
• Current
• Non current
Finance costs payable in future years
Minimum lease payments

31 March
2015
£000

-

-

2,103

2,103

15,663

15,808

17,766

17,911

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:
Minimum lease payments
31 March
2016
£000

31 March
2015
£000

Finance lease liabilities
31 March
2016
£000

31 March 2015
£000

Not later than one year

145

145

-

-

Later than one year and not later than five years

579

579

-

-

17,042

17,187

2,103

2,103

17,766

17,911

2,103

2,103

Later than five years
Total

The minimum lease payments do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place after the lease was
entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.

Operating leases
The Council leased one building for which the lease ended 24th December 2015. The future minimum lease payments
due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31 March
2016
£000
Not later than one year
Total

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

31 March
2015
£000

-

160

-

160

69 131
Page
Statement of Accounts 2015/16

Notes to the core financial statements
31.2.

Authority as Lessor

Finance leases
The Authority has leased out property at the Gosling Sports on a finance lease with a remaining term of 116 years.
The Authority has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments expected to be
received over the remaining term.
The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of the long-term debtor for the interest in the property acquired
by the lessee and finance income that will be earned by the Authority in future years whilst the debtor remains
outstanding. The gross investment is made up of the following amounts:
31 March 2016
£000
Finance lease debtor (net present value of minimum
lease payments):
• Current

-

• Non current

101

Unearned finance income

665

Gross investment in the lease

766

The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over the following periods:
Gross Investment in
the Lease

Minimum Lease
Payments

31 March 2016

31 March 2016

£000

£000

Not later than one year

-

7

Later than one year and not later than five years

-

26

Later than five years

101

733

101

766

Total

The minimum lease payments do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place after the lease was
entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.

Operating leases
The Council is a lessor of a number of properties, including town centre shops, garages and industrial units. These
items are held in the balance sheet as other land and buildings within property, plant and equipment. The gross value
of these properties is outlined in Note 12. The future lease payments receivable in future years are shown in the table
below:
31 March
2016

31 March
2015

£000

£000

Not later than one year

1,635

1,662

Later than one year and not later than five years

4,530

4,007

24,744

24,234

30,909

29,903

Later than five years
Total

The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place after the
lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.
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32.

Termination Benefits

The Authority terminated the contracts of a number of employees in 2015/16, incurring liabilities of £15k (2014/15
£98k) - see Note 26 for the number of exit packages and total cost per band. The amount paid to the pension fund
under statutory provision amounted to £38k in 2014/15. There were no payments in 2015/16.

33.

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

33.1.

Pension scheme

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions towards the cost
of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority
has a commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future
entitlement.
The authority participates in two post-employment schemes:



The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Hertfordshire County Council – this is a
funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay contributions into
a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.
Arrangements for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon early retirement – this is an
unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made.
However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and cash has to be
generated to meet actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.

The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme,
structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields
and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the
statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts required by statute as described in the
accounting policies note.
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33.2.

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees,
rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against
council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is
reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been
made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement
in Reserves Statement during the year:
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2015/16

2014/15

£000

£000

1,813

1,472

25

(119)

Net Interest Cost

1,528

1,896

Total post employment benefit charged to the surplus or deficit on
the provision of services
Other post employment benefit charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:

3,366

3,249

-„ Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net
interest expense)
- Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial
assumptions
- Other

1,608

(9,190)

(6,995)

12,171

(2,291)

(1,461)

(4,312)

4,769

(3,366)

(3,249)

2,059

1,968

2,059

1,968

Cost of services
Current service cost
Gains and losses on curtailments/settlements
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Total post employment benefit charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit for the
provision of services for post employment benefits in accordance
with the Code
Actual amount charged against the General Fund balance for
pensions in the year
Employers' contributions payable to scheme

33.3.

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans
is as follows:
2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair Value of Plan assets

144,083
(101,032)

152,448
(103,026)

Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation

43,051

49,422
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33.4.

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets
2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest Income
Remeasurement gain/(loss):
- The return on plan assets, excluding the
amount included in the net interest expense
Contributions from employer
Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits paid
Losses/(gains) on curtailments/settlements

103,026
3,140

94,027
3,768

Closing fair value of scheme assets

101,032

33.5.

(1,608)

9,190

2,059
471
(6,056)
0

1,968
455
(5,982)
(400)
103,026

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)

2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

Opening balance at 1 April
Current service cost
Interest Cost
Contributions from scheme participants
Remeasurement (gains) and losses:
- Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in
financial assumptions
- Other
Losses/(gains) on curtailments/settlements
Benefits paid

152,448
1,813
4,668
471

140,648
1,472
5,664
455

Closing balance at 31 March

144,083
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12,171

(2,291)
25
(6,056)

(1,461)
(519)
(5,982)
152,448
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33.6.

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity securities:
- Consumer
- Manufacturing
- Energy and Utilities
- Financial Institutions
- Health and Care
- Information and Technology
- Other

Quoted
Quoted
prices in prices not
active
in active
markets markets
3,211
8,208
7,488
1,756
7,678
1,338
4,778
233

Total
3,211
8,208
7,488
1,756
7,678
1,338
4,778
233

Private Equity

4,337

4,337

Real Estate:
- UK Property
- Overseas Property

4,512
2,637

4,512
2,637

130
6,036

20,509
27,664
477
130
6,448

Investment Funds and Unit Trusts:
- Equities
- Bonds
- Commodities
- Infrastructure
- Other

20,509
27,664
477
412

Derivatives:
Foreign Exchange
Closing balance at 31 March

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

(371)
83,751

17,281

Quoted
Quoted
prices in prices not
active
in active
markets markets
2,717
9,097
10,777
2,974
9,260
1,528
6,399
760

9,097
10,777
2,974
9,260
1,528
6,399
760
4,268

4,268
0
0

14,803
27,481
446
324

(371)
101,032

Total
2,717

92
12,325
(223)

86,564

16,462

14,803
27,481
446
92
12,649
(223)
103,026
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33.7.

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The
Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of
actuaries, for the County Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as 31 March 2013.
The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities
2015/16
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men
Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men
Women
Rate of inflation
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate of discounting scheme liabilities

2014/15

22.3
24.5

22.3
24.5

24.3
26.7

24.3
26.7

2.1%
3.6%
2.1%
3.4%

1.9%
3.5%
2.1%
3.1%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above.
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes
while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life
expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some
of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting
policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous
period.
Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme
Approximate % Approximate
increase to
monetary
Employer Liability amount (£000)
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate
9%
12,565
1 year increase in member life expectancy
3%
4,322
0.5% increase in Salary Increase Rate
1%
2,028
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate
7%
10,479

33.8.

Impact on the Authority’s Cash Flows

The actuaries anticipate Employers Contributions for the period to 31 March 2017 will be approximately
£2,021,000. The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 15.6 years.
The durations are as they stood at the previous formal valuation as at 31 March 2013.

Discretionary benefits
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year
of the decision to make the award. Other employee benefits are accounted for using the policies as are applied to
the local government pension scheme.
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34.
34.1.

Contingent Liabilities
Guarantees



The Council acts as a guarantor for mortgages on equity share properties. In the event of default by the
associations or the mortgagee, the Council will be liable for the debt.



Only certain organisations can participate in the LPFA Pension Fund. A Transferee Admission Body is usually
formed when a service or function offered by a local authority is contracted out to the private sector. These
bodies gain entry into the Pension Fund by entering into an admission agreement with the Administering
Authority (HCC) and the Outsourcing Scheme Employer. The Outsourcing Scheme Employer (i.e. Welwyn
Hatfield) must guarantee the admitted body’s liabilities in respect of the pension scheme.

The guarantee means that if an admitted body fails to pay its pension obligations to the Pension Fund then the
guarantor will take on those obligations. The Council has given such a guarantee in respect of staff TUPE’d to Mears
Limited, CP Plus Limited, Serco Limited (Plc), Steria Services Limited, Hayward Services Limited, Welwyn Hatfield
Leisure Limited (Finesse) and Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust Limited.
The Council is acting as a guarantor for existing staff at the transfer date only. As at the end of March 2016 no
guarantees had been exercised.

34.2.

A1(M) Tunnel – Galleria Development

The Council has given a full warranty in respect of the integrity of the tunnel structure for a period of 30 years from
the date of signing the agreement (1987), to the Carroll Group (the developers of the Galleria). It is impossible to
estimate with any accuracy the liability from a collapse of the tunnel. It is certain that such an event is very unlikely
as the tunnel is subject to regular engineering checks by the Highways Agency in accordance with BD63 Inspection
of Highway Structures. Since construction the findings of all inspections indicate there are no problems with regards
to the tunnel’s structural integrity. Extensive refurbishment of the tunnel has recently been completed which makes
any problem even less likely.

34.3.

Queensway House

There is an outstanding claim from the contractor, Mullaleys, who completed a major capital project in 2012/13 – the
external refurbishments of Queensway House, a residential tower block in Hatfield. The council had employed the
project management company Mace to oversee this refurbishment project. The contractor has submitted a number
of claims for extra time – which equates to approximately £300,000. This is based on a number of issues. The claim
is being robustly defended by the council.

34.4.

Land charges - Personal searches

It is possible that additional claimants may come forward to submit claims for refunds, but none have been
intimated at present.

34.5.

Other claims

There are various "live" enforcement cases which the council is prosecuting. If the Council was to be unsuccessful
in these cases it may be liable for legal costs of other parties. We are not able to make a reliable estimate of the
amount of legal costs that we could be liable for should we be unsuccessful.

34.6.

Backdated business rate refunds

There is a possibility that new claims for mandatory relief from NHS Trusts will be received. If the claims are
successful, and the claims are fully backdated the estimated cost to the council would be £2.7 million.
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Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement
The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing housing services in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from rents and
government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be
different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis of which rents are raised, is
shown in the Movement on the HRA Statement.
Notes
Expenditure
Repairs and maintenance
Supervision and management
Rent, rates, taxes and other charges
Depreciation and impairments of non-current assets
Debt management expenses
Sums directed by Secretary of State
Increase/ (decrease) in bad debt provision
Total expenditure

H5

Income
Dwelling rents
Non-dwelling rents
Charges for services and facilities
Contributions towards expenditure
Total income

2015/16
£000
10,302
8,109
443
(6,415)
46
8
563

HRA share of corporate and democratic core
Net income from HRA services

13,056

(52,626)

(47,667)
(392)
(1,238)
(710)
(50,007)

(39,570)

(42,244)

(39,084)

475
(41,769)

(32,559)

148
6,641
(161)
(10)
(35,153)

486

(Gain) or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets
Interest payable and similar charges
HRA interest and investment income
Capital Grants and Contributions Receivable
(Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services

2014/15
£000
10,103
7,713
425
(10,717)
45
37
157
7,762

(50,148)
(398)
(1,830)
(250)

Net cost of HRA services as included in the
council's Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

£000

205
6,564
(245)
-
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Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement
The HRA Income and Expenditure Account shows the actual financial performance for the year, measured in terms
of the resources consumed and generated over the last twelve months. However, the Council is required to account
for its statutory housing activity on a different accounting basis, the main differences being:





The difference between the calculated depreciation on HRA assets and the Housing Subsidy Major
Repairs Allowance has to be adjusted back into the balance for the year; and
The gain or loss on the disposal of HRA assets has to be reversed before a final balance is calculated;
and
Any impairment on HRA assets, either due to economic consumption or valuation, has to be reversed
from the account before a statutory balance can be finalised.
Payment to DCLG equivalent to the Self Financing Loan which is included under expenditure has been
reversed through the account to capital adjustment account.

This reconciliation statement summarises the differences between the outturn on the Income and Expenditure
Account and the Housing Revenue Account Balance.

Opening balance on HRA as at 1 April
(Surplus) or deficit on the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement

2015/16
£000
(12,275)

2014/15
£000
(11,269)

(32,559)

(35,153)

17,429

21,037

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations
Difference between any other item of income and expenditure
determined in accordance with the code and determined in
accordance with statutory HRA requirements
Gain or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets
Capital expenditure funded by the Housing Revenue Account
Capital grants and contribution receivable

(205)
2,021
-

Net increase or decrease before transfers to or from reserves

(148)
2,842
10

(13,315)

(11,411)

Transfers to or from reserves
Transfer to/from the Major Repairs Reserve
Transfer to/from the Capital Adjustment Account

(61)
11,750

455
9,950

(Increase) or decrease in year on HRA

(1,626)

(1,006)

Closing balance on HRA as at 31 March

(13,901)

(12,275)

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Notes to the Housing Revenue Account
H1

Housing stock numbers and values
H1.1

Number and type of dwellings in housing stock

Houses and bungalows
Flats and maisonettes
Equity share

H1.2

2014/15
Number
6,354
2,711
8
9,073

Asset values

Operational assets
Dwellings
Other land and buildings
Equipment
Non-operational assets
Investments
Assets Under Construction
Total

H2

2015/16
Number
6,328
2,682
8
9,018

31 March
2016
£000

31 March
2015
£000

904,475
713
80

750,902
730
132

2,145
342

1,950
97

907,755

753,811

Vacant possession value of housing stock

The vacant possession value and balance sheet value of dwellings within the HRA show the economic cost of
providing council housing at less than open market rents.
2015/16
£000
Vacant possession value of housing stock at 1 April

H3

2,319,165

2014/15
£000
1,925,389

Analysis of movement on the major repairs reserve

This reserve was set up on the 1 April 2001 and financed by an additional element to housing subsidy received from
the government. The reserve may only be used for capital related expenditure on the housing stock. The movement
was as follows:
2015/16
2014/15
£000
£000
Opening balance as at 1 April
3,694
2,458
Transfer to major repairs reserve during financial year
11,014
10,320
Transfer (to)/from major repairs reserve to HRA
(61)
455
Capital expenditure
(11,178)
(9,539)
Closing balance as at 31 March
3,469
3,694

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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H4

Summaries of total capital expenditure and receipts
H4.1

Summary of total capital expenditure
2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

Total capital expenditure in year

17,225

14,177

Financed by:
Direct revenue funding
Capital grants receivable
Capital receipts reserve
Major repairs reserve

2,021
4,026
11,178

2,842
10
1,787
9,538

Total financing

17,225

14,177

H4.2

Summary of total capital receipts

House sales
Discounts recovered
Total receipts

H5

2015/16
£000
9,482
124
9,606

2014/15
£000
10,901
12
10,913

Depreciation and impairment of assets
2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

Depreciation:
HRA Dwellings
Other land and buildings

10,945
69

10,247
73

Revaluation Losses/ (Gains):
HRA Dwellings

17,429

(21,037)

Total

28,443

(10,717)

H6

Rent arrears

Outstanding rent arrears at 31 March
Provision for uncollectable debts at 31 March

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

2015/16
£000
2,236
1,378

2014/15
£000
2,394
964
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Collection Fund
The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain a
separate collection fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the collection from
taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the government of council tax and non-domestic rates.
2014/15
Council Business
Tax
Rates
£000
£000
(59,047)
(59,514)
220
(59,047)

42,216
5,578
8,868

Total

Council
Tax
£000

£000
Income
(59,047) Council Tax Receivable
(59,514) Business Rates Receivable
220 Transitional Payment Protection due

(59,294) (118,341) Total income

5,482

(61,895)
(58,766)
51
(61,895)

Expenditure
Precepts, Demands and Shares
- Hertfordshire County Council
- Hertfordshire Police Authority (Council Tax Only)
- Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
- Central Government (Business Rates Only)

£000
(61,895)
(58,766)
51

(58,715) (120,610)

259
76
-

155
68
91
399

155
327
167
399

1,894
250
400
62,275

114
569
455
59,529

2,008
250
969
455
121,804

380

814

(5,406)

(2,230)

1,194
(7,636)
-

(5,026)

(1,416)

(6,442)
-

(3,782)
(479)
(765)

(142)

(892)
(1,115)

(7,636) Balance at end of year (surplus)/deficit
Shares of balance
(4,290)
- Hertfordshire County Council
(510)
- Hertfordshire Police Authority (Council Tax Only)
(1,721)
- Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
(1,115)
- Central Government (Business Rates Only)

(566)
(708)

(3,924)
(479)
(1,331)
(708)

(2,230)

(7,636)

(5,026)

(1,416)

(6,442)

153
6
150
1,422

(203)
(27)
(43)

(10)

56,666

(43)
(53)
56,447

(2,382)

(2,847)

(3,024)

617

(5,406)

(2,230)

(4,067)
(510)
(829)

(223)

(5,229)
Movement on fund balance
(2,407)
Balance at beginning of year
-

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

44,471
5,761
9,164

Total

23,071
28,839

21,929
27,411

47,698
5,578
30,797
27,411
Charges to Collection Fund
153
- Less costs of collection
224
- Less write offs of uncollectable amounts
208
- Less increase/(decrease) allowances for impairment
1,422
- Less increase/(decrease) provision for appeals
Contribution towards previous year (deficit)/surplus
(213)
- Hertfordshire County Council
(27)
- Hertfordshire Police Authority (Council Tax Only)
(86)
- Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
(53)
- Central Government (Business Rates Only)
113,113 Total Expenditure

Business
Rates
£000

50,239
5,761
32,235
28,839

218
58

(5,406)

2015/16

Collection Fund

5,768
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Notes to the Collection Fund
C1

Non-domestic rates

The total non-domestic rateable value at 31 March 2016 was £141.8m
The national non-domestic rate multiplier for the year was 48.0p for small business and 49.3p for other businesses.

C2

Calculation of council tax

The tax base calculation is derived by first multiplying the estimated number of domestic properties in each tax band
less exemptions by a weighting factor. This result is then reduced by a percentage to allow for losses on collection
and reductions through appeals.
Band

Property number
less exemptions
and discounts

Factor

Band D
equivalents

A

591.6

6/9

394.4

B

4,095.5

7/9

3,185.4

C

13,180.5

8/9

11,716.0

D

10,439.8

9/9

10,439.8

E

4,687.8

11/9

5,729.5

F

4,058.8

13/9

5,862.6

G

3,573.3

15/9

5,955.4

H

587.8

18/9

1,175.5

Total

41,214.9

44,458.6

Less adjustment for Council Tax Support

(4,487.0)

Total tax base before Collection Rate
Adjustment

39,971.6

Less adjustment for collection rates
Council tax base

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

97.5%
38,972.3
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Statement of responsibilities
The Council’s responsibilities
The council is required to:




make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Director
(Finance and Operations);
manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of its resources and safeguard its assets;
approve the Statement of Accounts.

Council Approval
The Statement of Accounts for the year to 31st March 2016 has been prepared and was approved by the Chair of the
Audit Committee under delegated powers given to him by the meeting of the Committee on 18th July 2016.

Councillor George Michaelides
Chair of Audit Committee
Date: 25th July 2016

The Chief Financial Officer’s responsibilities
The chief financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the authority’s Statement of Accounts in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, I have:


selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;



made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;



complied with the local authority Code.

I have also:


kept proper accounting records which are up to date;



taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Chief Financial Officer’s certification
I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council at the
reporting date and of its income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2016.

Pam Kettle
Director (Finance and Operations)
25th July 2016

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
Opinion on the Authority’s financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council for the year
ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial
statements comprise the:






Authority Movement in Reserves Statement,
Authority Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
Authority Balance Sheet,
Authority Cash Flow Statement,
Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement on the
Housing Revenue Account Statement and Collection Fund and the related notes 1 to 34.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2015/16.
This report is made solely to the members of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, as a body, in
accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose,
as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies
published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Financial Officer Responsibilities set out
on page 83, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of
Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set
out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2015/16, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is
to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Chief Financial Officer; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement
of Accounts 2015/16 to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
Page84146
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and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
 give a true and fair view of the financial position of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council as
at 31 March 2016 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and
 have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.
Opinion on other matters
In our opinion, the information given in the Statement of Accounts 2015/16 for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:
 in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent with other
information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the Council;
 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;
 we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary
to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014; or
 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.
We have nothing to report in these respects.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Conclusion on Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
Authority’s responsibilities

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy
ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the National
Audit Office (NAO) requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements.
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding
that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered,
whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the
use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to
the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG)
in November 2015, as to whether the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this
criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying
ourselves whether the Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether,
in all significant respects, the Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in November
2015, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council put in
place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Welwyn Hatfield Borough
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and
the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office.

Neil Harris
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor
Luton
July 2016
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Glossary of Terms
Accounting Policies
Those principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an entity that specify how the effects of
transactions and other events are to be reflected in its financial statements through:




recognising;
selecting measurement bases for; and
presenting

assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves.
Accumulated Absences
Holiday entitlements or any other form of leave such as time off in lieu earned by employees, which has not been
taken by the end of the financial year and can be carried forward to the next financial year.
Actuarial Gains and Losses
The changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because:



events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains and
losses), or
the actuarial assumptions have changed.

Asset
An asset is anything owned that can be given a monetary value, such as buildings, investments or cash.
 A current asset is one that will be used or cease to have material value by the end of the next financial year
 A long term asset provides benefits for a period of more than one year.
Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds to and not merely maintains the value of
an existing fixed asset.
Cash Equivalent
Current asset investments that are readily disposal by the authority without disrupting its business and are either
readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the carrying amount, or traded in an active market.
CIPFA
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy is the professional body for accountants in the public sector.
Community Assets
Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life and that may have
restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community assets are parks and historical buildings.
Contingent Asset
A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the local authority’s control.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Contingent Liability
A contingent liability is either:



a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control; or
a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will
be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Corporate and Democratic Core
The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which local authorities engage in specifically because
they are elected, multi-purpose authorities. The cost of these activities are thus over and above those which would
be incurred by a series of independent, single-purpose, nominated bodies managing the same services. There is
therefore no logical basis for apportioning these costs to services.
Current Service Cost (Pensions)
The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liabilities expected to arise from employee service
in the current period.
Curtailment
For a defined benefit scheme, an event that reduces the expected years of future service of present employees or
reduces for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of their future service. Curtailments
include:



termination of employees’ services earlier than expected, for example as a result of closing a factory or
discontinuing a segment of a business; and
termination of, or amendment to the terms of, a defined benefit scheme so that some or all future service by
current employees will no longer qualify for benefits or will qualify only for reduced benefits.

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules
define the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the
investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including notionally funded).
Depreciation
The measure of the cost or re-valued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that have been consumed during the
period.
Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether arising
from use, the passage of time or obsolescence through either changes in technology or demand for the goods and
services produced by the asset.
Discretionary Benefits
Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive obligation to award and are awarded
under the authority’s discretionary powers, such as the Local Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations
1996.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Estimation
The methods adopted by an entity to arrive at estimated monetary amounts, corresponding to the measurement
bases selected, for assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves.
Estimation techniques implement the measurement aspects of accounting policies. An accounting policy will specify
the basis on which an item is to be measured; where there is uncertainty over the monetary amount corresponding
to that basis, the amount will be arrived at by using an estimation technique. Estimation techniques include, for
example;



methods of depreciation, such as straight-line and reducing balance, applied in the context of a particular
measurement basis, used to estimate the proportion of the economic benefits of a tangible fixed asset
consumed in a period; or
different methods used to estimate the proportion of debts that will not be recovered, particularly where such
methods consider a population as whole rather than individual balances.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the Balance
Sheet date and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.
Exceptional Items
Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the authority and
which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence to give fair presentation of the accounts.
Finance Lease
A finance lease is one that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the
lessee.
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of another.
Going Concern
The concept that the authority will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future, in particular that the
income and expenditure accounts and Balance Sheet assume no intention to curtail significantly the scale of
operations.
Government Grants
Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or international,
in the form of cash or transfers of assets to an authority in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions
relating to the activities of the authority.
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS)
IASs are an earlier form of an international accounting standard. Since 2000 all international standards are IFRSs.
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, adapted for public sector where appropriate.
Heritage Assets
A heritage asset is an asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental qualities
that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture.
Impairment
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its carrying amount on the Balance Sheet.
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Infrastructure Assets
These are assets that comprise public facilities and which provide essential services and enhance the productive
capacity of the economy, for example highways and footpaths
Inventory
The amount of unused or unconsumed inventory held in expectation of future use. When use will not arise until a
later period, it is appropriate to carry forward the amount to be matched to the use or consumption when it arises.
Inventories comprise the following categories:







goods or other assets purchased for resale;
consumable stores;
raw materials and components purchased for incorporation into products for sale;
products and services in intermediate stages of completion;
long-term contract balances; and
finished goods.

Investment Properties
Interest in land and/or buildings:



in respect of which construction work and development have been completed; and
which is held for its investment potential, with any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investments (Non-Pensions Fund)
A long-term investment is an investment that is intended to be held for use on a continuing basis in the activities of
the authority. Investments should be so classified only where an intention to hold the investment for the long-term
can clearly be demonstrated or where there are restrictions as to the investor’s ability to dispose of the investment.
Investments, other than those in relation to the Pensions Fund, that do not meet the above criteria should be classified
as current assets.
Net Book Value
The amount at which fixed assets are included in the Balance Sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current value less the
cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.
Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability
For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the period in the present value of the scheme liabilities
because the benefits are one period closer to settlement.
Net Realisable Value
The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or market value in the case of non-operational assets), less
the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset.
Non-operational Assets
Fixed assets held by a local authority but not used or consumed in the delivery of services or for the service or
strategic objectives of the authority. There are three categories of non-operational assets; investment properties;
assets that are surplus to requirements and assets under construction. It should be noted that the incidence of rental
income does not necessarily mean that the asset is an investment property; it should be deemed an investment
property only if the asset is held solely for investment purposes and does not support the service or strategic
objectives of the authority and the rental income is negotiated at arms length.
Operating Leases
A lease other than a finance lease.
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Operational Assets
Fixed assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the local authority in the direct delivery of those services for
which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.
Past Service Cost
For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities related to employee service
in prior periods arising in the current period as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits.
Precept
Hertfordshire County Council and Hertfordshire Police Crime Commissioner, who do not administer the council tax
system, both levy an amount on the Council, who collects the required income on their behalf, to finance their
expenditure.
Prior Period Adjustments
Material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policies or from the correction of
fundamental errors. A fundamental error is one that is of such significance as to destroy the validity of the financial
statements. They do not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior
years.
Related Parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements.
A person or a close member of that person’s family related to a reporting entity if that person:
 has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
 has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
 is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.
An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:
 The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
 One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).
 Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
 One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
 The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an
entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the reporting entity.
 The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by the person identified.
 The person identified has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
Related Party Transactions
A related party transaction is the transfer of resources or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
It should be noted that the definition of related party should be read both ways – i.e. considering the local authority
as both a controller/influencer and a controlled/influenced entity.
Remeasurement on the Net Defined Benefit Liability
Comprises Actuarial Gains and Losses and Return on Plan Assets.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Glossary of Terms
Remuneration
All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances (as far as those sums
are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits received other than in cash. Pension
contributions payable by the employer are excluded.
Retirement Benefits
All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by employees that are payable
after the completion of employment. Retirement benefits do not include termination benefits payable as a result of
either
 an employer’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or
 an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits, because these are
not given in exchange for services rendered by employees.
Return on Plan Assets
A measure of the return (income from dividends, interest, etc, and gains on invested sums) on the investment assets
held by the scheme for the year
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)
Capital expenditure which does not create or add to the value of an item of property, plant or equipment belonging
to the authority. For instance, capital grants given to external bodies, or loans awarded for capital purchases.
Scheme Liabilities
The liabilities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. Scheme liabilities measured
using the projected unit method reflects the benefits that the employer is committed to provide for service up to the
valuation date.
Settlement
An irrevocable action that relieves the employer (or the defined benefit scheme) of the primary responsibilities for a
pension obligation and eliminates significant risks relating to the obligation and the assets used to effect the
settlement. Settlements include:




a lump-sum cash payment to scheme members in exchange for their rights to receive specified pension
benefits;
the purchase of an irrevocable annuity contract sufficient to cover vested benefits; and
the transfer of scheme assets and liabilities relating to a group of employees leaving the scheme.

Useful Life
The period over which the local authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
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Agenda Item 12
Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
2015/16 Annual Assurance Statement
and
Internal Audit Annual Report
25 July 2016
Recommendations
Members are recommended to:
Note the Annual Assurance Statement and Internal
Audit Annual Report
Note the results of the self-assessment as required
by both the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
and the Quality Assurance and Improvement
Programme
Accept the SIAS Audit Charter
Seek assurance from management that the scope
and resources for internal audit were subject to no
inappropriate limitations in 2015/16
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1.

Purpose and Background
Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to:






Document and communicate internal audit’s overall opinion on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control environment,
commenting on significant matters and key themes
Summarise the audit work from which the opinion is derived
Summarise the performance of the Shared Internal Audit Service
(SIAS) in respect of audit work delivered for the Council
Show the outcomes of the self-assessment against the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) incorporating the requirements of the
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP)
Present the Audit Charter for 2016/17.

Background
1.2

The provision to the Council of an annual opinion on internal control is a
key duty of the Head of Assurance. It is timed to support the production of
the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.

1.3

Reporting the work of SIAS to Audit Committee Members ‘charged with
governance’ provides them with an opportunity to review and monitor the
outputs of internal audit activity and gain assurance that the Council’s
internal audit function is fulfilling its statutory obligations. This process is
an integral component of corporate governance.

1.4

The Head of Assurance’s opinion is based on internal audit work
undertaken during the 2015/16 financial year. SIAS is grateful for the cooperation and support it has received from all those who have engaged
with the audit process during the period.
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2. Annual Assurance Statement 2015/16
Context
2.1

Scope of responsibility
The management of the Council is responsible for ensuring its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that
public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used
economically, efficiently and effectively.
The management of the Council is also responsible for ensuring that there
is a sound system of internal control, which includes arrangements for
managing risk.

2.2

Control environment
The Council’s control environment comprises three key areas: internal
control, governance, and risk management arrangements. Together these
areas are designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than
eliminate risk completely.
The purpose of these arrangements is to help ensure that the Council’s
policies, priorities and objectives are achieved.

2.3

Review of effectiveness
The Head of Assurance is required to confirm the fitness for purpose of
internal audit to carry out work that informs the assurance opinion.
A self-assessment exercise, thus satisfying PSIAS requirements 1311 and
1312 for periodic self-assessments as part of a Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme was conducted against the PSAIS requirements
and its results allow SIAS to evidence that effective arrangements are in
place and internal audit standards are in line with good practice.
As a result, the Head of Assurance is able to report a substantial level of
conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and
considers the internal audit service to be effective.
The exercise did not identify any significant deviations from Standards
which warrant inclusion in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.
Appendix C of this report contains a table setting out areas where further
action is needed in order to ensure conformance and discloses areas of
intentional non-conformance.
Further, an independent review of internal audit has taken place and the
effectiveness of the service has been confirmed as a result. Detail of the
key findings and recommendations of the independent review is shown in
Section 4 of this report.
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2.4

Confirmation of independence of internal audit and assurance on
limitations
The Head of Assurance confirms that during the year there have been no
matters arising which have threatened the independence of the internal
audit function. The Head of Assurance also confirms that there have been
no inappropriate scope or resource limitations on the internal audit
function during the year.

2.5

Basis of assurance opinion
Our assurance opinion is based on the work carried out by SIAS during
2015/16 which has been planned in order to give sufficient assurance on
the management of key risks within the organisation.
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Annual Assurance Statement for 2015/16
2.6

Assurance opinion on internal control
From the internal audit work undertaken in 2015/16 we can provide the
following opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s
control environment, broken down between financial and non-financial
systems. There are no qualifications to this assurance.

ASSURANCE OPINION:
FINANCIAL SYSTEMS

ASSURANCE OPINION:
NON-FINANCIAL
SYSTEMS

2.7

Our overall opinion is Substantial
Assurance, whilst there is a largely
sound system of control there are some
minor weaknesses which may put a
limited number of the system objectives
at risk.

Our overall opinion is Substantial
Assurance, whilst there is a largely
sound system of control there are some
minor weaknesses, which may put a
limited number of the system objectives
at risk.

Assurance opinion on Corporate Governance and Risk Management
In our opinion the corporate governance and risk management framework
substantially complies with the best practice guidance on corporate
governance issued by CIPFA/SOLACE. This conclusion is based on both:
the work undertaken by the Council and reported in its Annual
Governance Statement for 2015/16; and, the specific reviews of Corporate
Governance and Risk Management carried out by SIAS in March 2016,
both of which received an overall substantial assurance opinion.

Head of Assurance for the Shared Internal Audit Service
June 2016
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3. Overview
2015/16

of

Internal

Audit

Activity

in

3.1

This section of the report summarises the work of the audit service during
the year, highlighting matters of significance in respect of the internal
control environment and opportunities for improvement.

3.2

Appendix A lists the audit work that was completed in the year and the
final position on the agreed audit plan, including the assurance level
provided and number of recommendations made. The levels of assurance
and priority of recommendations are summarised in the tables below, and
include a comparison against 2014/15.

Assurance Level

Full
Substantial
Moderate
Limited
No
Not Assessed
Total
Recommendation
Priority Level

High
Medium
Merits Attention
Total

Number of reports
2015/16

Percentage of reports
2015/16

(2014/15 data in brackets)

(2014/15 data in brackets)

4 (11)
18 (9)
0 (2)
0 (0)
0 (0)
0 (1)
22 (23)

18% (48%)
82% (39%)
0% (9%)
0% (0%)
0% (0%)
0% (4%)
100% (100%)

Number of
recommendations
2015/16

Percentage of
recommendations made
2015/16

(2014/15 data in brackets)

(2014/15 data in brackets)

0 (0)
23 (14)
35 (29)
58 (43)

0% (0%)
40% (33%)
60% (67%)
100% (100%)

3.3

The substantial assurance opinion overall on financial systems (same as
2014/15) has been concluded from the eight financial systems audits
where an opinion has been given. Two received full assurance and six
received substantial assurance. No high priority recommendations were
made in these audits.

3.4

The substantial assurance opinion overall on non-financial systems has
been concluded from the thirteen audits where an opinion has been given.
An opinion of full assurance was provided for two of the reviews and the
remaining twelve received substantial assurance. No high priority
recommendations were made in these audits. The substantial assurance
opinion overall on non-financial systems is the same as that given in
2014/15.
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4. Performance of the Internal Audit Service in
2015/16
Performance indicators
4.1

The table below compares the performance in 2015/16 of SIAS at East
Herts Council against targets set by the Board of the Shared Internal Audit
Service.
Indicator

Target for
2015/16

Actual to 31 March 2016

1 SIAS Planned Days – percentage
of actual billable days delivered
against planned billable days

95%

97%*

2 SIAS Planned Projects – actual
completed projects to draft report
stage against planned completed
projects

95%

95%

Formal Reliance

Achieved

Deadline met

Achieved

100%

100%

Deadline met

Achieved

3 External Auditors’ Satisfaction –
the Annual Audit Letter should
formally record whether or not the
External Auditors are able to rely upon
the range and the quality of SIAS’
work
4 SIAS Annual Plan – prepared in
time to present to the March meeting
of each Audit Committee. If there is
no March meeting then the plan
should be prepared for the first
meeting of the financial year
5 Client Satisfaction - client
satisfaction questionnaires returned at
‘satisfactory overall’ level (minimum of
39/65 overall)
6 Head of Assurance’s Annual
Report – prepared in time to present
to the first meeting of each Audit
Committee in the financial year
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7 Number of High Priority Audit
Recommendations agreed

95%

None made in 2015/16

* Figure calculated as follows:
Original WHBC plan days 2015/16
Less unused contingency days
Total deliverable days available

260
0
----260

Billed days for 2015/16

253

Billed days as a percentage of total deliverable days available = 253/260= 97%
The remaining seven days (260 – 253) represents work to be completed in
2016/17.
Developments in the year
4.2

During 2015/16 a number of service development activities took place
within SIAS, designed to continually enhance the service offering:





Shared Learning – a joint review took place to compare Risk
Management processes across the partnership; further, quarterly
shared learning updates are published.
Procurement of external partner – SIAS worked in conjunction with the
new external partner (BDO) for year one of a three year contract.
Methodology review – a project to review the means by which audit
fieldwork is documented by SIAS auditors.
External Peer Review – see sections 4.3 to 4.9 below.

Review of Effectiveness
4.3

The PSIAS state that an external review of the effectiveness of Internal
Audit should be undertaken at least every five years (date of first review
2011/12). SIAS elected to join a peer review group which also comprises
the South West Audit Partnership, the Devon Audit Partnership and
Veritau Ltd. The latest external review conducted in January 2016 was
undertaken by Veritau Ltd (a local authority controlled company which
provides internal audit, counter fraud and other governance services).

4.4

The objectives of the review were:
 To assess the effectiveness of the SIAS Partnership for key
stakeholders
 To meet the PSIAS requirement for an annual review of effectiveness
for internal audit
 To make recommendations to help improve the effectiveness of SIAS.

4.5

The assessors reviewed an evidence pack submitted by the Head of
Assurance and interviewed various stakeholder groups representing:
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senior leaders; auditees; employees of SIAS and the SIAS management
team.
4.6

The review concluded that SIAS ‘generally conforms’ to the PSIAS,
including the Definitions of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the
Standards. ‘Generally conforms’ is the top rating and means that the
internal audit service has a charter, policies and processes that are judged
to be in conformance to the Standards.

4.7

The assessors’ identified the following areas of good practice:
a) The partnership is now well established and has gained an extremely
good reputation with its member councils, both from officers and audit
committee members.
b) The service has credibility and its recommendations and advice are
valued by management.
c) The auditors conduct themselves in a professional manner, display
knowledge of the areas they are auditing, adopt a flexible approach
and are seen to be responsive to the needs of the client.
d) The audit team is well resourced and the auditors take pride in the
work they do.
e) Time management is excellent and there is a real emphasis on
efficient working, assignment planning, review and control.
f) The partnership has achieved its original objectives in terms of greater
resilience, improved capacity, more efficient working and enhanced
professionalism.
g) The service is endeavouring to develop a number of areas to help
support its future work, including use of computer assisted audit
techniques and assurance mapping.

4.8

The assessors identified the following areas which merit further attention:
a) The self-assessment questionnaire would benefit from more detailed
commentary.
b) The Audit Charter should be updated.
c) Consideration should be given to including a disclaimer on the Terms
of Reference and template report format.
e) Measures should be taken to increase staff engagement in ‘shared
learning’ across the member councils.
f) Steps should be taken to promote the availability of SIAS as a source
of strategic advice and support.
g) Consideration should be given to formalising the existing follow up
arrangements so that there is greater consistency in practice across
the client councils.

4.9

These areas will be addressed as part of the 2016/17 SIAS Service Plan
as approved by the SIAS Board.
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5. Compliance with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards and Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme
5.1

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards are based on the mandatory
elements of the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF). They promote the
professionalism, quality, consistency and effectiveness of internal audit
across the public sector. They highlight the importance of robust,
independent and objective internal audit arrangements to provide senior
management with the key assurances they need to support them both in
managing the organisation and in producing the Annual Governance
Statement.

5.2

A review of SIAS’s conformance with the PSIAS standards was carried out
as part of an external peer review (please see 4.3 above).

5.3

The previous self-assessment carried out in May 2015 identified three
areas of part-conformance. Progress against these areas has been reassessed and now considered to be in conformance. Details are shown in
Appendix C, Section C.

5.4

In relation to areas of intentional non-conformance these are set out in
Appendix C, Section B and cover the requirement for the chief executive
sign off for the Head of Assurance’s Appraisal. The Head of Assurance’s
Appraisal includes an opportunity for Chief Financial Officers across the
SIAS partnership to input views. It is considered that this is appropriate
given the shared nature of the service and no further action is currently
proposed.

5.5

One of the main elements of the PSIAS is the requirement to define a
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) for SIAS. This
work has been duly undertaken.

5.6

The SIAS QAIP includes both internal and external monitoring and
reporting to assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit
activity and identify opportunities for improvement. The diagram below
details the methods used to monitor and report on quality and
performance. Detailed information outlining activity in each area is
contained in the SIAS Audit Manual.
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5.7

During the year SIAS has operated according to its QAIP. Evidence is
available within the service to support the achievement of each of the
QAIP elements.

5.8

An externally commissioned review of the service’s conformance with
PSIAS standards has to be undertaken at least once every five years. A
review was undertaken by Veritau Ltd in 2015/16 (see sections 4.3 to 4.9).
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6. Audit Charter
6.1

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that a local authority
formally adopts an Audit Charter covering the authority and responsibility
for its internal audit function.

6.2

The SIAS Audit Charter sets out the framework within which it discharges
its internal audit responsibilities to those charged with governance in the
Council. It also details the permanent arrangements for the internal audit
and key governance roles and responsibilities to ensure the effectiveness
of internal audit provision.

6.3

An annual review of the Audit Charter is undertaken as part of the SIAS
Service Plan activity. The review for 2016/17 did not result in any
fundamental changes to the document, although a number of minor
amendments have taken place. The Charter for 2016/17 is attached at
Appendix D.
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APPENDIX A - FINAL POSITION FOR THE 2015/16 AUDIT PLAN

2015/16 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Audit Plan
Level of
Assurance

Recommendations

Plan
Days

Audit progress
/Status

H

M

MA

Full

0

0

0

8

Final report issued

Debtors – CRSA Year 1

Substantial

0

2

2

6

Final report issued

Creditors – CRSA Year 1

Substantial

0

1

4

6

Final report issued

Full

0

0

0

6

Final report issued

Payroll - CRSA Year1

Substantial

0

0

2

6

Final report issued

Council Tax

Substantial

0

1

2

12

Final report issued

NDR

Substantial

0

0

1

12

Final report issued

Housing Benefits

Substantial

0

2

4

15

Final report issued

Insurance

Substantial

0

0

1

10

Final report issued

Facilities Management

Substantial

0

3

3

10

Final report issued

Customer Services

Substantial

0

0

1

10

Final report issued

Key Financial Systems
Main Accounting - CRSA Year 2
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Treasury Management – Investments
CRSA Year 1

Operational Audits
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Level of
Assurance

Recommendations

Plan
Days

Audit progress
/Status

H

M

MA

Full

0

0

0

10

Final report issued

Substantial

0

0

1

5

Final report issued

Full

0

0

0

5

Final report issued

Development Management

Substantial

0

1

2

10

Final report issued

Campus West

Substantial

0

7

0

17

Final report issued

Safeguarding

Substantial

0

1

2

14.5

Final Report issued

Enforcement

-

-

-

-

0

Audit cancelled

Abandoned Vehicles

-

-

-

-

0.5

Audit cancelled

Substantial

0

0

2

5

Final report issued

N/A

-

-

-

5

Completed

N/A

-

-

-

2

Completed

Hackney Carriages
Grants to External Bodies
Remuneration Panel
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Contract Management
Contract Management
Local Reviews
Audit Recommendations Follow up
Shared Learning
Shared Learning Newsletters and Summary
Reports
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Level of
Assurance

Recommendations
H

M

MA

Plan
Days

Audit progress
/Status

Audit Committee Workshop

N/A

-

-

-

1

Completed

Joint Review – Risk Management
Benchmarking Workshop

N/A

-

-

-

2

Completed

Risk Management

Substantial

0

1

0

5

Final report issued

Corporate Governance

Substantial

0

1

0

5

Final report issued

N/A

-

-

-

5

Complete

Cyber Security

Substantial

0

2

6

12

Final report issued

Application Security

Substantial

0

1

2

8

Final report issued

Head of Internal Audit Opinion 2014/15

-

-

-

-

5

Complete

Audit Committee

-

-

-

-

8

Complete

External Audit Liaison

-

-

-

-

4

Complete

Risk Management and Governance
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Ad Hoc Advice
Ad hoc Advice
IT Audits

Strategic Support and Contingency
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Level of
Assurance

Recommendations
H

M

MA

Plan
Days

Audit progress
/Status

Monitoring and Client Liaison

-

-

-

-

12

Complete

SIAS Development

-

-

-

-

5

Complete

2016/17 Audit Planning

-

-

-

-

5

Complete

-

-

-

-

3

Complete

-

-

-

-

5

Complete

0

23

35

Contingency
Contingency
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2014/15 Projects Requiring Completion
2014/15 Projects Requiring Completion
Recommendations
Plan Days

260

Key to Assurance Level and Recommendation Priority Levels:
N/A = Not Applicable
H = High priority recommendations; M = Medium priority recommendations; MA = Merits Attention priority recommendations
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APPENDIX B - DEFINITIONS OF ASSURANCE LEVELS AND PRIORITY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Levels of assurance
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Full Assurance

There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and
manage the risks to achieving those objectives. No weaknesses have been
identified.

Substantial Assurance

Whilst there is a largely sound system of control, there are some minor
weaknesses, which may put a limited number of the system objectives at risk.

Moderate Assurance

Whilst there is basically a sound system of control, there are some areas of
weakness, which may put some of the system objectives at risk.

Limited Assurance

There are significant weaknesses in key control areas, which put the system
objectives at risk.

No Assurance

Control is weak, leaving the system open to material error or abuse.

Priority of recommendations
High

There is a fundamental weakness, which presents material risk to the objectives
and requires urgent attention by management.

Medium

There is a significant weakness, whose impact or frequency presents a risk which
needs to be addressed by management.

Merits Attention

There is no significant weakness, but the finding merits attention by management.
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APPENDIX C – PROGRESS AGAINST PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS AT MAY 2016 – ACTION PLAN

Section A: Conformance
During 2015/16 all areas apart from those identified in Section B below are conforming.

Section B: Intentional Non-Conformance
Ref

Area of Non-Conformance with the
Standard

3.1a

Purpose, Authority and
Responsibility
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Does the board (defined as the Audit
Committee) approve decisions relating
to the appointment and removal of the
Chief Audit Executive (CAE) (Head of
Assurance)

Commentary

The Director of Resources,
Hertfordshire County Council (HCC), in
consultation with the Board of the
Shared Internal Audit Services
approves decisions relating to the
appointment and removal of the CAE.
This is as provided for in the
governance of the Shared Internal
Audit Service.
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Non-conformance
No further action proposed. The current
arrangements are considered effective
given the shared nature of SIAS.
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3.1c

Purpose, Authority and
Responsibility
Does the chief executive or equivalent
undertake, countersign, contribute
feedback to or review the performance
appraisal of the CAE?

The performance appraisal is carried
out by the Director of Resources
(HCC).
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Non-conformance
No further action proposed. The
appraisal process was carried out by
the Director of Resources (HCC) with
input from all partner chief finance
officers. The current arrangements are
considered effective given the shared
nature of SIAS.
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Section C: Previous Part Conformance – now Conformance
Ref

Area of Non-Conformance with the Standard

3.3

Proficiency and Due Professional Care

Position as at May 2015

Do internal auditors have sufficient knowledge of the appropriate computer- Conformance
assisted audit techniques that are available to them to perform their work,
including data analysis techniques?
Team members have appropriate
knowledge and a strategy for
computer assisted audit techniques
now in place.
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4.5

Communicating results
Does the Annual Report incorporate the results of the QAIP and any
associated improvement actions

Conformance
QAIP in place and results reported
annually.
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Process improvements
implemented in 2015/16. These
include Head of Assurance review
of a sample of completed files (to
cover quality of work, compliance
with standards, challenge to
assurance opinions) and regular
QAIP meetings (involving The
Management Team and Principal
Auditors) to consider review and
monitoring activities within SIAS.
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4.5

Communicating results
The results of the QAIP?
Progress against any improvement plans resulting from the QAIP?

Conformance
QAIP in place and results reported
annually.
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Process improvements
implemented in 2015/16. These
include Head of Assurance review
of a sample of completed files (to
cover quality of work, compliance
with standards, challenge to
assurance opinions) and regular
QAIP meetings (involving The
Management Team and Principal
Auditors) to consider review and
monitoring activities within SIAS.
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Internal Audit Charter
19
1.

Introduction and Purpose

1.1. Internal auditing is an independent and objective assurance and consulting
activity that is guided by a philosophy of adding value to improve the operations
of the Council. It assists the Council in accomplishing its objectives by bringing a
systematic and disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Council’s risk management, control, and
governance processes.

2.

Scope

2.1. This Internal Audit Charter is applicable to all clients of Hertfordshire’s Shared
Internal Audit Service (SIAS) during 2016/17. These clients are:










3.

East Hertfordshire Council
Hertfordshire County Council
Hertsmere Borough Council
North Hertfordshire District Council
Stevenage Borough Council
Three Rivers District Council
Watford Borough Council
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust

Statutory Basis of Internal Audit

3.1. Within local government there is a statutory requirement for an internal audit
function. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that ‘a relevant
authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness
of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account
public sector internal auditing standards or guidance’.
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3.2. In addition, a council’s Chief Finance Officer has a statutory duty under Section
151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to establish a clear framework for the
proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs. The S151 officer relies,
amongst other sources, upon the work of internal audit in reviewing the operation
of systems of internal control and financial management.

4.

Role

4.1. Internal audit activity provided by SIAS is overseen by the Audit Committee. The
responsibilities of SIAS are defined by the Audit Committee, via this Charter, as
part of its oversight role.
4.2. SIAS may undertake consultancy activity (additional activity requested by
management) where it has the necessary skills and resources to do this. Such
activity will be determined by the Head of Assurance on a case by case basis
and significant additional consulting activities will not be carried out without prior
consultation of the SIAS Board.

5.

Professionalism

5.1. SIAS governs itself by adherence to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS). These mandatory public sector specific standards were introduced on 1
April 2013, through a joint venture between the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Chartered Institute of Internal
Auditors (IIA).
5.2. This mandatory guidance includes the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of
Ethics and the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing (‘the Standards’) and sets out the fundamental requirements for the
professional practice of internal auditing and for evaluating the effectiveness of
an internal audit function’s performance.
5.3. The IIA’s Practice Advisories, Practice Guides, and Position Papers are adhered
to as applicable to guide operations. In addition, SIAS adheres to the council’s
relevant policies and procedures, including compliance with the Bribery Act 2010
and other relevant legislation. These are included in SIAS’s standard operating
procedures manual, which is subject to regular review.
5.4. In the event of non-conformance with the Standards, the Head of Assurance will
investigate and disclose, in advance if possible, the exact nature of the nonconformance, the reasons for it, and, if applicable, the impact on any specific
engagement or engagement result.

6.

Authority and Confidentiality

6.1. With strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding records and
information, SIAS is authorised full, free, and unrestricted access to any and all of
Page
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a client’s records, physical properties, and personnel pertinent to carrying out an
engagement.
6.2. Internal Auditors must only use this information for carrying out the audit, and
must ensure that it is not used in any manner that would be contrary to the law,
for personal gain, or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the
client organisation(s). However, disclosure must be made of all material facts
known to Internal Auditors which, if not disclosed, could distort their reports or
conceal unlawful practice.
6.3. All employees are requested to assist SIAS in fulfilling its roles and
responsibilities. SIAS also has free and unrestricted access to the Audit
Committee and Senior Management.

7.

Organisation

7.1. SIAS has direct access to Senior Management, the Audit Committee, the Chief
Executive and the Chair of the Audit Committee. The Section 151 Officer and the
Audit Committee will jointly agree the level of internal audit resource to be
deployed. The Head of Assurance will communicate and interact directly with
Senior Management, the Audit Committee, and the nominated external audit
representative in executive sessions and between meetings as appropriate.
Outside formal Senior Management and Audit Committee meetings, the Head of
Assurance will have unrestricted access to the Chief Executive and the Chair of
the Audit Committee.
7.2. For line management purposes, the Head of Assurance reports to the post of
Director of Resources at Hertfordshire County Council (HCC), who approves all
decisions regarding the performance evaluation, appointment, or removal of the
Head of Assurance, in consultation with the SIAS Board. Feedback is also sought
from the Audit Committee chairs of the SIAS partners.

8.

Stakeholders

8.1. The following groups are defined as stakeholders of SIAS:
8.2. The Head of Assurance, who must be suitably experienced and qualified (CCAB
and / or CMIIA), is responsible for hiring, appraising and developing appropriate
Internal Audit staff in accordance with the HR guidance of the hosting Authority
and the job descriptions which are kept up-to-date and reflect the roles,
responsibilities, skills, qualifications, and attributes required of Internal Auditors.
Together, the Internal Audit staff will possess or obtain the skills, knowledge and
other competencies (including ethical practice) required to perform SIAS
engagements.
8.3. The Audit Committee fulfils the role of ‘board’ in the majority of instances, and is
responsible for overseeing the effectiveness of SIAS and holding the Head of
Assurance to account for delivery, through the setting of performance targets and
receipt of regular updates and reports. The Audit Committee is responsible for
24
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the effectiveness of the governance, risk and control environment within the
Council, holding managers to account for delivery. The Chair of the Audit
Committee will also be asked to contribute to the annual appraisal of the Head of
Assurance.
8.4. Senior Management, defined as the Head of Paid Service, Chief Officers, and
their direct reports, are responsible for helping shape the programme of
assurance work through an analysis and review of key risks to achieving the
Council’s objectives and priorities. Senior management provides leadership and
direction for the Council.
8.5. The SIAS Board is the governance group charged with monitoring and reviewing
the overall operation of SIAS, including:




9.

resourcing and financial performance,
performance indicators measuring operational effectiveness, and
the overall strategic direction of the shared service.

Independence and Objectivity

9.1. SIAS will remain free from interference by any element in the organisation in
matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing, or report content
to permit maintenance of a necessary independent and objective mental attitude.
9.2. As well as having an impartial, unbiased attitude, Internal Auditors will have no
direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the activities audited.
Accordingly, they will not implement internal controls, develop procedures, install
systems, prepare records, or engage in any other activity that may impair an
internal auditor’s judgment.
9.3. The Head of Assurance will confirm to the Audit Committee, at least annually, the
organisational independence of SIAS.

10. Conflicts of Interest
10.1. Internal auditors must exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity when
gathering, evaluating, and communicating information about the activity or
process being examined.
10.2. In addition to ensuring that any information accessed as part of the audit process
is not used for personal gain, Internal auditors must make a balanced
assessment of all the relevant circumstances and not be unduly influenced by
their own interests or by others in forming judgments.
10.3. Each auditor is required, in addition to the ethical requirements of the various
professional bodies, to proactively declare any potential conflict of interest,
whether actual or apparent, prior to the commencement of each audit
assignment.
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10.4. All auditors are required to sign an annual declaration of interest to ensure that
the allocation of audit work avoids conflict of interest. Auditors who undertake any
consultancy work or are new to the team will be prohibited from auditing in those
areas where they have worked in the past year. Audits are rotated within the
team to avoid over-familiarity and complacency.
10.5. SIAS has procured an arrangement with an external audit partner to provide
additional internal audit days on request. The external partner will be used for the
internal audit of any functions directed by the Head of Assurance and to provide
competent advice and assistance to the Head of Assurance in the event that the
skills, knowledge, and other competencies are lacked by SIAS staff.
10.6. In the event of a real or apparent impairment of independence or objectivity,
including acceptance of gifts, hospitality, inducements or other benefits,
investigation and declaration, in advance if possible, to appropriate parties will be
carried out by the Head of Assurance.

11. Responsibility and Scope
11.1. The scope of SIAS encompasses, but is not limited to, the examination and
evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s governance,
risk management, and internal control processes in relation to the organisation’s
defined goals and objectives. Internal control and risk management objectives
considered by internal audit extend to the entire control and risk management
environment of the organisation and include:







consistency of operations or programs with established objectives and
goals, and effective performance;
effectiveness and efficiency of governance, operations and employment of
resources;
compliance with significant policies, plans, procedures, laws, and
regulations;
design, reliability and integrity of management and financial information
processes, including the means to identify, measure, classify, and report
such information; and
safeguarding of assets.

11.2. SIAS is responsible for evaluating all processes of the organisation including
governance processes and risk management processes and promoting
appropriate ethics and values within the organisation. It also assists the Audit
Committee in evaluating the quality of performance of external auditors and
ensuring a proper degree of coordination is maintained.
11.3. Due to its detailed knowledge and understanding of risks and controls, SIAS is
well placed to provide advice and support on emerging risks and issues. As a
result, it may perform consulting and advisory services as appropriate for the
organisation. It may also evaluate specific operations at the request of the Audit
Committee and senior management, as appropriate.
26
Page 184

11.4. Based on its activity, SIAS is responsible for reporting significant risk exposures
and control issues identified to the Audit Committee and to senior management,
including fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters needed or requested
by these bodies. This ensures SIAS plays a key role in providing assurance to
the Audit Committee and senior management on the effectiveness of the entire
control environment.
11.5. Each engagement will be allocated to (an) Internal Auditor(s) with the appropriate
skills, experience and competence, who is then responsible for carrying out the
work in accordance with the SIAS Audit Manual, and considering, as well as the
relevant elements of internal control outlined above, the needs and expectations
of clients, the extent of work required to meet the engagement’s objectives, its
cost effectiveness, and the probability of significant error or non-compliance.

12. Role in Anti-Fraud
12.1. The work programme of SIAS is designed, in part, to help deter fraud and
corruption. With this in view, SIAS bases its planning on regular risk assessment,
and works with Chief Financial Officers, the Shared Anti-Fraud Service, other
senior managers and the Audit Committee in determining its programme of work.
12.2. SIAS also shares information with relevant partners, including with government
via the National Fraud Initiative and the Shared Anti-Fraud Service, to increase
the likelihood of detecting fraudulent activity and reducing the risk of fraud to all.
12.3. The Head of Assurance should be notified of all suspected or detected fraud,
corruption or impropriety so that the impact upon control arrangements can be
evaluated.

13. Internal Audit Plan
13.1. At least annually, the Head of Assurance will submit to the Audit Committee for
review and approval a risk-based plan which sets out in priority order the audit
and other work to be carried out and demonstrates SIAS’ priorities (e.g. the need
to produce an annual internal audit opinion) and those of the organisation and
sector, including any relevant declarations of interest.
13.2. The plan will include the risk assessment approach used and reference to the
organisation’s assurance framework, as well as timing, budget and resource
requirements (including specialist input) for the next financial year. These
requirements will include a contingency for new or changed risks, time for
planning and reporting, and a contribution to the development of SIAS. The Head
of Assurance will communicate the impact of resource limitations and significant
interim changes of senior management to the Audit Committee, who should seek
similar reassurance from management.
13.3. Prior to submission to the Audit Committee for approval, the plan is discussed
with appropriate senior management. The plan will be subject to regular review in
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year, and may be modified in response to changes in the organisation’s
business, risks, operations, programmes, systems and controls. However, any
significant deviation from the approved internal audit plan will be communicated
through the periodic activity reporting process.

14. Reporting and Monitoring
14.1. The Head of Assurance will, following discussion if necessary, arrange for a
written Terms of Reference to be prepared and issued to appropriate personnel
at the start of the engagement, outlining the intended objectives, scope, and
reporting. This may be subject to review in consultation with the client during the
course of the engagement.
14.2. At the conclusion of an engagement, an internal audit report will be issued,
including a reasoned opinion, along with the framework, time period and scope
within which it was prepared and management’s response and corrective action
taken or to be taken in response to the specific risk prioritised findings and
recommendations. Management’s response will include a timetable for
anticipated completion of action to be taken and an explanation for any corrective
action that will not be implemented.
14.3. SIAS will be responsible for appropriate follow-up on findings and
recommendations and will use this work to inform the risk-based planning of
future audit work. SIAS will also report to the Audit Committee on the results of
this activity, and may, if necessary, consider revising the internal audit opinion on
the basis of this follow-up. Should the follow-up bring to light any significant error
or omission, the Head of Assurance will ensure that it is communicated to all
relevant parties.
14.4. The Head of Assurance will consider on a risk-basis any request from external
stakeholders for reports on the results of internal audit activity, in consultation
with senior management
14.5. The Head of Assurance will arrange for quarterly update reports to the Audit
Committee to advise on the results of each engagement, including significant risk
exposures and control issues, and provide an annual report to the Audit
Committee. The annual report will include an opinion on the overall control,
governance, and risk management environment (and any other issues judged
relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement), and a
summary of the work that supports the opinion including a comparison with the
plan, a statement of conformance with PSIAS, and the nature and reasons for
any impairments, qualifications or restrictions in scope.

15. Periodic Assessment
15.1. In accordance with the PSIAS the Head of Assurance and the SIAS Board will
make arrangements for the conduct by a suitably knowledgeable, qualified and
competent individual or organisation of an independent review of the
effectiveness of internal audit.
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15.2. The Head of Assurance will ensure that continuous efforts are made to improve
the efficiency, effectiveness, and quality of SIAS. This will be carried out formally
through the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme, client feedback,
appraisals, and shared learning with the external audit partner, and informally
through coaching, supervision, and documented review.
15.3. The work will be conducted on the basis of one review of SIAS providing
assurance for all SIAS partner members. The results of the review will be
included in the Annual Report.

16. Review of the Audit Charter
16.1. This charter will be subject to annual review by the Head of Assurance and any
changes presented to Audit Committee for approval at the first audit committee
meeting in each financial year.
16.2. The Audit Charter was last reviewed by Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance in May
2016. The date of the next review will be May 2017.

Note:
For readability, in this Charter the term ‘internal audit activity’ as used in the PSIAS
guidance has been replaced with ‘SIAS’.
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Agenda Item 13
Part I
Item No: 0
Main author: Ian Colyer
All Wards
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 25TH JULY 2016
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (FINANCE AND OPERATIONS)
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS – MANAGEMENT
CONFIRMATION
1

Executive Summary

1.1

This report presents at paragraph 1.2 (below) management’s confirmation to the
Audit Committee, as is required in terms of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS), that there has been no inappropriate scope or resource
limitations on internal audit activity.

1.2

The Director (Finance and Operations), in their capacity as Section 151 Officer,
confirms that there have been no inappropriate scope or resource limitations on
internal audit activity during 2015/16.

1.3

This concurs with the opinion of the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) Head of
Assurance in the SIAS annual report that there have been no inappropriate
scope or resource limitations on internal audit activity.

2

Recommendations

2.1

That the Audit Committee:(a)

notes management confirmation, as is required in terms of the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), that there have been no
inappropriate scope or resource limitations on internal audit activity, and

(b)

accepts the management confirmation when the Head of Assurance’s
annual report is considered.

3

Background

3.1

In May 2011, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA)
and the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) agreed to collaborate in the
development of the internal audit profession in the public sector. As a result,
national PSIAS, based upon the mandatory elements of the global CIIA’s
International Professional Performance Framework have been developed.

3.2

The PSIAS became effective from 1 April 2013 and consist of the following:


Definition of Internal Auditing,



Code of Ethics, and



Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.
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3.3

The above standards have been revised from 1 April 2016 to incorporate the
Mission of Internal Audit and Core Principles for the Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing.

3.4

The PSIAS replace the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government
in the United Kingdom, last revised in 2006. In local government, the PSIAS are
mandatory for all principal local authorities and other relevant bodies subject to
the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. They are also mandatory
for the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, constabularies, fire
authorities, national park authorities, joint committees and joint boards in the
United Kingdom. The PSIAS apply to all internal audit service providers, whether
in-house, shared services or outsourced.

4

Financial Implication(s)

4.1

There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations of this
report.

5

Link to Corporate Priorities

5.1

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives and priorities by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.

6

Legal Implication(s)

6.1

There are no legal implications as a result of the recommendations of this report.

7

Climate Change Implication(s)

7.1

There are no climate change implications as a result of the recommendations of
this report.

8

Risk Management Implication(s)

8.1

A risk assessment has not been prepared in relation to the contents of this report
as there are no significant risks inherent in the proposals.

9

Explanation

9.1

The standards are intended to promote further improvement in the
professionalism, quality and effectiveness of internal audit across the public
sector. They reaffirm the importance of robust, independent and objective
internal audit arrangements to provide Audit Committees and Senior
Management with the key assurances they need to support them both in
managing the organisation and in producing the annual governance statement.

9.2

One of the key requirements of the standards is that the chief audit executive
(Head of Assurance) must confirm to the committee, at least annually, the
organisational independence of the internal audit activity. The Head of Assurance
will provide this assurance in the annual report and this officer report provides the
required formal management assurance when the Committee considers the
annual report.
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10

Equality and Diversity

10.1

An equalities impact assessment has not been carried out as there are no
proposals within this report that are likely to have a differential impact on diverse
communities.

Name of author
Title
Date

Ian Colyer
Principal Governance Officer
July 2016
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Agenda Item 14

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
Audit Committee
Internal Audit Progress Report
25 July 2016
Recommendation
Members are recommended to note the
Internal Audit Progress Report and approve
amendments to the Audit Plan as at
11 July 2016
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1 Introduction and Background
Purpose of Report
1.1

To provide Members with:
a) the progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in
delivering the Council’s 2016/17 Internal Audit Plan as at 11 July
2016,
b) the findings for the period 2 March 2016 to 11 July 2016,
c) the details of changes to the planned start dates of audits from the
approved 2016/17 Audit Plan,
d) the proposed amendments required to the approved 2016/17 Audit
Plan, and
e) an update on performance management information as at 11 July
2016.
Background

1.2

Internal Audit’s Annual Plan for 2016/17 was approved by the Audit
Committee at its meeting on 21 March 2016.

1.3

The Audit Committee receive periodic updates against the Annual
Internal Audit Plan, the most recent of which was brought to this
Committee on 21 March 2016.

1.4

The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body
so that the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an
essential component of corporate governance and gain assurance that
its internal audit function is fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is
considered good practice that progress reports also include proposed
amendments to the agreed annual audit plan.
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2

Audit Plan Update
Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings

2.1

As at 11 July 2016, 22% of the 2016/17 Audit Plan days had been
delivered (calculation excludes contingency). Appendix A provides a
status update on each individual deliverable within the audit plan.

2.2

The following reports and assignments have been issued or completed
in the period since the previous Audit Committee on 21 March 2016:
Audit Title

Date of Issue

Assurance
Level

Number of
Recommendations

2015/16 Audit Plan – Audits Finalised Since 2 March 2016
Debtors (CRSA)

18 March 2016

Substantial

2 Medium
1 Merits Attention

Creditors (CRSA)

18 March 2016

Substantial

1 Medium
4 Merits Attention

10 May 2016

Substantial

2 Merits Attention

31 March 2016

Substantial

2 Medium
4 Merits Attention

Customer Services

27 April 2016

Substantial

1 Merits Attention

Grants to External
Bodies

23 March 2016

Substantial

1 Merits Attention

27 April 2016

Substantial

1 Medium
2 Merits Attention

18 March 2016

Substantial

2 Medium

Cyber Security

29 April 2016

Substantial

2 Medium
6 Merits Attention

Application
(Software) Security

10 May 2016

Substantial

1 Medium
3 Merits Attention

Facilities
Management

11 July 2016

Substantial

3 Medium
3 Merits Attention

Payroll
(CRSA)
Housing Benefits

Safeguarding
Corporate
Governance + Risk
Management

2016/17 Audit Plan – Audits Finalised Since 1 April 2016
Streetscene Client

20 June 2016
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Substantial

1 Medium
2 Merits Attention
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Audit Title

Disabled Facilities
Grants
2.3

Creditors

11 July 2016

Assurance
Level

Number of
Recommendations

Substantial

2 Merits Attention

A summary is provided below of the recommendations made within the
above reviews.

Audit Title

Debtors

Date of Issue

Control Area and Summary of Recommendations

Response /
Implementation
Date

Access Rights (Medium Priority) - access rights to
the system should be reviewed annually, in particular
those with “super user” access levels.

Agreed – July
2016

Write-off’s / Separation of duties (Medium Priority)
- the delegation levels for writing off debts provided to
the Accounting Services Manager (who is also
responsible for aspects of recovery action) should be
revised to ensure separation of duties.

Agreed – July
2016

Access Rights (Medium Priority) - access rights
should be reviewed annually and the current allocation
of “super user” access should be limited.

Agreed – July
2016

Exception Reports (Merits Attention Priority) –
exception reports to identify high value payments and
supplier bank account changes should be introduced
as part of the pre-payment run process. Management
considered that automated workflow processes
managed this risk, but agreed to review the
segregation of duties in relation to supplier bank
account amendments.

Alternative
proposed action
to be completed
by July 2016

Raising orders after invoices being processed or
paid (Merits Attention Priority) – officers are
reminded of the need to raise orders in advance of
purchases and management should implement
monitoring to ensure that this is happening in practice.

Agreed – May
2016

Duplicate Payments (Merits Attention Priority) –
duplicate payment reports should be run on a periodic
basis. Management considered that appropriate
compensating controls exist, but agreed to review the
options to further reduce and respond to this risk.

Alternative
proposed action
to be completed
by July 2016
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Audit Title

Control Area and Summary of Recommendations

Response /
Implementation
Date

System Super user rights (Merits Attention Priority) Agreed - July
- the current allocation of “Super user” access to the
2016
Resource Link system be reviewed.
Payroll

Housing
Benefits

Customer
Services

Pay run exception reports (Merits Attention
Priority) – management should produce additional
exception reports relating to the areas of high value
additional payments and net pay exceptions, with
these being reviewed as part of the pay-run process.

Agreed – July
2016

Security of personal information - paper records
(Medium Priority) - access to the room holding paper
records should be restricted to those persons who
require access for their role and have undergone the
required security and conflict checks.

Implemented

Access controls – permissions granted to
business rates officer (Medium Priority) – one
instance was identified where the permission granted
was not appropriate to the role. Since the audit all the
necessary checks have been completed for the
exception identified and therefore no further action is
required.

Implemented

Policy documents (Merits Attention Priority) - policy
and procedure documents should be reviewed at least
annually.

Implemented

Electronic record keeping (Merits Attention
Priority) - documentation should be scanned when it is
received or within an agreed timeframe after receipt.
Management have indicated that the timeliness of
scanning and indexing benefits information received by
post will form part of the monthly contract reporting.

Agreed February 2016

Access controls - prompt removal of system
access (Merits Attention Priority) – an instance was
identified during the audit where an officer had not
been removed on a timely basis. Management have
implemented arrangements to prevent a recurrence.

Implemented

Contract Management – KPIs (Merits Attention
Priority) – existing KPI reports should include an
indication of the direction of travel over a period of
time. The range of KPI’s reported should also be
broadened.

Agreed October 2016
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Audit Title

Control Area and Summary of Recommendations

Response /
Implementation
Date
Agreed – July
2016

Grants to
External
Bodies

Grants are spent in accordance with original
expectations and outcomes are reported internally
and externally (Merits Attention Priority) - The grant
application matrix provided to Grant Board members
should include, for previous applicants, whether key
objectives were achieved and that previous grant
conditions had been complied with.
Safeguarding Action Plan (Merits Attention
Priority) – for actions ‘rolled-over’ into 2016/17, a
revised target date and detail of the original action
should be included.

Agreed - May
2016

Safeguarding

Staff and Member training (Medium Priority) Existing and planned training provision should be
reviewed against an assessment of training needed.

Agreed – March
2017

Agreed - June
Reporting / referral of Safeguarding and CSE
concerns to the relevant agencies (Merits Attention 2016
Priority) - WHBC should seek a mechanism by which
District and Borough Councils receive a positive
confirmation that concerns reported to other Agencies
have been formally acknowledged.

Corporate
Governance
and Risk
Management

Cyber
Security

Compliance with the requirements of the Local
Government Transparency Code 2015 (Medium
Priority) - the Council’s website should be reviewed to
demonstrate more clearly compliance with the
Transparency code, in particular including appropriate
explanations where information is not published.

Agreed – June
2016.

Risk Reporting (Medium Priority) – The current
arrangements and timescales for risk reporting are
reviewed to enable periodic updates to be provided to
the Audit Committee.

Agreed Ongoing

Security Strategy (Medium Priority) - As part of the
planned review of the ICT strategy more explicit
reference should be provided on the area of security,
including specific reference to cyber security.

Agreed – March
2017

Security Strategy (Merits Attention Priority) - ICT
policies are fully reviewed to confirm that their content
is still adequate, complete and up to date in all
respects, being reviewed on an annual basis in future.

Agreed –
December 2016

Security Strategy (Merits Attention Priority) - the

Agreed –
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Audit Title

Control Area and Summary of Recommendations

Council's intranet should be reviewed to ensure that
copies of all current ICT policies are included in the
Employee Information area.

Response /
Implementation
Date
December 2016

Security Governance and Control (Merits Attention Agreed –
Priority) - completion of the Learning Pool ICT
December 2016
Security on-line training module should be made
mandatory for all staff on an annual basis.
Management agreed to discuss the potential of
incorporating the training requirement into the induction
checklist for new staff
Threat and Vulnerability Management (Medium and Agreed Merits Attention Priorities) - copies of the current
December 2016
Steria Sopra ISMS, Security Management Plan and the
results of the last security tests are obtained and
reviewed against the contractual expectations. In
addition responsibilities for the network firewalls are
clarified and formally confirmed with Alternative
Networks and Sopra Steria.

Application
Security

Streetscene
Client

IT security roles and responsibilities of service
providers have been formally defined,
documented, and communicated (Medium Priority)
- formal contractual arrangements for the Orchard and
Lifespan applications are clarified to confirm the
security responsibilities for each supplier.

Agreed –
December 2016

Application design/architecture is documented and
implemented based on appropriate security
controls (Merits Attention Priority) - testing
requirements are added to the Change Management
Process document and that includes the need for
formal consideration of security implications in respect
of the live environment.

Agreed –
September 2016

Contract Administration and Monitoring
Procedures (Merits Attention Priority) - procedures
should be drafted to cover mechanisms for processing
contract payments and production of performance
monitoring reports.

Agreed – June
2017

Contract Administration – Annual Price Variation
(Medium Priority) – Information to allow verification
checks on the figures to support the annual price
variation that is not currently available should be
requested.

Agreed – May
2017
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Audit Title

Disabled
Facilities
Grants

Facilities
Management

Control Area and Summary of Recommendations

Response /
Implementation
Date

Senior Management and Member Oversight (Merits
Attention Priority) - consideration of the generation of
Lagan reports at prescribed intervals for other
complaint types, in addition to missed bins, to enable
Senior Management oversight of the whole contract.

Agreed –
December 2016

Procedure notes and guidance (Merits Attention
Priority) – Procedures are updated to record the
current contractor details and version control is added
to the document.

Agreed – July
2016

Confirmation from Land Charges (Merits Attention
Priority) - A system should be put in place to monitor
instructions sent to legal to confirm that the
acknowledgement of processing has been returned.

Agreed – July
2016

Statutory Checks – Planned Maintenance (Medium
Priority) - The current annual maintenance schedule
should be reviewed to ensure that it clearly indicates
the planned frequency of the monitoring checks
detailed within the audit finding.

Agreed – July
2016

Statutory Checks – Fire Safety Alarm tests
(Medium Priority) - the Council adhere to the British
Standard requirement for weekly break glass call point
tests. The alarm test form is completed in full for all
checks performed.

Agreed –
August 2016

Statutory Checks – Fire Safety Fire Drills (Medium
Priority) - records to support fire drills record the date,
time taken, issues arising, evidence of a debrief and
details of (and reference to the progression of) any
improvement or training actions required.

Agreed – Date to
be confirmed

Campus West Access Controls (Merits Attention
Priority) - periodic spot checks are undertaken to
confirm that all CWE leavers are notified to Facilities
Management.

Implemented

Security Alarms (Merits Attention Priority) Management confirm with the Insurance team as to
whether existing arrangements are sufficient to meet
insurance requirements. Where this is not the case
sufficient interim controls should be agreed with the
insurers until a protocol for “out of hours” alarms is
agreed.

Agreed –
October 2016
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2.4

The above table excludes audit recommendations where alternative
existing controls were highlighted by management to address issues
raised at the draft report stage of the audit (these issues and the
management comments remaining in the related final report for
completeness).

2.5

In respect of the 2016/17 plan the audit of Enforcement is currently in
fieldwork, with planning commencing on a further four audits in line with
the schedule of audit start dates detailed within Appendix B.
Changes to Projected Audit Start Dates

2.6

To help the Committee assess the current situation in terms of
progress against the projects in the 2016/17 Audit Plan, Appendix B of
this report provides an analysis of agreed start dates. These dates
have been agreed with management and resources allocated
accordingly. This is designed to facilitate smoother delivery of the audit
plan through the year.

2.7

As this is the first report of the 2016/17 financial year no proposed
changes to audit start dates are reported.
Proposed Audit Plan Amendments

2.8

There are two proposed audit plan amendments within this reporting
period.
Hatfield 2030 Project - Following a request received by the Principal
Governance Officer, SIAS were asked to provide assurance over the
accounting arrangements for the Hatfield 2030 project fund and
accounts, where WHBC is the allocated host authority for administering
the project finances. It is proposed that a total allocation of three days
is assigned for this review from the contingency budget. This work has
now been completed, with a draft report issued to management.
Facilities Management - It is proposed that two days is allocated from
contingency to allow additional compliance testing to be undertaken, on
the application of controls in practice, at the request of the Council’s
Head of Resources.

2.9

The above changes leave the Council with no remaining contingency
days within the 2016/17 plan, however the plan remains sufficiently
flexible to accommodate any emerging risks or issues with any
changes in this respect being brought to future committee’s for
approval.
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High Priority Recommendations
2.10

Members will be aware that a Final Audit Report is issued when it has
been agreed (“signed off”) by management; this includes an agreement
to implement the recommendations that have been made.

2.11

The Council’s Principal Governance Officer is responsible for following
up the implementation status of the internal audit recommendations. No
new high priority recommendations have been made in 2016/17.
Performance Management

2.12

Performance indicators and associated targets are approved by the
SIAS Board on an annual basis. The actual performance for Welwyn
Hatfield against the targets that are monitored in year is set out in the
table below.
Performance Indicator

Annual
Target

Profiled
Target

1. Planned Days –
percentage of actual billable
days against planned
chargeable days completed

95%

24%

22%

2. Planned Projects –
percentage of actual
completed projects to draft
report stage against planned
completed projects

95%

17%

13% (4 out of 23)

100%

100%
(3 questionnaires
received relating to
15/16 audits)

95%

N/a – No High
Priority Recs
Currently Made

3. Client Satisfaction –
percentage of client
satisfaction questionnaires
returned at ‘satisfactory’ level
4. Number of High Priority
Audit Recommendations
agreed

100%

95%
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APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2016-17 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 11 JULY 2016

2016/17 SIAS Audit Plan
AUDITABLE AREA

LEVEL OF
ASSURANCE

RECS
H

M

L

AUDIT
LEAD
BILLABLE
PLAN AUDITOR
DAYS
STATUS/COMMENT
DAYS ASSIGNED COMPLETED

Key Financial Systems – 70 days
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Main Accounting System

6

SIAS

Debtors

8

SIAS

Allocated
Allocated

Creditors
Treasury Management - Investments CRSA Year 2
Payroll

8

SIAS

Allocated

SIAS

Allocated

10

SIAS

Allocated

Council Tax

10

SIAS

Allocated

NDR

10

SIAS

Allocated

Housing Benefits

10

SIAS

Allocated

CCTV

10

BDO

Allocated

Campus West

10

SIAS

1

In Planning

Enforcement

10

SIAS

7.5

In Fieldwork

Business Continuity

10

BDO

8

Operational Audits – 93 days

Disabled Facilities Grant

Substantial

0

0

2

10

SIAS

10

Final Report Issued

Streetscene Client

Substantial

0

1

2

10

SIAS

10

Final Report Issued

Page 3

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2016-17 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 11 JULY 2016

AUDITABLE AREA

LEVEL OF
ASSURANCE

RECS
H

M

L

AUDIT
LEAD
BILLABLE
PLAN AUDITOR
DAYS
STATUS/COMMENT
DAYS ASSIGNED COMPLETED

Land Charges

10

SIAS

Allocated

Asset Management

10

BDO

Allocated

Safeguarding Part 2

10

SIAS

Allocated

Hatfield 2030 Project

3

SIAS

3

5

SIAS

0.5

In Planning

5

SIAS

0.5

As required

Shared Learning Newsletters and
Summary Themed Reports

2

SIAS

0.5

Through Year

Audit Committee Workshop

1

SIAS

Allocated

Joint Review – topic to be confirmed

5

SIAS

Allocated

Risk Management

5

SIAS

Allocated

Corporate Governance

5

SIAS

Allocated

5

SIAS

Draft Report Issued

Procurement – 5 days
Procurement
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Local Reviews – 5 days
Audit recommendations follow up
Shared Learning – 5 days

Risk Management and Governance – 10 days

Ad Hoc Advice – 5 days
Ad Hoc Advice
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0.5

As and when required

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2016-17 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 11 JULY 2016

AUDITABLE AREA

LEVEL OF
ASSURANCE

RECS
H

M

L

AUDIT
LEAD
BILLABLE
PLAN AUDITOR
DAYS
STATUS/COMMENT
DAYS ASSIGNED COMPLETED

IT Audits – 20 days
Data Security

10

SIAS

Allocated

IT Audit 2 – To be confirmed

10

SIAS

Allocated

5

SIAS

5

Complete

Audit Committee

8

SIAS

1.5

Quarterly

External Audit Liaison

4

SIAS

0.5

On-going

Monitoring & Client Liaison

10

SIAS

4

On-going

SIAS Development

5

SIAS

5

On-going

2016/17 Audit Planning

5

SIAS

0

SIAS

Strategic Support and Contingency – 39 days
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 15/16

Substantial

0

0

0
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Allocated

Contingency – 5 days
Contingency

15/16 Projects requiring
completion- 5 days
Facilities Management
WHBC TOTAL

N/a
Substantial

5
0

3

3

2

0

4

7

260
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SIAS

5

Complete

2

Final Report Issued

56.5

APPENDIX B 2016/17 AUDIT PLAN PROJECTED START DATES

Apr 16

Enforcement –
In Fieldwork

May 16

June 16

July 16

Aug 16

Sept 16

Oct 16

Nov 16

Dec 16

Jan 17

Feb 17

Procurement
– In
planning

Council
Tax- In
planning

Treasury
Management

Main
Accounting

Payroll

Land
Charges

Housing
Benefits

Asset
Management

Safeguarding
Part 2

Risk
Mangmt

Second IT
audit
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Disabled
Facilities Grant
– Final Report
Issued

Non
Domestic
Rates - In
planning

Debtors

Business
Continuity

Streetscene
Client – Final
Report Issued

CCTV- In
planning

Creditors

Data
Security

Hatfield 2030 –
Draft Report
Issued

Corporate
Governance

Campus
West

Note:
The above schedule is considered as the agreed plan for the audit year. Changes to planned dates within this progress reporting period are
highlighted in grey and further details are provided within section 2.6 of the progress report.
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APPENDIX C – DEFINITIONS OF ASSURANCE AND RECOMMENDATION PRIORITIES

Levels of assurance
Full Assurance

Substantial Assurance

There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and
manage the risks to achieving those objectives. No weaknesses have been
identified.
Whilst there is a largely sound system of control, there are some minor
weaknesses, which may put a limited number of the system objectives at risk.

Moderate Assurance

Whilst there is basically a sound system of control, there are some areas of
weakness, which may put some of the system objectives at risk.

Limited Assurance

There are significant weaknesses in key control areas, which put the system
objectives at risk.
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No Assurance

Control is weak, leaving the system open to material error or abuse.

Priority of recommendations
High

There is a fundamental weakness, which presents material risk to the objectives
and requires urgent attention by management.

Medium

There is a significant weakness, whose impact or frequency presents a risk which
needs to be addressed by management.

Merits Attention

There is no significant weakness, but the finding merits attention by management.
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Agenda Item 15
PART 1
ITEM NO:
FOR INFORMATION
MAIN AUTHOR - IAN COLYER
EXECUTIVE MEMBER – ROGER TRIGG
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 25TH JULY 2016
AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – MONITORING UPDATE
1

Executive Summary

1.1

This report presents an update on previous audit actions/recommendations and
progress made in the implementation of these. The report is based on exception
reporting noting those recommendations that have not been implemented. Lists
of recommendations are monitored by the Principal Governance Officer.

2

Financial Implication(s)

2.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

3

Recommendation(s)

3.1

That the Audit Committee notes and considers the content of the report.

4

Detail

4.1

The 2015/16 audit plan consisted of a total of 22 audits. Of these, 21 have been
completed with 1 outstanding due to further work being undertaken. These 21
audits contained 20 medium recommendations and 32 recommendations
meriting attention by management. A breakdown of these is shown at Appendix
A of the 2015/16 Annual Assurance Statement.

4.2

The Committee should note the following:
 Of the 20 medium recommendations, 13 are complete and 7 have not yet
reached their due by date.
 Of the 32 merits attention recommendations, 11 are complete, 19 are not
due yet and 2 are awaiting further action.
 There are no high level recommendations.

5

Policy Implication(s)

5.1

There are none.

6

Risk Assessment

6.1

The monitoring of audit recommendations is a key control to ensure that
managers are acting upon audit recommendations.
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Date

Ian Colyer
Principal Governance Officer
July 2016
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Agenda Item 16
Part I
Item No: 0
Main author: Chief Executive
All Wards
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 25TH JULY 2016
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2015/16
1

Executive Summary

1.1

This report presents the Draft Annual Governance Statement for the financial
year 2015/16 (attached at Appendix A), which has been compiled in accordance
with the best practice set out in the CIPFA / SOLACE Guidance Framework
“Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”.

2

Financial Implication(s)

2.1

There are none.

3

Recommendation(s)

3.1

That the Executive Board / Cabinet:(a)

considers and, once satisfied, approves the Draft Annual Governance
Statement.

(b)

authorises the Chief Executive, in conjunction with the Leader of the
Council, to make any subsequent amendments to the Draft Annual
Governance Statement necessitated by the comments made by both the
Standards and Audit Committees,

(c)

recommends its certification by the Leader of the Council and the Chief
Executive.

4

Background

4.1

The preparation and publication of an annual governance statement in
accordance with the CIPFA / SOLACE Guidance Framework is necessary to
meet the statutory requirement set out in the appropriate regulations. The
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is the formal statement that recognises
records and publishes the Council’s governance arrangements.

4.2

Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015
requires a local authority to conduct a review at least once a year of the
effectiveness of its system of internal control and to include a statement on this
review with any Statement of Accounts. Regulation 6(1)(b) requires that for a
local authority in England that the statement is a governance statement.

4.3

Proper practices require the AGS should include:- 1211
Page



an acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring there is a sound
system of governance (incorporating the system of internal control)



an indication of the level of assurance that the systems and processes
that comprise the authority’s governance arrangements can provide



a brief description of the key elements of the governance framework,
including reference to group activities where those activities are significant



a brief description of the process that has been applied in maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the governance arrangements, including
some comments of the role of:



-

the Council

-

the Cabinet

-

the Audit Committee, the Overview and Scrutiny function and the
Standards Committee

-

the Internal Audit function

-

other explicit review / assurance mechanisms

an outline of the actions taken, or proposed, to deal with significant
governance issues, including an agreed action plan

5

Policy Implication(s)

5.1

There are none.

6

Risk Assessment

6.1

A risk assessment has not been prepared in relation to the proposals in this
report as there are no significant risks inherent in the proposals.

7

Explanation

7.1

The CIPFA / SOLACE Guidance Framework emphasises that the AGS is a key
corporate document. The most senior Member and the most senior officer have
joint responsibility as signatories for its accuracy and completeness.

7.2

The signatories need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the governance
framework for which they are responsible. In order to achieve this, they are likely
to rely on many sources of assurance, e.g. Chief Officers, Members, Senior
Managers and the Council’s External Auditors and other review agencies.

7.3

As in previous years, the production of the AGS has been co-ordinated by the
Governance Group, an officer group chaired by the Chief Executive in his
capacity as Head of Corporate Governance

7.4

The Group’s membership also comprises:
-

the Director (Governance) – the Council’s Monitoring Officer

-

the Director (Finance and Operations) – the Council’s S151 Officer
2Page- 212

7.5

-

the Head of Resources

-

the Head of Law & Administration – the Council’s Deputy Monitoring
Officer

-

the Head of Policy & Culture

-

the Head of Housing Strategy

-

the Head of Public Health & Protection

-

the Principal Governance Officer

-

the Governance Services Manager

-

the Risk & Resilience Manager

The Governance Group has considered the following sources of assurance:Internal


existing policies and procedures



internal review activity (at both Member and officer level)



Directors’ and Heads of Service’s Management Assurance Statements



the work of the Shared Internal Audit Service, Performance Management,
Procurement and Risk Management

External


the work of the Council’s External Auditors

7.6

Members are asked to note that there is one Significant Governance Issue
highlighted in the AGS for the financial year 2015/16

7.7

Members are also asked to note that the AGS is subject to review by the
Council’s External Auditors.

8

Equality and Diversity

8.1

An equalities impact assessment has not been carried out as there are no
proposals within this report that are likely to have a differential impact on diverse
communities.

Name of author
Title
Date

Michel Saminaden
Chief Executive
4th July 2016
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SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY
1.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper
standards and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

2.

The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to
make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in
which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

3.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for
putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs,
facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes
arrangements for the management of risk.

4.

This Governance Statement explains how the Council has maintained
sound governance during the financial year 2015/16. Regulation 6 (1)
(a) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 requires a
local authority to conduct a review at least once a year of the
effectiveness of its system of internal control and to include a
statement on this review with any Statement of Accounts. Regulation 6
(1)(b) requires that for a local authority in England that the statement is
a governance statement.
THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

5.

The governance framework, which has been in place for the financial
year 2015/16 comprises the systems and processes as well as the
culture and values, by which the Council is directed and controlled and
through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community.

6.

The governance framework enables the Council to monitor the
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate and cost-effective
services.

7.

The system of internal control is a significant part of this framework and
is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. However, it cannot
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and,
therefore, can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness.

8.

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the
Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically.
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THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
9.

The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the
Council’s governance arrangements include:General

10.

The Council has adopted the Leader and Cabinet style of political
management under the Local Government Act 2000 and has a
comprehensive Constitution to govern its actions and decision-making.

11.

The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are
made and the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are
efficient, transparent and accountable to the local community. Some of
these procedures are required by law, whilst others are adopted by the
Council. The Constitution is reviewed annually and is available on both
the Council’s Website and eTeam pages.

12.

The Council has an approved Local Code of Governance, which sets
out and describes its commitment to good governance and identifies
the arrangements that have been and will continue to be made to
ensure its ongoing effective implementation and application in all
aspects of the Council’s work. The Local Code of Governance is
available on both the Council’s Website and eTeam pages.

13.

The Council acknowledges its responsibility for internal control and for
ensuring that its systems maintain the integrity of accounting records
and safeguard its assets. These systems provide reasonable
assurance as to the reliability of financial information and to maintain
proper control over the income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the
Council. However, no system of internal control can provide absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

14.

The Executive Board (comprising the Chief Executive and the three
Directors) is aware of the financial and other procedures and controls
outlined in the Constitution, and each Director and Head of Service is
required to sign a declaration of compliance, in the form of a
Management Assurance Statement, at the end of each year. Individual
Heads of Service also ensure that their staff are aware of and
consistently apply the requirements of the Constitution.
Identifying and communicating the Council’s vision of its purpose
and intended outcomes for citizens and service users

15.

The Council’s Business Plan currently runs to 2018. This sets out its
corporate priorities and objectives for the Borough. These are currently
set out under the headings of; maintaining a safe and healthy
community; protecting and enhancing the environment; meeting the
borough’s housing needs; helping build a strong local economy and
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providing value for money. The Plan also explains how the Council is
engaging with our communities, structured and governed and how,
together with the Medium Term Financial Strategy, all of its key
resources are drawn together.
16.

The Council oversees an annual community engagement programme
which seeks the views of local residents and partner organisations on
what is important in the Borough, and how its services are perceived in
the community. These needs and aspirations are then used to inform
how the Council’s services are designed and delivered, and many of
them are represented in the annual Business Action Plan targets and in
individual Service Plan targets.

17.

Community priorities and objectives are set out separately in a
Community Strategy, which is led by local community partners within
the Welwyn Hatfield Alliance, which is the Local Strategic Partnership
for the borough. An updated Strategy is due to be approved and
published in 2016-17 to complement new governance and structural
arrangements that are in place for the Alliance

18.

Partners within the Welwyn Hatfield Alliance participate in one of five
working groups covering the agreed community priorities of health,
economy, climate change, growth and infrastructure and deprivation
and exclusion. Their work programmes rely on close partnership
working to achieve locally set targets that improve overall quality of life
in the Borough.

19.

In doing this, the Council and its partners are able to coordinate their
resources to make sure that as many locally identified needs as
possible are addressed year on year.
Reviewing the Council’s vision and its implications for the
Council’s governance arrangements

20.

Annual reviews of the Council’s priorities for the Borough mean that the
published vision can evolve over time. This is particularly important in
times of significant change in the financial or political environment
within which the Council operates. The aim of the Borough’s Vision is
to safeguard and improve quality of life for everyone who lives in,
works in or visits the area. New values which demonstrate what the
Council considers to be important when dealing with local residents,
businesses and other partners have been added for 2015-18. These
are integrity, fairness, transparency and respect.

21.

The Council’s Business Plan will always form part of its governance
arrangements. It is the only strategic document which fully
encompasses Council priorities for the Borough, and integrates with
other key documents such as the Council’s Medium Term Financial
Strategy. Collectively, these explain how we seek to make best use of
our resources to support our service activities.
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Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are
delivered in accordance with the Council’s objectives and for
ensuring that they represent the best use of resources
22.

Corporate targets are individually owned by the Council’s service
teams and are performance managed by the Executive Member,
Director and Head of Service who are responsible for them. These are
monitored and exception reported through quarterly meetings of an
internal Performance Clinic attended by senior Councillors and
Officers.

23.

Chaired by the Leader, Deputy Leader and Chief Executive of the
Council, the Clinic meetings provide an opportunity to discuss and
debate progress towards corporate targets and to measure service
performance across the suite of core performance indicators. In the
case of under-performance, remedial action is identified against each
target which falls behind schedule. This is then reported to the first
available Cabinet meeting following completion of the Clinic meetings.
Clinics also enable discussions to take place on related service matters
impacting on the Council.

24.

Performance Clinics also include a summary of financial and budgetary
performance data for both capital and revenue spending. They also
review complaints data for all services and local PR and media activity
involving the Council.

25.

Community targets, owned by individual partnerships and progressed
through the working groups within the Welwyn Hatfield Alliance, are
performance managed through meetings of its Executive Group.
Defining and determining the roles and responsibilities of the
Executive, non-Executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with
clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective
communication

26.

The Council’s Constitution sets out the roles and responsibilities of both
Members and officers.

27.

The Constitution includes Role Descriptions for all Councillors, the
Leader, Deputy Leader, Cabinet Members, Lead Members and
Chairmen of the Cabinet, the Overview & Scrutiny, Hackney
Carriage, Development Management, Standards, Appeals, Complaints,
Licensing, Liquor & Regulated Entertainment Licensing and the
Audit Committee.

28.

The Constitution also includes roles and responsibilities of the three
statutory officers (i.e. the Chief Executive’s role as the Head of Paid
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Service, the role of the Director (Governance) as the Monitoring Officer
and the role of the Director (Finance & Operations) as the S151
Officer), the Executive Board as well as Proper Officer Functions.
Roles and responsibilities of officers are further defined in the job
descriptions for each post.
Developing, communicating and embedding Codes of Conduct,
defining the standards of behaviour for Members and officers
29.

30.

The Council’s Constitution sets out:

The Code of Conduct for Members – this includes General
Provisions, Interests and the Register of Members’ Interests



The Local Code of Guidance for Members and Officers involved
in Planning Matters – this includes conduct of Members and
officers, Procedures for Committees considering Planning
Matters, Site Visits by Members and by the Development
Management Committee.



The Officers’ Code of Conduct – this includes Standards,
Disclosure of Information, Political Neutrality, Relationships,
Employment, Outside Commitments, Equality, Separation of
Roles during Tendering, Corruption, Use of Financial
Resources, Hospitality, Register of Gifts and Hospitality, etc.



The Protocol on Member / Officer Relations – this includes the
Principles underlying Member / Officer Relations, the roles of
Members and Officers, the relationships between the Mayor and
officers, the Leader and Members of the Cabinet and officers,
the Chairmen and Members of Committees and officers, Officer
relationships with Party Groups, etc.

A copy of the Constitution is given to each Member when they are first
elected to the Council. Copies are also available on the Council’s
Website, eTeam pages and at Council offices, libraries and other
appropriate locations.
Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial
instructions, a scheme of delegation and supporting procedure
notes / manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and
the processes and controls to manage risks

31.

Article 1 of the Constitution commits the Council to provide clear
leadership to the community in partnership with others. It aims to
enhance the involvement of citizens in decision-making and make the
decision-making process efficient, effective and transparent and those
involved in it, accountable.

Page 6

Page 220

June 2016

32.

There are monthly meetings of the Cabinet and fortnightly meetings of
the Executive Board with each Director having clear terms of
reference of the business they respectively conduct. There are also
fortnightly meetings of the Heads of Service Team and joint meetings
with the Executive Board during the year to discuss major projects
being progressed by the Council.

33.

Individual Cabinet Members meet monthly with Directors to consider
the strategic direction, plans and progress of the Council as well as
meeting quarterly at a formal Performance Clinic, where there is a
strong internal challenge on performance from the Leader, Deputy
Leader and the Chief Executive of the Council. Heads of Service also
meet formally with their Cabinet Members on at least a monthly
basis and at other times as required.

34.

There is a realistic level of delegation in place, which permits the
Council’s business to be conducted as effectively as possible.

35.

The Council’s Forward Plan and Publication of Decision List provides
the three Overview & Scrutiny Committees with proposed and
recently made executive decisions, which are used in determining
items for scrutiny.

36.

The Constitution and the decision-making structures (both Members
and Officers) are regularly reviewed to ensure that they are up-to-date,
relevant, in line with good practice and fit for purpose. A complete
review of these was conducted in 2015. All Members are issued with
revised copies of the Constitution.

37.

The Council has an approved Risk Management Strategy, which sets
out:




the key features of its risk management system
roles and responsibilities with regard to risk management
its overall approach to the management of risk
actions to embed the process in future periods

38.

Both the Strategic and Service Risk Registers, which are maintained on
the TEN Performance and Risk Management System, can be
reviewed at any time by Directors and Heads of Service, and at least
once every six months in April and October.

39.

Strategic and operational risk information is included in the
Performance Clinics and resulting updates are reported to the
Executive Board, the Cabinet as well as the Audit Committee
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Undertaking the core functions of an Audit Committee
40.

The Audit Committee has Terms of Reference, which are included in
the Council’s Constitution and regularly reviewed to ensure compliance
with recognised best practice - the CIPFA publication “Audit
Committees : Practical Guidance for Local Authorities”.

41.

It is recognised that, in order to effectively discharge these
responsibilities, the Audit Committee may require any officer to
attend meetings of the Committee so it may receive explanations
regarding any matter that it is considering.

42.

At the beginning of each financial year, the Committee establishes a
Work Programme as well as a Training & Development Programme
and, at the end of each financial year, it receives a report from
officers setting out its performance against both Programmes.
Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal
policies and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful

43.

The Council has a full range of policies and procedures and places
great emphasis on compliance with these, as well as with the law and
other external regulations. Compliance is achieved through the
following mechanisms:Members
Code of Conduct, Role Descriptions, Training & Development and
Declaration of Interests
Employees
Code of Conduct, Job / Person Specification, Appraisals, Team
Meetings and Training & Development
Other


The Constitution and other policies and procedures are available
on the Council’s Website, eTeam and as hard copy



Officers prepare timely reports to all of the Council’s decisionmaking bodies (including the Cabinet, the Audit Committee and
the Executive Board) on statutory requirements and proposals
regarding their implementation



Standard report formats require officers to consider legal,
financial, risk management, security and terrorism, procurement,
climate change and equality & diversity implications together
with the links to corporate priorities.
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The work of the internal audit service which assists the statutory
officers in discharging their duties effectively



The work of the Council’s External Auditors, which provides an
opinion on compliance to Members and officers as well as to the
Council’s other stakeholders

Whistle-blowing and receiving and investigating complaints from
the public
44.

The Council has an external and an internal Whistleblowing Telephone
Number as well as a Whistleblowing email address. The Employee
Whistleblowing Policy is available on both the Council’s Website and
eTeam pages. The policy has recently been updated.

45.

The Policy covers any malpractice or wrongdoing by any Member or
employee of the Council as well as any contractor, supplier, consultant
or partner of the Council in the course of their work for the Council.

46.

The Council currently operates a 3C (Compliments, Comments and
Complaints) system which enables all services to log and respond to
customer feedback in a clear and consistent manner. Complaints data
is now extracted from Lagan and reported through the Performance
Clinics on a quarterly basis. This is supplemented by customer
intelligence derived from the Council’s Contact Centre database,
known as Lagan, which creates and maintains a call history from all
customers.
Identifying the development needs of Members and senior officers
in relation to their strategic roles, supported by the appropriate
training

47.

The Constitution states that the Council’s Standards Committee is
responsible for training and advising Councillors on the Code of
Conduct. One of the key accountabilities of the Chairman of the
Standards Committee is to ensure that all Members and co-opted
voting Members of the Council and the Town and Parish Councils
within the Council’s administrative area have undergone standards
training.

48.

Induction training is provided for all new members shortly after their
election to the Council. New Members of both Licensing & Regulated
Entertainment and the Development Management Committee (and any
substitutes) have to attend mandatory training before they can attend
the Committees. In addition, refresher training will be provided for all
Committee Members and substitutes every six months.

49.

The Annual Report to Council (May 2016) highlights that attendance at
member development events has continued to increase and has
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covered such topics as dementia awareness, chairing skills, personal
safety, emergency planning, local government finance and an
immigration workshop. Events were also held jointly through the
Hertfordshire Member Development Network.
50.

Members and staff have received the appropriate training in relation to
section 11 of the Children’s Act 2004, which relates to
safeguarding including training on safeguarding vulnerable adults.
Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of
the community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability
and encouraging open consultation

51.

The Council co-ordinates an annual community engagement
programme which deploys a range of consultation methods at a local
level. These include online surveys with a Borough Panel, public
meetings on local priorities at service level, online budget consultation
“You Choose”, liaison meetings with Town and Parish Councils, and
attendance at local community events across the Borough to confirm
our understanding of what residents and stakeholders have told us.
Social media channels such as Facebook and Twitter have been added
to this over recent years and their use as a means of communication
and feedback with residents is steadily rising. The increasing use of
interactive web pages and e-forms, where visitors can provide
comments and make further service requests, is also used to enhance
our customer intelligence data. Our website was updated in early 2014
so that it is now responsive to mobile devices such as tablets and
smart phones. This is because the volume of customers who choose
to contact us this way is increasing.

52.

Feedback from the engagement programme informs budget and targetsetting for the following financial year. This has become
increasingly important following the imposition of a tough local
government finance settlement for the period leading up to 2015.

53.

The government has included a duty on local authorities to respond to
petitions in the Local Democracy, Economic Development and
Construction Act 2009. The Act provides that people in all areas of
England and Wales will be guaranteed a response from their council
to both electronic and paper petitions. Citizens who are able to get
the number of signatures specified in their council's petitions scheme
will be guaranteed a public, full council debate on their concerns. If
the petition organiser does not believe the council's response to their
petition is adequate, they will have a new right to ask the appropriate
overview and scrutiny committee to review the response.

54.

The implementation of the Localism Act 2011 has also strengthened
local democracy and promoted local accountability by public bodies
such as the Council. This wide ranging Act has implications for the
Council across the key areas of governance and standards, powers of
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competence, community rights, and the delivery of planning and
housing services. The Council has now developed a proportionate
response to the Act so that communities who wish to take advantage of
these new rights have unfettered access to do so.
55.

All Council meetings can now be filmed, audio-recorded, photographed
or reported electronically by the use of social media. This does not
apply to sessions held in private. A purpose built Council Chamber is
in the course of construction and will be in fully operational in June
2016.
Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of
partnerships and other group working and reflecting these in the
Council’s overall governance arrangements

56.

The Welwyn Hatfield Alliance Executive Board meets on a quarterly
basis to consider progress with major projects being delivered via the
Alliance partners and to oversee the progress of the Task and Finish
Groups, which are set up to deliver specific actions which meet the
aims and objectives of the Community Strategy. Each year an Annual
Conference is held with all Alliance partners around a key community
theme. This is an opportunity to consult with partners on key issues
and to agree joint priorities and objectives.
REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

57.

The Council has the responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the
system of internal control.

58.

This review is informed by those Members and Officers, who have the
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance
environment:

the work of Members at Council, Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny
Committees, the Audit Committee and the Standards Committee



the work of the Governance Group



the annual Management Assurance Statements prepared by the
Directors and Heads of Service relating to internal controls,
performance and risk management within their areas of activity



the Head of internal audit Annual Report



reports made by the Council’s External Auditors and other
review agencies and inspectorates.
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59.

The Council
The Council comprises all 48 Members and, as a whole, takes
decisions on budget and policy framework items as defined by the
Constitution.
At the Annual Meeting (held in May 2015), the Council elected a Mayor
and agreed Committee membership and representation from the
Council on local organisations (known as Outside Bodies) for the
forthcoming year. The Leader of the Council was also appointed at the
Annual meeting following “all out” elections in May 2016. Other
Members of the Cabinet are appointed by the Leader.
Each Council meeting has been open to the public, who can submit a
question or petition to these meetings.
The Council met eight times during the financial year – Agendas,
Supporting Papers and Minutes are available on both the Council’s
Website and eTeam pages.

60.

The Cabinet
The Cabinet has comprised seven Members from the majority political
group throughout the financial year, is chaired by the Leader of the
Council and provides leadership at a top level.
Each Executive Member of the Cabinet (except the Leader) has looked
after an individual area of responsibility known as a portfolio of
services; they have worked closely with the Directors and Heads of
Service and developed an in-depth knowledge of their portfolio area.
A Cabinet Decision List has been published monthly. All Cabinet
decisions have been taken in public apart from exceptions (such as
personnel matters, commercially sensitive information or confidential
legal advice). The public have been welcome to attend meetings of the
Cabinet.
Officers are not able to put key decisions into practice until the ten day
‘call-in’ period has elapsed – except for those decisions taken under
emergency procedures.
The Cabinet met fourteen times during the financial year – Agendas,
Supporting Papers and Minutes are available on both the Council’s
Website and eTeam pages.

61.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committees
There are three Overview and Scrutiny Committees, whose remit is to
scrutinise executive decision-making, whether through the call-in of
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decisions before they are implemented or through the postimplementation scrutiny of decisions.
The aim of this system of scrutiny is to challenge executive decisionmaking in order to improve the quality of decision-making and to check
the effectiveness of the systems of internal control. These Committees
also add to the effectiveness of decision-making by carrying out policy
reviews within their specific remits and engaging with other
organisations and the public as appropriate.
The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee met four times
during the financial year and dealt with a wide variety of matters in
accordance with the Committee’s Work Programme. The Committee’s
Annual Report to Council (May 2016) highlights the issues that it has
considered such as:
Acceptable Hours For Construction Site Noise, Finesse
Cemetery Performance Monitoring, Food Safety & Hygiene
Plans, Gambling Act Policy Review, Food Safety Service Plan,
Health & Safety Service Plan, Mardley Heath Management Plan,
Northaw Great Wood Management Plan, Playground Strategy,
Resilience Assurance, Staff Travel Plan, Sherrardswoodpark
Wood Management Plan, Tree Pests & Diseases, Street
Wardens Performance, Taxi Enforcement Operations, SERCO
Quarterly & Annual Performance Reports, CP Plus Half Yearly &
Annual Reports.

The Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee met five times
during the financial year and dealt with a wide variety of matters in
accordance with the Committee’s Work Programme. The Committee’s
Annual Report to Council (May 2016) highlights the issues that it has
considered such as:
Complaints Monitoring, Employee Turnover, Enforcement
Agents, Health & Safety Performance Report, 2015/16 Budget
Reports, Revenue & Capital Budget Reports 2015/16,

The Social Overview and Scrutiny Committee met four times during the
financial year and dealt with a wide variety of matters in accordance
with the Committee’s Work Programme.
The Committee’s Annual Report to Council (May 2016) highlights the
issues that it has considered such as:
Campus West Annual Report, Community Safety Partnership
Annual Report, Dementia Work Update, Equalities & Diversity
Update, Health Walks Scheme, Health Group Update, Housing
Allocation Policy, Local Health Update, Museum Service Annual
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Report, Performance Indicators, Private Sector Housing Stock,
Public Health District Offer, Public Health & Wellbeing Strategy,
QEII Hospital, Safeguarding Annual Report, Town Centres
Review, Youth & Sports Partnership Annual Report, Youth &
Sports Partnership Update
In addition, Scrutiny Sub-Committees have carried out work on the
following:Council Tax Debt Recovery, SERCO Contract and Sport &
Physical Activity Provision In The Borough’s Schools.
62.

The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference have been kept under
regular review to ensure that they comply with those prescribed by the
CIPFA publication “Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local
Authorities”.
The Committee has comprised five non-Executive Members (as
required) and has met four times during the financial year – Agendas,
Supporting Papers and Minutes are available on both the Council’s
Website and eTeam pages.
It substantially completed its Planned Work Programme, regularly
receiving reports from:




63.

The Council’s External Auditors – Audit Results Report 2014/15,
Annual Audit Letter 2014/15
The Shared Internal Audit Service Internal Audit team –
Quarterly Progress Reports, Annual Report 2014/15, and Annual
Plan 2016/17
The Head of Governance – Risk Management Progress reports,
Draft Annual Governance Statement 2014/15
The Head of Resources – Statement of Accounts 2014/15,
Accounting policies update 2015/16 Statement of Accounts

The Standards Committee
The Standards Committee’s Terms of Reference have been kept under
regular review – the role and function of the Committee is, amongst
other things, to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by
Members and co-opted Members.
The Committee has comprised five Borough Council Members and one
Non-Voting representative of the Welwyn Hatfield Association of Local
Councils. It is chaired by a Borough Council Member. The Committee
has been reconstituted in accordance with the Localism Act 2011.
Three independent persons have also been appointed, who are not
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members of the Committee but will be consulted on complaints that
have been referred to the Hearing Sub-Committee
The Committee has met two times during the financial year – Agendas,
Supporting Papers and Minutes are available on both the Council’s
Website and eTeam pages.
The Committee considered the Draft Annual Governance Statement
2014/15 and a revised whistleblowing policy along with a short guide to
the new policy.
64.

Senior Management
The Executive Board comprises the Chief Executive and three
Directors – Finance & Operations, Governance and Strategy &
Development.
Two of the three Directors have completed and signed off a
Management Assurance Statement for the financial year 2014/15. The
third has not been completed as this post has been vacant. Reporting
lines have been temporarily reviewed so that the seven Heads of
Service are split between the two directors. These Management
Assurance Statements have been designed to require each Officer to
certify the effective operation of the control environment in their service
area – including arrangements for performance management and risk
management.
The Director (Finance & Operations), in her capacity of Section 151
Officer has also confirmed that the authority’s financial arrangements
conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA statement on
the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government.
As a consequence, these Statements are key supporting documents in
identifying any Significant Governance Issues.
Heads of Service Team (HOST) consists of seven officers covering
Governance, Public Health & Protection, Policy & Culture, Planning,
Resources, Housing & Community Services and Environment. The
Heads of Service, who report to the Directors, have met on a fortnightly
basis. Heads of Service have also completed management assurance
statements for their service areas.

65.

Governance Group
The Governance Group has been chaired by the Chief Executive, in his
capacity as the Council’s Head of Corporate Governance or, in his
absence, by the Director (Governance).
The Group, which is accountable to the Executive Board and Cabinet,
met five times during the financial year, regularly receiving reports from
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each of its members covering Business Continuity, Emergency
Planning & Risk Management, Ethics & Standards, Internal Control and
Partnerships & Performance Management.
The Group has co-ordinated the preparation of this Annual Governance
Statement as part of this process.
Agendas, supporting documentation and Minutes are held on the
Governance Group pages of eTeam.
66.

Internal Audit
Internal audit services have been provided by the Shared Internal Audit
Service (SIAS). This arrangement was initially for three years but has
been extended for a further two years. SIAS is a partnership of seven
district and borough councils and Hertfordshire County Council. Internal
Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and
objective opinion to the Council on its control environment – this
comprises the systems of governance, internal control and risk
management – by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving the
organisation’s objectives.
SIAS has undertaken a Work Programme during the financial year,
which was approved by the Audit Committee, and has sought to
operate in accordance with the professional standards prescribed in the
CIPFA Code of Practice.
In line with this Code, an Annual Report has been compiled and
presented to the Audit Committee (at its meeting in July 2016), which:



includes an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of
the Council’s internal control environment
discloses any qualifications to that opinion, together with any
reasons for the qualification
draws attention to any issues which are judged particularly relevant
to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement.

This Annual Report is a key source document to the Council’s Annual
Governance Statement.
Individual SIAS reports state whether or not there are any implications
for the Annual Governance Statement. All reports issued have stated
that there are no implications for the Annual Governance Statement.
All recommendations made by SIAS to strengthen the internal control
environment and agreed by management are kept under review by the
Audit Committee to ensure that they are implemented in a timely
manner.
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The Council’s External Auditor regularly reviews the work of SIAS and,
to date has placed reliance on their work.
SIAS have also recently completed a review of the Council’s Corporate
Governance arrangements predominantly aimed at ensuring that the
Council has complied with the Transparency Code. The review
identified some minor weaknesses but provided substantial assurance
to the Council that the Code was being complied with.
67.

Members’ and Officers’ Allowances & Expenses
Members’ Allowances:

Officers’ Allowances
& Expenses:

These are reviewed annually by an
Independent Remuneration Panel, whose
report and recommendations are submitted
to the Full Council for approval.

Allowances are stipulated by individual
employment contracts, whereby the Human
Resources Team instructs the Payroll Team
as to the payment to be made.
Officers’ Expenses are authorised for
payment by employees’ line managers and
reimbursed via payroll.

Both Members’ and Officers’ Allowances & Expenses are subject to
periodic review by SIAS to ensure that the internal controls in operation
are both adequate and effective.
68.

Performance Management
The Council’s Policy and Communications Team oversees the
corporate approach to target setting and performance management
across the organisation.
Since the ending of the Comprehensive Area Assessment in 2010, the
Council has continued to develop its performance and risk
management framework based around local need to bring more
consistency and rigour to the delivery of its services.
The Council’s Annual Report is produced every autumn and uploaded
to the Council’s website. A summary is also published in the
community newsletter which is delivered to every household in the
borough. This helps residents to understand what has been achieved
and what is planned for the future.
Every Service produces its own Service Plan on an annual basis using
an agreed template to help it set and review targets for its service.
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Many targets agreed with individual employees as part of their
Appraisal are reflected in these Service Plans.
69.

Procurement
The Council aims to use its resources efficiently, effectively and
economically in the procurement of goods, and services. This is
underpinned by Contract Procedure Rules that are regularly updated
by the Procurement Manager.
New EU procurement Legislation continues to be brought into UK law
that provides more rights to aggrieved suppliers to challenge the award
of contract. Training has been provided to officers on the introduction of
this legislation and how procurement projects can be operated to
mitigate the risk of legal challenge
Electronic tendering is being fully rolled out which will provide a full
management/audit trail of all operations and communications
throughout the procurement process.
The Procurement Section has continued to deliver savings for the
Council through a number of procurement projects and continues to be
lead authority for the selling of recyclates across Hertfordshire that has
delivered substantive additional income.

70.

Risk Management
The Risk and Resilience function supports the Council in meeting its
obligations under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, including
emergency planning and business continuity management. It also
provides advice and support under the Health & Safety at Work Act
1974 and associated regulations, along with general corporate risk
management support.
A recent review by SIAS concluded that the Council had a sound risk
management strategy in place with a particular strength of the RM
process being the oversight and challenge role undertaken through the
performance clinic process.

71.

Treasury Management
The Treasury Management & Annual Investment Strategy is updated
annually and, for 2015/16, was approved by the Cabinet and Full
Council in January and February 2015 respectively.
The strategy continues to place the emphasis on security rather than
yield. Risks are spread by limiting the size and duration of investments.
Treasury Management is subject to an annual review by SIAS and the
most recent report provided full assurance (the highest assurance
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level) that there are effective controls in operation for those elements
covered by the review and provided good levels of assurance to
support the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.
72.

The External Auditor’s Annual Audit Letter 2014/15
This document which was presented to the Audit Committee at its
meeting in August 2015, summarises the External Auditor’s findings
from the 2014/15 audit, which comprises two main elements:


the audit of the Council’s financial statements
an assessment of the Council’s arrangements to achieve value
for money in its use of resources

The External Auditor’s key messages were:Audit opinion and financial statements
“In our view, the quality of the process for producing the accounts,
including the supporting working papers was generally good.
I have therefore issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s
2014/15 financial statements included in the Authority’s Statement of
Accounts”
Value for money
“We consider whether the Council had proper arrangements in place
for:



securing financial resilience
challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

We issued an unqualified value for money conclusion on 12th August
2015.”
SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES
73.

The Governance Group have agreed that, following the review of the
effectiveness of the Council’s governance framework including the
system of internal control, that there was one significant governance
issue to be raised in this Annual Governance Statement.

74.

A group of Property Search companies were seeking to claim refunds
of fees paid to the Council to access land charges data. Negotiations
have taken place to settle these claims. The Council has now settled all
existing claims but the outstanding interest and costs of those claims
have NOT yet been settled. A range of likely values of what the
outstanding interests and costs has been formulated, but it is too early
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to confirm any actual sums. The Council has also received a
contribution from central government in this year, towards this new
burden. It still remains possible that additional claimants may come
forward to submit claims for refunds, but none have been intimated at
present.
A shared management project with Broxbourne started in 2015 and is
continuing.
The Council and the Welwyn Hatfield Community Housing Trust have
made the decision to share senior management arrangements
including, inter alia, sharing a Chief Executive, Directors and Heads of
Service. The Council and Trust are currently working through the
processes needed to implement the changes necessary.

CERTIFICATION
75.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of
the effectiveness of the governance framework by the Cabinet, the
Audit Committee, the Standards Committee and the Governance
Group and the plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is
in place.

76.

We propose over the coming financial year to take steps to further
enhance our governance arrangements. We will continue to monitor
our governance arrangements until the time of the next annual review.

Signed:

………………………….
Michel Saminaden
Chief Executive

……….………………………
Councillor John Dean
Leader of the Council

Dated:
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